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U DDBM                    Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald        1140-1958 
Family of Gunthwaite, Thorpe and Skye 

 
Biographical Background:  
The Bosville family trace their ancestry to a Martin de Bosville who came from Normandy in 
the eleventh century and is supposed to have died in Buckinghamshire in 1092. His 
descendants had interests in Yorkshire and Kent. In the thirteenth century John de Bosville of 
Ardsley married Agnes, daughter of John, Lord Folyot, and inherited a house at Holme on 
Spalding Moor through the marriage. One of their grandsons, William, was sheriff of 
Yorkshire and built a house called Bosville, now Bossal in the North Riding. John and 
Agnes's eldest son, John de Bosville, married Alice, daughter of Hugh and Clarice de 
Darfield, and they had five sons and four daughters. Alice was an heiress and this generation 
firmly established the family in Yorkshire (Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.1, 5, 12-
14). 
 
The male line of John and Alice's eldest son expired with their grandson and the estates were 
given by him to a younger cousin, Robert Bosville (d.1363), constable of Pontefract. He and 
his older brother, Adam Bosville, were the sons of Peter Bosville (John and Alice's third son) 
and Beatrix, daughter of Lord Furnival. The earliest deeds in the collection relate to Adam 
Bosville. His wife also brought lands into the marriage so that his own son, Thomas Bosville 
of Ardsley, was quite wealthy (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, 
p.17). 
 
Thomas Bosville married Alice, another heiress. Alice was the daughter of John of 
Gunthwaite and his wife Christiana and she brought into the Bosville family the old hall at 
Gunthwaite which was demolished in the nineteenth century. Thomas Bosville was 
succeeded by his son, Roger Bosville, who was succeeded in turn by his second son, John 
Bosville, of Ardsley who married Isabel Dronsfield, another heiress. Their only son, John 
Bosville, made two very successful marriages; the first to Mary, co-heiress of John Drax and 
the second to Isabel, daughter of Percival Cresacre of Barnborough. By his first wife he had 
William Bosville who went on to inherit Ardsley and the New Hall in Darfield and these 
properties were passed down through his descendants. By his second wife he had six 
children and Isabel became executrix of his will when he died in 1441. She gifted Gunthwaite 
to their eldest son, Richard, so starting the Gunthwaite branch of the family, and took the veil 
after the death of her second husband (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a 
family, pp.31, 36-7). 
 
Richard Bosville married Jane Neville and had seven children. He died in 1501. Despite 
owning Gunthwaite he and his heir, John Bosville, lived much of the time at Beighton where 
they farmed the estate of Lord Dacre. John Bosville married Ann Clapham and they had 
three sons and several daughters, many of whom married outside Yorkshire. However, their 
eldest son, another John Bosville, married Muriel Barnby, whose parents were both from 
established East Riding families and their eldest son, Godfrey, re-established ties with 
Yorkshire (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.88-9). 
 
Godfrey Macdonald, who was born circa 1519, married Jane Hardwick (sister of 'Bess') of 
county Derby and settled at Gunthwaite. His sisters married outside Yorkshire; his brother, 
Henry, was a cloth-worker and his other brother, Ralph Bosville, became clerk of the court of 
wards and started the branch of the family living at Bradborne in Kent. He became very 
wealthy and bought the rectory manor of Penistone which he bestowed on Godfrey. Godfrey 
and Ralph Bosville died only two weeks apart in 1580. Ralph Bosville had married twice 
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having a total of thirteen children. The eldest son, Henry Bosville of Bradborne, married 
Elizabeth Morgan who was the sole heiress of Bodiam Castle in Sussex through her mother. 
The second son, Robert Bosville, settled at Eynsford in Kent and this property passed down 
through his descendants. The third son Ralph Bosville, was a captain in the army in Ireland 
and when the male line of the Gunthwaite branch of the family died out with the death of 
Francis Bosville (son of Godfrey Bosville and Jane Hardwick), his heir inherited the Yorkshire 
estates (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, chpt.vi). 
 
Ralph Bosville married Mary Copley in 1592 and their son, Godfrey, was baptised at 
Sprotborough on 12 April 1596. He married Margaret Greville and they had one son, William, 
and two daughters one of whom went on to marry a parliamentary army officer during the civil 
wars. Godfrey Bosville was MP for Warwick (having abandoned Gunthwaite and settled in 
Wroxall) in the Long Parliament and became a colonel of a regiment of foot. The two earliest 
letters amongst the correspondence of the collection are from Godfrey Bosville to retainers 
on the Gunthwaite estate (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.62-
3). 
 
Godfrey Bosville died in 1658 and was succeeded to the Gunthwaite estates by William 
Bosville who had been born circa 1620. He married Mary Wilkinson, had two sons and four 
daughters and died just over a year after his wife, in 1662, when his eldest son, Godfrey 
Bosville (b.1654) was about seven. Godfrey Bosville, married Bridget, the daughter of John, 
2nd baronet Hotham, and their correspondence is the first of any reasonable size in the 
collection, amounting to 85 letters (U DDBM/32/1-2, 19). He was involved in local affairs, 
being justice of the peace and high sheriff in 1705. He and his wife improved the estates, 
building part of the stables and a summer house and they had plans to build a new house 
which are in the collection. They also expanded by buying Midhope and by buying back the 
manor of New Hall which had passed out of the Bosville family with the death of Thomas 
Bosville in 1639 (descendant of William Bosville, son of John Bosville and Mary Drax). 
Bridget died in 1708 and her husband in 1714 and they are buried in the church at Penistone 
(Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, chpt.viii). 
 
Godfrey and Bridget Bosville left no children and the estates passed to the heirs of Godfrey's 
brother, William, who had predeceased him. William's eldest son, Henry, had predeceased 
his uncle so his second son, William, inherited in 1714 and held the estate until his premature 
death only ten years later. He was succeeded by his only son, Godfrey Bosville (b.1717) who 
married in 1739 Diana, eldest daughter of Sir William Wentworth of West Bretton and their 
correspondence in the collection is quite considerable at circa 120 letters. Godfrey and Diana 
Bosville had a wide circle of friends and the letters include one from James Boswell who 
claimed family connection with Godfrey. Godfrey and Diana also considerably increased their 
fortune through land inheritance. In 1762 Godfrey succeeded to Biana, a house and estate in 
Staffordshire (which had come into the possession of a junior branch of the Bosville family 
through the Pershall family) and in 1773 the house and estate of Thorpe Hall in the East 
Riding was gifted by Thomas Hassell, the husband of one of Diana's aunts. They instantly let 
Gunthwaite to tenants and chose to live at Thorpe and in the Great Russell Street house in 
London (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.97-112). 
 
Godfrey and Diana Bosville had two sons, William and Thomas, and two daughters, 
Elizabeth Diana and Julia. Thomas was shot at the battle of Liencelles in 1793 and two 
letters from him to his mother from school are in the collection (there is another letter to him 
at U DDBM/32/37).  Seven of Julia's love letters, before her marriage to William Ward, lord 
viscount Dudley and Ward, are at DDBM/32/11. Elizabeth Diana Bosville married Alexander 
Macdonald, the first Macdonald to hold the Irish barony of Sleat (brother of James Macdonald 
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[1742-1766], the mathematician), and their heirs ultimately inherited Gunthwaite. They lived 
at the Macdonald seat on the Isle of Skye. William (b.1745) succeeded to the estates on the 
death of his father in 1784 (Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, 
pp.112-79). 
 
William Bosville is described by the U DNB as 'a celebrated bon vivant'. He was schooled at 
Harrow and entered the Coldstream Guards in 1761. He served with a regiment for part of 
the American War and travelled widely on the continent. At home he lived in London where 
he entertained guests at his house in Welbeck Street at exactly five o'clock every weekday. 
He did not involve himself in his Yorkshire estates and was eccentric in his manners, always 
dressing in the manner of a courtier of George III. He was an ardent supporter of the reform 
party of the whigs and was friendly with Horne Tooke and William Cobbett (a letter from 
whom survives in U DDBM/32/12). He had influential friends, but unfortunately only 10 letters 
to him survive in the collection. When William Bosville died at the end of 1813 the male line of 
Bosville of Gunthwaite became extinct and the main beneficiary of his will was his nephew, 
Godfrey, the second son of Elizabeth Diana Bosville and her husband Alexander Macdonald 
(Foster, Pedigrees, iii; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.186-97; Dictionary of National 
Biography). 
 
Alexander Macdonald and Elizabeth Diana Bosville had died in 1795 and 1789 respectively. 
They left behind seven sons and three daughters. The eldest son, Alexander Wentworth 
Macdonald, was unmarried and died in 1824. Godfrey (b.1775) assumed the name of 
Bosville in 1814 after succeeding his uncle. He succeeded as 3rd Lord Macdonald on the 
death of his brother. In 1799 he met and fell in love with Louisa Maria Edsir, who was just 
seventeen. When he put his suit to her father it transpired that a better match was expected 
for her because she was the illegitimate daughter of the duke of Gloucester (brother of 
George III) and Lady Almeria Carpenter. Godfrey Macdonald solved the problem by eloping 
with Louisa, but as she was a minor he could not marry her without the consent of her 
parents under English law. The couple therefore married by 'mutual consent' under Scottish 
law. They then travelled to Ireland with the 60th regiment where their first child, Alexander 
William Robert Macdonald, was born in 1800. They failed to go through a church wedding 
until two more children were born and they had returned to England. The formal English 
marriage ceremony thus did not take place until 1803. Their second two children died in 
infancy, leaving their eldest son as the only child born outside English wedlock. This was to 
lead to problems in succession (Macdonald, A romantic chapter in family history, pp.6-14). 
 
Godfrey and Louisa Macdonald lived until 1832 and 1835 respectively and went on to have 
about another eight children. Godfrey Macdonald served during the Napoleonic wars and his 
correspondence and that of his wife (circa 300 letters in U DDBM and U DDBM[2]) includes 
his commentary on those wars and letters from the dukes of Kent and Devonshire, Admiral 
Ross Donnelly, Tatton Sykes, Lord Melbourne and the duke of Wellington (Foster, Pedigrees, 
iii). 
 
When Godfrey died his eldest son, Alexander William, assumed the surname of Bosville and 
inherited the Thorpe and Gunthwaite estates in Yorkshire. However, as he was technically 
illegitimate in England, he did not succeed as 4th baron of Sleat; this title fell to his younger 
brother, Godfrey William Wentworth Bosville-Macdonald, who had been born after the 1803 
church ceremony. In 1823 Alexander Bosville had married Matilda Moffat Bayard and they 
had two children, Godfrey Wentworth Bayard Bosville (b.1826) and Julia Louisa Bosville. 
Godfrey succeeded to the Yorkshire estates on the death of his father in 1847 and his fifteen 
day old son, Alexander Wentworth Macdonald Bosville, succeeded on his own premature 
death in 1865. Godfrey William Wentworth Bosville-Macdonald married Maria Anne 
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Wyndham in 1845 and they had three sons and four daughters. Their eldest son, Somerled 
James Brudenell Bosville-Macdonald (b.1849) succeeded his father as 5th baron of Sleat on 
his father's death in 1863 and the family resided in Skye (Macdonald, A romantic chapter in 
family history, pp.20-33; Foster, Pedigrees, iii). 
 
Although Alexander Wentworth Macdonald Bosville became a major Yorkshire landowner 
(8949 acres in 1873) and was very involved in local affairs being a justice of the peace and 
organist and choirmaster at Rudston church, the injustice of his grandfather being robbed of 
his Scottish inheritance rankled and he spent the last quarter of the nineteenth century trying 
to prove the legitimacy of the Scottish marriage that had taken place. In 1910 he was 
successful and his grandfather was retrospectively created 12th baronet and 19th chief of 
Sleat, his father was retrospectively created 13th baronet and 20th chief of Sleat and he, 
himself, became 14th baronet and 21st chief of Sleat. This unseated his cousin as 6th Lord 
Macdonald of the Isles and in 1911 Alexander Wentworth Macdonald Bosville travelled to 
Skye to take up residence at the seat of his forbears who could trace their ancestry back to 
Hugh Macdonald, Lord of the Isles in the mid-fifteenth century (papers in the Scottish Record 
Office) (Macdonald, A romantic chapter in family history, pp.38-40; Ward, East Yorkshire 
landed estates, pp.60-1). 
 
In 1910 Alexander assumed the surname Macdonald thus becoming the rather cumbersome 
Alexander Wentworth Macdonald Bosville-Macdonald. His son, Godfrey Middleton Bosville-
Macdonald (b.1887), succeeded to the titles in Scotland and the estates in Scotland and 
Yorkshire and died in 1951 when he in turn was succeeded by his son, (Alexander) Somerled 
Angus Bosville-Macdonald (b.1917) who died in 1958. His son, Sir Ian Godfrey Bosville-
Macdonald, 17th baronet and 25th chief of Sleat (b.1947) is the present owner of the papers 
in the Brynmor Jones Library. The family seat is still Thorpe Hall which has long been the 
only house in the former village of Thorpe half a mile to the east of Rudston. A large brick 
house in 57 acres of grounds it became famous in the 1890s for having very early electric 
lighting. 
 
 
Custodial history:  
Deposited in the East Riding Record Office and transferred to Hull University Archives in 
1974; three small deposits followed on 3 September 1985, 18 February 1986 and 6 January 
1987. 
 
 
Description:  
The Bosville-Macdonald family owned lands in the West Riding centred on Gunthwaite and in 
the East Riding centred on Thorpe, near Scarborough and the estate papers for both Ridings 
are catalogued together alphabetically. They contain medieval charters, manorial records and 
title deeds, many of which have been printed in T Walter Hall, Land charters and court rolls 
from the Bosville collection (1930). Sections containing early material that is in print have 
been marked *. 
 
U DDBM/1-21 contain estate papers as follows: *Barnsley (1344-1350, 1455-1460, 1638); 
Brandesburton (1719-late 18th century); Burton Fleming (1612-1774); *Cawthorne (1326-
1334, 1599, 1776) including papers of the de Hertford family; Caythorpe (1800-1831), sale 
documents; *Darfield (1541-1750); *Gunthwaite (1406-1735) including the 1406 gift of 
William de Bosville and five 1690 plans for the house that Godfrey Bosville intended to build; 
Helmsley (1664), a 21 year lease of the castle granted to William Watson by the duke of 
Buckingham; *Hessle (1364); *Hoyland Swain (1549-1575); *Langsett (1367, 1814); 
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*Mappleton (early 13th century); Meltham (1621); *Midhope (1553-1726) including a 1553 
manor court roll, the transfer document of the manor to Godfrey Bosville in 1690 and a 1631 
copy of the grant of the manor in 1270; *Oxspring (1549-1747) including manorial records 
and court rolls for 1549 and 1575; *Penistone (1557-1819), largely material related to the 
church, churchwardens and overseers of the poor and to the Free Grammar School as well 
as the 1819 enclosure bill; Roughbirchwood (1618, 1719); Seaton Ross (1742); *Thorpe and 
Rudston (1557-1874) including the appointment of a gamekeeper in 1831 and an 1874 plan 
of the Spring Dales estate; Tanshelf (1662); Worsborough (1565, 1690).    
 
U DDBM also contains sections of estate papers for other counties, though these are not 
quite alphabetically ordered. Other estate papers are as follows: a deed to declare the uses 
of the manor, town and lordship of Burton in Cheshire from John, bishop of Lichfield (1716); 
Derbyshire (1570); Essex (copy of a pre-1140 grant of the tithe of Islip); Lancashire (18th 
century plan of the duke of Bridgewater's 'curious weir' in Castle Field near Manchester); 
Leicestershire (1622, 1654); *Staffordshire (1491-early 20th century), material largely relating 
to Eccleshall from an early gift to some twentieth-century postcards with papers of the 
Pershall family who were connected by marriage (the marriage settlement of Richard Bosville 
and Elizabeth Pershall is at U DDBM/34/5). Also in U DDBM are the papers of the 
descendants of Ralph Bosville, clerk of the court of wards (and younger brother of Godfrey 
Bosville of Gunthwaite), who settled in Bradborne (parish of Sevenoaks) in Kent in the 
sixteenth century. A junior branch of this family also settled at Eynsford and the Kent estate 
papers include settlements and deeds for these properties (1604-1702).    
 
When the male line of the Bosville family ran out in 1813, the Bosville estates passed to 
Elizabeth Diana Bosville and her husband, Alexander Macdonald, with the result that U 
DDBM also contains some Scottish papers of the Macdonald family (earlier Macdonald 
estate papers, diaries and correspondence are in the Scottish Record Office). The Scottish 
papers in the Brynmor Jones span the dates 1596-1933. They include the 1782 manuscript 
of D Macqueen's Enquiry into the chieftanship of Macdonald; the 1799 report of John 
Blackadder into the estate at Skye; an album containing copies of the correspondence 
between the 3rd Lord Macdonald (Godfrey Macdonald 1775-1832) and Alexander 
Macdonnell over their respective descent to chieftanship of the clan and addresses of 
welcome to Alexander Bosville-Macdonald in 1911 on his taking up residence in the Isle of 
Skye.    
 
Other sections in U DDBM are: *various townships (1433-1830) including an 1809 survey of 
the estates of William Bosville and the 1830 sale of Penistone; *various deeds (1548-1814); 
*accounts and vouchers (1579-1832), household and personal account books including the 
pay account of Colonel Godfrey Bosvile's regiment of foot for the committee of safety for 
Warwickshire 1642 to 1645 and the clothing accounts of Captain and Mrs Bosville 1645 to 
1654; *bonds (1546-1747).    
 
Settlements in U DDBM (1559-1788) include the following marriage settlements: Francis 
Bosville and Dorothy Copley (1586); Richard Bosville and Elizabeth Pershall (1649); Henry 
Hall and Sarah Norton (1680); Thomas Hassell and Anne Elwick (1745); Thomas Place and 
Mary Bosville (1755); William Ward and Julia Bosville (1780); John Sinclair and Diana 
Macdonald (1788). Wills in U DDBM are as follows: Henry Bosville (1582); Thomas 
Hattersley (1603); John Haigh (1645); Edmund Rogers (1647); William Watson (1672); 
Thomas Hassel (1692); Thomas Wood (1695); William Bosville (1696); Thomas Hattersley 
(1699); Henry Bosville (1701); Thomas Hattersley (1711); Thomas Pershall (1713); Margaret 
Stanhope (1721, 1725); Francis Mosley (1727); William Blackett (1728); Catherine 
Osbaldeston (1733); Jane Gray (1735); Thomas Hassell (1737); Anne Hassell (1740); 
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Samuel Hassell (1741); Thomas Brown (1743); Samuel Hassell (1744); Thomas Wentworth 
(1747); William Talbot (1749); Thomas Watson (1751); Thomas Hassell (1757); Henry 
Bosville (1761); Thomas Watson (1764); Thomas Hassell (1770); Godfrey Bosville (1780); 
Thomas Blackett (1790); William Bosville (1807).   U DDBM is a collection rich in 
correspondence, the bulk of it being the correspondence of Godfrey Bosville (d.1714) and his 
wife Bridget Hotham (d.1708); Godfrey Bosville (d.1784) and his wife Diana Wentworth; 
Godfrey Macdonald (d.1832) and Alexander William Macdonald (Bosville) (d.1847). Other 
correspondence of interest include letters of the Pershall and Hassell families who were 
related by marriage; some eighteenth-century love letters to Diana Bosville (b.1754); two 
letters to Godfrey Bosville (1596-1658) and a letter dated 1783 to Captain Thomas Bosville 
about the will of Annabel Wentworth who left an endowment for a childrens' hospital in Nice.    
 
The miscellaneous section of U DDBM contains genealogical material including an 
illuminated pedigree of 1586, an illuminated certificate of Ralph Bosville by the antiquarian 
and historian, William Camden, and a 1916 tree showing the descent of the families of 
Macdonald of Sleat and the Isles; a 1650 petition to parliament against sequestration by 
Thomas Bosville; a 1670 petition by Sarah Babington about her losses during the Irish 
Rebellion of 1641; an eighteenth-century edition of memoirs of the Bosville family ('a mere 
fragment' of the original which is missing; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, pp.2-3); lists 
of sheriffs of Yorkshire 1649-1710; a 1730 inventory of Lady Osbaldeston's plate; the 1720s 
cellar book of Godfrey Bosville; a 1731 document simply entitled 'Directions about Miss 
Bosvile'; the elaborate 1768 acounts for Lady Macdonald's wedding; the instructions c.1780 
of Godfrey Bosville that his body should be used for medical research after his death (he also 
wanted to avoid being buried alive; Macdonald, The fortunes of a family, p.176); horse racing 
programmes 1814-1831 and a copy of T Walter Hall's Land charters and court rolls from the 
Bosville collection (1930).   U DDBM2 is a very small collection of 49 letters (1807-1832 
including a 1958 covering letter) and the 1914 motoring diary of Godfrey Macdonald (d.1951). 
The letters are nearly all supplemental correspondence of Godfrey Macdonald (d.1832) and 
his wife Louisa Maria (d.1835) including 27 letters to Louisa Maria sent while her husband 
was on active service during the Napoleonic wars.   Also included are the 1939 commission 
of Alexander Somerled Angus Bosville-Macdonald, about 30 press cutting and 3 letters 
relating to the death and funeral of Sir Alexander Macdonald of the Isles and two articles on 
Thorpe Hall from 1922 and 1923. 
 
 
Arrangement:  
U DDBM/1 Barnsley (West Riding), 1344 - 1638 
U DDBM/2 Brandesburton (East Riding), 1719 - 1800 
U DDBM/3 Burton Fleming (East Riding), 1612 - 1774 
U DDBM/4 Cawthorne (East Riding), 1326 - 1776 
U DDBM/5 Caythorpe (West Riding), 1800 - 1831 
U DDBM/6 Darfield (West Riding), 1541 - 1750 
U DDBM/7 Gunthwaite (West Riding), 1405 - 1769 
U DDBM/8 Helmsley (North Riding), 1664 
U DDBM/9 Hessle, near Wragby (West Riding), 1362 
U DDBM/10 Hoyland Swain (West Riding), 1549 - 1575 
U DDBM/11 Langsett (West Riding), 1367 - 1814 
U DDBM/12 Mappleton (East Riding), 1200 - 1250 
U DDBM/13 Meltham (West Riding), 1621 
U DDBM/14 Midhope (West Riding), 1270 - 1726 
U DDBM/15 Oxspring (West Riding), 1549 - 1747 
U DDBM/16 Penistone (West Riding), 1545 - 1819 
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U DDBM/17 Roughbirchwood (West Riding), 1618 - 1719 
U DDBM/18 Seaton Ross (East Riding), 1742 
U DDBM/19 Thorpe and Rudston (East Riding), 1557 - 1874 
U DDBM/20 Tanshelf (West Riding), 1662 
U DDBM/21 Worsborough (West Riding), 1656 - 1690 
U DDBM/22 Cheshire, 1716 
U DDBM/23 Derbyshire, 1570 
U DDBM/24 Essex, 1140 
U DDBM/25 Lancashire, 1700 - 1800 
U DDBM/26 Leicestershire, 1622 - 1654 
U DDBM/27 Scotland, 1596 - 1911 
U DDBM/28 Various Townships, 1433 - 1830 
U DDBM/29 Various Deeds, 1548 - 1814 
U DDBM/30 Accounts and Vouchers, 1579 - 1832 
U DDBM/31 Bonds, 1546 - 1747 
U DDBM/32 Correspondence, 1639 - 1846 
U DDBM/33 Miscellaneous, 1525 - 1930 
U DDBM/34 Settlements, 1559 - 1788 
U DDBM/35 Wills, 1582 - 1807 
U DDBM/36 Kent, 1604 - 1702 
U DDBM/37 Staffordshire, 1491 - 1950 
 
 
Extent: 3.5 linear metres 
 
 
Related material: 
U DP/167/1; U DDX/60/238; U DDKG/99-105, 166, 213 
 
Other repositories:  
Macdonald papers, Scottish Record Office 
 
 
Access conditions: Access to be granted to any accredited reader 
 
 
U DDBM/1 Barnsley (West Riding) 

7 items 
 

1344 –1638 

U DDBM/1/1 Defeasance: William de Bossevile, clerk and John son 
of Philip Toppying senr., of Bernesley to Richard Crock 
of Berneslay and wife Agnes  
Of a gift to them by R. C. and A., of all their lands and 
tenements in Berneslay and all their goods and 
chattels: Conditional on payment by R. C. and A. of 
18s. yearly for 6 years from St. Martin in winter (11 
November) 1344. Witn. Richard de Bossvile of 
Berneslay, Peter de Staynburgh and Roger Smith 
('fabro') both of the same. Given at Berneslay 
Assumption B.V.M 1344. Seal, small device (sexfoil ?) 
within decorative border 
1 item 

5 Aug 1344 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 8 of 93 

 
U DDBM/1/2 Gift: Robert Ekkelulse of Bernesley to William de 

Bossevill, clerk  
Toft in Bernesley with buildings and adjacent croft, 
which donor had of the gift of William de 
Wyresdale:Witn. Richard de Bosevill of Bernesley, 
Peter de Staynburgh, John son of Phillip, John del 
Wode, Richard Ekkelulse of the same. Given at 
Bernesley Fri. before St. Lawrence the martyr 1344 
1 item 
 

6 Aug 1344 

U DDBM/1/3 Grant: Richard Crok of Bernesley and wife Agnes to 
William de Bosevill, clerk  
All their property in Bernesley: for life of Alice. Witn. 
Richard de Bosevill of Bernesley, Peter de Staynburgh 
of the same. Two small seals, one as DDBM/1/1, the 
other a pelican in her piety (?). Given at Berneslay, 
Monday in St. Valentine martyr 1344 
1 item 
 

4 Feb 1345 

U DDBM/1/4 Gift.: Thomas son and heir of John de Barker of 
Tunstall to Thomas son of Adam de Bossevile of 
Erdeslay  
Messuage in Berneslay which John de Barker had of 
the gift of John Bullok of Berneslay, and which the 
donor inherited on his death: Witn. William de Notton, 
John Tours, John de Staynton, John de Dronsfeld, 
Thomas de Staynburgh. Given at Berneslay, Friday 
after Annunciation B.V.M. 1350. Seal.small, illegible 
1 item 
 

26 Mar 1350 

U DDBM/1/5 Gift: Edmund Brookhols and John Webster of 
Bernysley to John Westyn jnr. of Bernysley, tailor  
Messuage at north end of Bernysley, and 1/2 acre 
butting on the E. of the messuage; close called 
Musterderoyde (lands of the lord, N., S., E., and 
common pasture of Bernysley W.); 1 acre in North 
Field of Bernysley (Mouse Croft N.). Messuage called 
Hyll in Darfelde. Messuage in Thyrnisco sometime of 
Richard Sybson. 1 acre in Swynbyll. 1 r. in the mill field 
on Claylades. 1 acre on Longlandes. 3 r. on 
(Brevebyttes ?) sometime of William Greve. 1 1/2 acre 
in Church Field. 2 acres in North Field of Bernysley 
sometime of John West of Wath. Messuage at S. end 
of Bernysley (brook N., highway S.) sometime of John 
Tynkar: With remainder to John Westyn senr., father of 
John Westyn jnr. Witn. Robert Galber, John Renett, 
Robert Mytton, John Tynkar and John Halle. Two seals 
(one a cock ?) Given at Bernysley 
1 item 
 
 

10 Feb 1455 
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U DDBM/1/6 Feoffment: Thomas Anne, Thomas Beamount and 

John Gysburne, chaplain to Richard Bosvill and wife 
Joan 
All the property in Keresforth hamlet of Barnslay and in 
Barnslay which they had of the gift of William Mirfeld 
and Percival Gresacre, esqs. :To R. and J. B. and 
heirs of their bodies, remainder to R. and heirs of his 
body and then to Isabel Langton. Power of attorney to 
Oliver Elistons, chaplain to deliver seisin. Witn. 
Thomas Everyngam, Aymer Burdhed, Robert Wortlay. 
Given at Barnslay 
1 item 
 

10 Jul 1460 

U DDBM/1/7 Bargain and Sale for £100: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Roxall, co. Warwick, esq., to Edward Oxley of 
Barnesley, yeoman 
Messuage in Barnesley called Broadyates (in tenure of 
Margarett Oxley, widow, mother of E. O., and of 
Mathew Browne) with 3 acres in the common fields: 
Reference to lease of premises to Thomas Oxley the 
father, dec'd, and his sons John and Thomas. Witn. 
Nicho. Brodeley, Richard Hawksworth, John Shirte, 
Will. Rich. 
1 item 
 

19 Nov 1638 

U DDBM/2 Brandesburton (East Riding) 
5 items 
 

1719 - 1800 

U DDBM/2/1 Lease for a year: Samuell Hassell senr., of 
Brandesburton esq., and his son Samuell jnr., to Rev. 
John Blower and Henry Pawson, merchant, both of 
York  
Manor of Brainsburton, and all property there and 
elsewhere in the co. York of Lady Anne Dacres, dec'd 
(not being parcel of Woodhall, Elwarby and Thartleby, 
and not lying in or extending into those places): To 
lead to a Release. Witn. C. Cayley junior, John 
Wilberfoss, George Place 
1 item 
 

22 Jul 1719 

U DDBM/2/2 Reconveyance on Redemption of Mortgage 
(i) William Garforth of York to 
(ii) Thomas Hassell of Thorp and 
(iii) Samuell Hassell senior, father of Thomas 
For £1500: as DDBM/2/1: Recites mortgages of 
DDBM/11/12 January 1725 and DDBM/22/23 July 
1719; and a Demise of the premises from Emmanuel 
Hospital, London, to Samuell Hassell senr., for lives of 
his sons Thomas and Ralph and of John second son of 
John Hassell of par. St. Giles in the Fields, co. 
Middlesex, brewer (29 July 1703).  

22 Sep 1729 
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Witn. Thrus. Topham, Thos. Barker, Robert Romans, 
John Hickson 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/2/3 Tenancy Agreement: at £10 rent: Thomas Hassell of 
Thorp, esq., to John Farthing of Rudston, yeoman  
2 closes called Little Leys and Nearer Leys: For same 
term as the farm in Brandburton leased by Thomas 
Hassell to John Farthing 
1 item 
 

26 Apr 1765 

U DDBM/2/4 Account of trees at Bransburton and Burshill. Endorsed 
'wch' Mr Hassell might have 'felld, and put the Mony in 
his own Pocket' 
1 item 
 

c. 1750 - 1799 

U DDBM/2/5 Account of division among the several proprietors of 
the assessment of 400 acres of low ground and carrs 
in Brandsburton as they are assessed by the Court of 
Sewers 
1 item 
 

late 18th cent. 

U DDBM/3 Burton Fleming (East Riding) 
23 items 
 

1612 - 1774 

U DDBM/3/1 Bargain and Sale for £20 ; Matthew Matson, yeoman 
to Robert Knowsley, gent., both of Burton Flemmynge  
Messuage, croft and 2 oxgangs: Witn. Thomas 
Stevenson, Thomas Harrison, Henry Easebie 
1 item 
 

1 Feb 1612 

U DDBM/3/2 Bargain and Sale: Matthew Smithe of Burton Fleminge, 
alias North Burton, yeoman to his son Robert  
Newly built house, 3 little parcels and 1 oxgang in Hall 
Dales. Recites conveyances: a) George, Marquis of 
Buckingham to James Barughe and Robert Browne of 
Burton Fleminge, yeomen: messuage, 3 little crofts, 1 
1/2 oxgangs in Hall Dales and Ownham and 7 oxgangs 
in the Bondage Fields, in occupation of Matthew Smith, 
23 November 1618; b) J. B. and R. B. to Matthew 
Smith: as a), 12 January 1618/9. Witn. James 
Barughe, John Winder, Thomas Barught 
1 item 
 

20 Jan 1624 

U DDBM/3/3 Copy Conveyance: Robert Knowsley, gent., and wife 
Anne to Rev. John Wynder and Thomas Haggett, 
yeoman, all of Burton Fleming alias North Burton 
Messuage with 7 oxgangs in the Bondage Feilds and 1 
oxgang in Hall Daile; and Mertson's House with 2 
oxgangs, all in Burton Fleming. Part of the manor, town 
or grange of Argam with the fourth part of Argam. 3  

20 Apr 1627 –  
6 Sep 1705 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 11 of 93 

 
oxgangs, 2 cottages and close called Froscall in 
Rudston: To use of R. and A. K. Witn. Thomas Warton, 
William Dixon, Richard Catherall, Bryan Turner. 20 
April 1627. Memorandum relating to payment of fee-
farm rent, the premises having been shared among the 
four daughters of Robert Knowsley. Copied from the 
original in hands of Charles Stouteville of Hunmanby.6 
September 1705 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/3/4 Copy Bargain and Sale for £300: Cuthbert Lascelles, 
gent., and wife Frances and Robert Lascelles gent. 
and wife Grace, all of Senerby under Cotcliffe to 
Robert Hovye of Coxwould 
Moiety of tithes of Bondage Feilds and of tithe barn 
and Tithe Leath Garth in Burton Fleming: Witn. Robert 
Ellis, Jo. Wearsdale, Robert Davyson, Anne Lascelles. 
12 November 1656. Copied from original in hands of 
Allane Lamont. 6 September 1677 
1 item 
 

12 Nov 1656 –  
6 Sep 1677 

U DDBM/3/5 Copy. Final Concord fro £100: Robert Havy, plaintiff 
and CuthbertLascelles and wife Grace, deforceants  
Moiety of barn in and tithes of Burton Fleming (Easter 
1657). Copied from original in hands of Allane Lamont 
(as DDBM/3/4) 
1 item 
 

15 Apr 1657 

U DDBM/3/6 Copy. Bargain and Sale for £120: Robert Hovye of 
Coxwould to Francis Styreing of Beswenby and Robert 
Ellis of Rudston, gents. 
Moiety of tithes of Bondage Feild and of tithe barn and 
Tithe Leath Garth in Burton Fleming, (as DDBM/3/4): 
To use of Robert Hovye for life, and then to his nephew 
Allane Lamont. Power of attorney to Rev. Nathaniel 
Grantham of Rudston to take seisin. Witn. Andrew 
Lamont, D. D., James Lamont, Jo. Wearsdale, Agnes 
Lamont, John Ombler, Euphemia Wearsdale. 21 May 
1657  Livery of Seisin. Witn. William Timperon, Henry 
Allenson, Robert Knowsley, Jo. Franrich, James 
Lamont, Charles Simpson, Thomas Lawson. 8 June 
1657. Copied from original in hands of Allane Lamont 
(as DDBM/3/4) 
1 item 
 

21 May 1657– 
 8 Jun 1657 

U DDBM/3/7 Conveyance: John to Robert Smyth both of North 
Burton, yeomen 
Messuage and 14 oxgangs (one known as Kirke 
Flattes), 3 crofts at S. end of North Burton, a little  
garth near Gravill Pitts there, a little croft over against 
the cottage called St. John's house, a little croft  

3 Jun 1657 
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adjoining Gipsey Race and croft called Dowble Garth 
adjoining But Land, all in North Burton alias Burton 
Fleming: Recites a conveyance from Robert Ellis, gent. 
and Allan Lamont, gent., and wife Isabell, all of 
Rudston, to John and Robert Smyth, of the premises 
together with 6 other oxgangs and a croft (8 January 
1657). Witn. Phillip Lutton, John Smith, Katherine 
Smith, Ann Smith  Endorsed with memorandum that 
Robert Smyth paid £330 for his share of the property 
and John Smith, £140 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/3/8 Deed of Partition: between Francis (elder) and Thomas 
(younger) sons of Robert Smith, dec'd, all of Burton 
Fleminge  
High and Low Closes, and Kirke Flatte with 
appurtenant gates, in Burton Fleminge: Further to Will 
of their father. Witn. Allane Lamont, Robert Simpson, 
James Lamont, John Smith, Michael [  ], Thomas [  ] 
1 item 
 

24 Jun 1665 

U DDBM/3/9 Lease and Release: for £350: Allane Lamont of Burton 
Fleming, gent., to John Bower of Bridlington Key, 
merchant  
Moiety of tithes of Bondage Feilds and of tithe barn and 
Tithe Leath Garth in Burton Fleming as DDBM/3/4 : 
With Bond for performance of covenants. Witn. Will. 
Peacock, William Rabye, Samuel Wearsdale. 27 - 28 
August 1677. Endorsement of attornment of Peter, 
Mary and Francis Smith, WilliamWarton, Stephen 
Jefferson, Charles Haggett Francis Rosse, George 
Tanton and William Woodall. 4 December 1677 
2 items 
 

27 Aug 1677- 
4 Dec 1677 

U DDBM/3/10 Deed of Partition between William Bower of Bridlington 
Key, merchant and John Knowsley of Burton Fleming, 
gent. 
Tithe barn and garth of Burton Fleming. William Bower 
to have the tithe barn lately erected at his expense and 
the S. part of the garth, John Knowsley to have the 
North part of the garth. Witn. John Bower, William 
Cowpland 
1 item 
 

10 Jun 1696 

U DDBM/3/11 Release for £40: John Smith jnr., of North Burton, 
yeoman to William Bower of Bridlington Key, merchant 
4 oxgangs in North Burton:Witn. Ann Wiley, Thomas 
Wriglesworth, John Wriglesworth 
1 item 
 
 

29 Dec 1697 
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U DDBM/3/12 Defeasance of DDBM/3/11. Conditional on repayment 

to William Bower of £42 8s 
1 item 
 

30 Dec 1697 

U DDBM/3/13 Conveyance: for £270: Charles Stouteville of 
Hunmanby, gent., (son and heir of Robert, son and heir 
of Charles Stouteville (both gents. of Hunmanby) by his 
wife Elizabeth a daughter of Robert Knowsley of Burton 
Fleming, gent., all dec'd) to William Bower of 
Bridlington Key, merchant  
Messuage called Martsons House with a croft and 2  
 
oxgangs in the fall called Bondage Feild (as DDBM/3/1) 
and messuage, closes and 8 oxgangs all in Burton 
Fleming: Witn. Tho. Willson, Will. Wilson, J. Grimston 
1 item 
 

6 Sep 1705 

U DDBM/3/14 Bond for performance of covenants of DDBM/3/13 
1 item 
 

6 Sep 1705 

U DDBM/3/15 Receipt: Catherine Bower of York, widow, to her son 
William Bower of Bridlington Key, gent. 
For £275 under will of her late husband William Bower 
of Bridlington Key, merchant. Witn. Fr. and Tho. 
Goulton 
1 item 
 

1 Aug 1707 

U DDBM/3/16 Acquittance: parties as DDBM/3/15 all claims and 
actions. Witn. Fr. Goulton, Phil. Yonge 
1 item 
 

15 Jun 1709 

U DDBM/3/17 Lease and Release for £46 4 s: Catherine, widow of 
William Bower of Bridlington Key, merchant to George 
Fennicke of Bridlington Key, dyer and wife Elizabeth, 
(only child living of John Smith jnr. of North Burton, 
dec'd 
As redemption of Mortgage as DDBM/3/11. Witn. Cha. 
Cartwright, Will Martin 
2 items 
 

8 - 9 Jun 1721 

U DDBM/3/18 Lease and Release: George and Elizabeth Fenwick 
(as DDBM/3/17) to John Fenwick of Hembsley 
Blackamoor, dyer  
Messuage, 7 1/2 oxgangs and 3 closes in North 
Burton: In trust, to use of G. F. Witn. Cha. Carwright, 
Tho. Wood 
2 items 
 

20 - 21 Nov 1723 

U DDBM/3/19 Lease and Release for £325: George and Elizabeth 
Fenwick (as DDBM/3/17) to Leonard Bower of 
Bridlington Key, merchant 

15 - 16 Apr 1725 
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Messuage, 7 1/2 oxgangs, South Croft, Penny Lane 
Close and Town End Close in North Burton: Witn. Jo. 
Grimston, Jno. Lyon, Robt. Grimston 
2 items 
 

U DDBM/3/20 Case and Opinion of C. Robinson  
Relating to the powers of 'B. L' to levy a Final Concord 
under a marriage settlement of 3 July 1720 - 4 July 
1720' 
1 item 
 

30 Nov 1754 

U DDBM/3/21 Agreement for Sale for £1920: Leonard Bower esq., 
and his only son John Bower, gent., both of Scourton 
to Thomas Wharram of Wetwang, gent. 
Messuage, 4 closes, 14 oxgangs, small parcel in that 
part of the field called Cross Stickley, South Croft, 
Town End Close and moiety of tithes of corn and grain 
in Burton Fleming 
1 item 
 

24 Dec 1754 

U DDBM/3/22 Rental of composition rents at North Burton due to 
Thomas Wharram 
1 item 
 

1769 

U DDBM/3/23 Tenancy Agreement: for 3 years at £110 rent: Thomas 
Wharram of Wetwang, gent., to Stephen Johnson of 
North Burton 
Farm at North Burton with 399 acres 3 rods 
1 item 
 

29 Dec 1774 

U DDBM/4 Cawthorne (West Riding) 
18 items 
 

29 Sep 1326 –  
1 May 1776 

U DDBM/4/1 Demise: Joan, widow of William de Hertford to 
Thomas, son of Denis ('Dionisius')de Broun (or Brom) 
of Calthorn: for her life  
Assart called Jonrodewade in Calthorn which Robert, 
son of William, formerly held from her for a term of 
years: rendering 3 s. 8 d. silver yearly. Taking 
sufficient heybote from the wood growing thereon to 
enclose the assart. Witn. William son of Adam de 
Calthorn, Robert son of William, Thomas son of 
Simon, Gilbert Emmot, Richard de Mikkelthwayt. 
Given at Pontefract, Michaelmass 20 Ed. II 
1 item 
 

29 Sep 1326 

U DDBM/4/2 Gift: Thomas son of William de Hertforth to Thomas 
son of Denis ('Dionisius') Hunt  
Messuage and adjacent croft and 5 r. lying severally 
in the town and fields of Calthorn, which Adam Stot 
formerly held of the donor in bondage: Witn. Thomas  

29 May 1334 
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de Staynton, Henry de Birthwayt, Robert son of 
William de Calthorn, Richard de Mikkelthwayt, Adam 
de Northcroft 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/4/3 Mortgage for £100: Raulfe Bosvile senr., of Wadworth 
to Ralfe Bosvile of Bradburne and Robert Bosvile of 
Aynefurth, co. Kent, esqs. 
3 tenements in Cawthorne (in tenures of Thomas 
Greene, Lawrence Moxon and [  ] Score) and 3 great 
closes in Cawthorne and Silckston (in tenure of [  ] 
Adde): Witn. Launcelot Lovelace, Nicholas Denley, 
Samuwell Hercy?) 
1 item 
 

20 Jan 1599 

U DDBM/4/4 Covenant to convey: for £66 5 s: Charles Bossevile of 
Bloorepipe, co. Staffs., to Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwayte, esqs.  
Moiety of property as DDBM/4/3: Further to a recited 
decree in Chancery in a suit between them. Witn.John 
Bridges, Thomas Peshall, John Woode, William 
Cawthorne 
1 item 
 

1 May 1633 

U DDBM/4/5 Agreement for Sale: for £340: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwait to Mathew Wentworth of Bretton Hall, esqs. 
Slackes Farm in Cawthorne 
1 item 
 

24 Oct 1633 

U DDBM/4/6 Bargain and Sale for £31.: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwaite alias Gumblethwaite, esq., to Thomas 
Wainewrighte of Cawthorne, yeoman  
Parcels in Buttynge, in New Close, in the Leis and in 
closes called the Whitestone and Rowlandes: Witn. 
Nicho. Brodeley, John Burdett 
1 item 
 

25 Oct 1633 

U DDBM/4/7 Bargain and Sale: for £22: Godfrey Bossvile of 
Gunthwaite alias Gumblethwaite, esq., to Robarte 
Hartley of Canon Hall, yeoman 
Close called the Scuffeild nigh Rawgreene, 2 lands in 
a close 'nigh the Rawgreene' and all right of G. B. in 
mowing the swathe in a close called Milne Oakes 
belonging to Canon Hall. Witn. Nicho. Brodeley, John 
Burdett, John Shirty (as DDBM/4/6) 
1 item 
 

25 Oct 1633 

U DDBM/4/8 Bargain and Sale: for £16 10 s: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwaite alias Gumblethwaite, esq. to Thomas 
Wallshawe of Cawthorne, yeoman  
2 lands in the Beanefurrows; the ends of 2 other lands  

25 Oct 1633 
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next the S. Hedge of the same close; 1 r. land arable 
in the South Field (the Shawes N., New Close S.); 3 
butts there adjoining Shawe Inge. Witn. Nicho. 
Brodeley, John Burdett (as DDBM/4/6) 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/4/9 Bargain and Sale for £11: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwaite alias Gumblethwaite, esq., to Charles 
Oxley of Barkehouse in Cawthorne, yeoman 
1 acre in close called Owlershawe. Witn. Nicho. 
Brodeley, John Burdett, Thomas Walsshaw 
1 item 
 

25 Oct 1633 

U DDBM/4/10 Lease for a year: John Shirt of Cawthorne to Godfrey 
Bossevile of Gunthwaite, esq.  
Tithes of the Window Feilds: Witn. Geo. Sedascue, 
Tim. Kent, Will. Benton 
1 item 
 

20 Nov 1676 

U DDBM/4/11 Lease for 21 years at £1 16. 6d. rent: William 
Boseville of Gunthwait, esq., to Sarah Hawksworth 
and Lyonel Hawksworth of Calthorn  
Messuage and 4 closes (4 acres): Witn. William 
Eastwood, R. Woolfinden. Small seal of Bosville arms 
1 item 
 

31 Jan 1716 

U DDBM/4/12 Copy Award of Richard Wilson between Sir William 
Wentworth and William Spencer, esq. 
(i) Sir William Wentworth is Lord of the manor of 
Cawthorne, and the owners and resiants of the 
manors of Canonhall and Barnby owe suit and service 
to his leet 
(ii) William Spencer committed trespass in digging 
clay and burning bricks on the wastes of Cawthorne 
and carrying them to his manor of Cannonhall, and 
shall pay 10 guineas damages and costs 
(iii) Parcel called Mill Green, lately made into a 
fishpond, lying eastward from the corn mill called 
Jawethouse Mill in Cawthorn (ancient course of the 
brook north, mill race south, extending from the mill to 
where the brook and mill race join) is the property of 
William Spencer 
(iv) The mill race is the boundary between manors of 
Cawthorne and Cannonhall 
1 item 

11 May 1743 

U DDBM/4/13 Agreement for Sale: for £510: Godfrey Bosville of 
Gunthwaite, esq., and John Cockshutt and Company of 
Huthwaite, par. Silstone, gent.  
A wood 'being the first fall called Margery Park': 
Provisions for felling and carting timber away. Armorial 
seals of the parties 
1 item 

1 May 1776 
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U DDBM/4/14 Covenant: Robert Hartley of Cannon Hall, par. 

Cawthorne, yeoman to William Bossevile of 
Gunthwaite, esq.  
For peaceful possession of messuage called Rawroyde 
in Caltheron alias Cawthorne, with close called Willkin-
Royde and its tithes, and a spring wood called Margery 
Park (50 acres) conveyed by Robert Hartley to William 
Bossevile by deed, of the same date. Witn. Math. 
Doyle, John Shirte. Seal, a boar's head couped 
1 item 
 

3 Dec 1650 

U DDBM/4/15 Contract for Sale until 20 October 1674 at £4 5s. an 
acre: George Sedascue of Gunthwaite, gent., to 
Lyonell Copley of Wadworth, esq.,  
Springwood in coppice called Margery Parke (70 
acres): Provisions for charcoaling. Witn. Geo. Barnby, 
Tho. Blake 
1 item 
 

3 May 1672 

U DDBM/4/16 Draft Assignment and Letter of Attorney: George 
Sedascue (as DDBM/4/15) now of Heath to Godfrey 
Bossevile of Gunthwaite, esq.  
Contract as DDBM/4/15 and all its benefits: Recites 
that G. S. acted therein for Godfrey Bossevile, then an 
infant 
1 item 
 

1684 

U DDBM/4/17 Abstract of a Grant: for £157 10s: John Spencer of 
Cannonhall, gent., and wife Anne to Godfrey Bosseville 
of Gunthwaite, esq. 
Tithes of messuage called Raw-roide and closes called 
High Bab, Thorn Bab, West Bab, Bab Ing, Bab Shaw, 
Babshaw Botham, Park Hall or High Park, Smythy 
Roide, Long Smithy Roide, Broom Smithy Royde, 
Smithy Royde Ing, Walker Carr Ing, Town Royd or 
Tenant Royd, Micklefield (formerly in two, Wainhouse 
Close and Barkhouse Close), Barkhouse Ing or 
Micklefield Botham, Barkhouse Yard, Well Close, New 
Royd alias Walshaw Close, Raw Royd Ing, Harriroyd 
Ing and Kent Royd (120 acres in all) and Margery Park 
(80 acres) 
1 item 
 

25 Apr 1699 

U DDBM/4/18 Agreement for Sale at £11 12. 6d. and acre: Hugh 
Bosvile of Gunthwait Hall, gent., father in law and 
guardian (and acting on behalf) of Godfrey Bosville 
only son of William Bosville of Gunthwaite Hall, esq., 
dec'd, to William Westby Cotton of Haigh Hall, par. 
Darton, gent.  
Wood in Margery Parke: Witn. John Denton, George 
Forrton gardener of Silkston. 18 April 1735. Endorsed  

18 Apr 1735 - 
18 Apr 1738 
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with receipts for £970 13. 7 1/2 d. in all, paid under the 
Agreement. 1736 - 1738  Attached is an account 
relating to the transaction. circa 1738 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/5 Caythorpe (East Riding) 
4 items 
 

1800 - 1831 

U DDBM/5/1 Plan of lordship of Caythorp, property of H. Hudson 
Esq. 
Surveyed by David Tate 
1 plan 
 

1800 

U DDBM/5/2 Particulars of Sale: manor of High and Low Caythorpe 
with 2 farms (1306 acres 2 r. 28 p.) 
1 item 
 

6 May 1830 

U DDBM/5/3 Plan to accompany Particulars of Sale: manor of High 
and Low Caythorpe with 2 farms (DDBM/5/2) 
1 plan 
 

6 May 1830 

U DDBM/5/4 Draft Receipt for £36,250 paid by Sir Francis Burdett of 
Foremark, co. Derby and John Hall of Scorbrough, esq. 
(trustees under Will of William Bosville of Thorpe Hall, 
esq.) to Rev. Charles Drake Barnard of Lincoln 
(devisee and trustee for sale under Will of Harrington 
Hudson of Bessingby, esq., dec'd) 
For purchase of manor of High and Low Claythorpe 
1 item 
 

13 Jun 1831 

U DDBM/6 Darfield (West Riding) 
4 items 
 

20 Dec 1541 - 
10 Feb 1750 

U DDBM/6/1 Demise for 30 years: at 46 s. 8 d. rent: John Boswell 
and wife Jane to William Hill of Worsborghe  
A mease and lands called Birkhouses in Derfeld:  
1 item 
 

20 Dec 1541 

U DDBM/6/2 Copy Lease for 17 years: for £66: Godfrey Bossevyle 
of Gunnoldthwayt, esq., to Nicholas Wheatley, gent.  
3 messuages and 5 cottages in Ardysley par. Derffeld: 
With remainder to Christopher, son and heir of 
Alexander Bossevyle and heirs male of his body, then 
to heirs male of the bodies of James Bossevyle, gent., 
dec'd (father of Alexander Bossevyle) of Richard 
Bossevyle, esq., (great-grandfather of Godfrey 
Bossevyle), of Godfrey Bossevyle and of Gervase 
Bossevile of the Newe Hall, esq., successively 
1 item 
 
 

12 Jan 1556 
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U DDBM/6/3 Memorandum of Agreement for sale: Godfrey Bosvill, 
esq., to John Cockshutt of Huthwaite, gent. 
A parcel of hedges at Newhall, par. Darfield 
1 item 
 

14 Dec 1748 

U DDBM/6/4 Agreement between Amos Rich for Godfrey Bosville 
and John Cockshutt  
For £90 John Cockshutt shall have liberty to cut down 
timber in 2 woods called Bower Spring and a Rein in 
Fish Close  
1 item 
 

10 Feb 1750 

U DDBM/7 Gunthwaite (West Riding) 
15 items 
 

 14 Jan 1405 –  
4 Nov 1769 

U DDBM/7/1 Confirmation: Sir Thomas Stanley, Lord Muntegle, Lord 
of Brereley and his son (and heir apparent) Sir William 
Stanley to Godfrey Bossevile  
Manor of Gomuldthweyth: Recites a grant by Sir Robert 
Nevuile of Brereley (ancestor of Sir T. S.) to John 
Gomuldthweyth (ancestor of G. B.) of the manor and 
an assart there called Colmanclyff, at a yearly rent of 5 
d. Signed by G. B. 
1 item 
 

 4 Aug 1550 

U DDBM/7/2 Copy Order (of Council in the North ?) in suit between 
Godfraye Boswell of Gunthwate and Frauncis Wortley 
of Wortley, esqs., concerning breach of the dam and 
banks at Gunthwaite Mill and the banks of the water 
course to the said mill in Holand Swayne (which dam 
and banks have customarily been made and repaired 
on Holand Swayne More).  
Godfraye Boswell to have the dam and water course as 
'by the moste part pf Threscoore yers paste'without 
hindrance of F. W. 
1 item 
 

 27 Feb 1564 

U DDBM/7/3 Subpoena further to action in Court of Requests 
(Godfey Bossevile v Francis Wortley, Richard 
Woodcoke, Raufe Woodcoke, Nicholas Cocke and 
others)  
To the defendants, to suffer G. B. to enjoy waste 
grounds and watercourses as specified in an order of 
the court. (3 February 1571) 
1 item 
 

 28 May 1571 

U DDBM/7/4 Examination in the Consistory Court at York in suit 
between Francis Bosvile alias Boswell, gent., and 
Richard Wortley, esq.,  
Concerning tithes of Gunthwait payable to parsonage 
of Penistone 
1 item 

 20 Jan 1589 
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U DDBM/7/5 Deed to declare uses of a Fine: Godfrey Bossevile of 

Gunthwaite, esq., to Rowland Wilson of the Inner 
Temple and George Ingram of Cliffords Inn, gents. 
Capital messuage of the manor of Gunthwaite with 
lands called Hall Inge, Brookeleaze, the Oakes, 
Oxeclose, Micklethwaite Feilds, Pickeles, Law Inge, 
Fernehill, Great Gleadhold, Wets Gleadhold, Hunger 
Hill, Darstin Royde, the Leaze, the Rayles, Rosecroft, 
Rosecroft Head, Rosecroft Inge, Smith Flatt, Fatt 
Pasture, Haudrydinge, Birderoyd, Cuckold Carre, 
Burnecottes, Cowe Close, Norcroft, Reynolds Royde, 
Burderoyd Head, the Cloughe, Litle Hesles, Great and 
Little Milnefields: To G. B. and Heirs. Witn. Jam. Kyrle, 
Martin Cooper, Ric. Aske, Henry Man 
1 item 
 

 15 Jun 1644 

U DDBM/7/6 Plans of house 'that Godfrey Bossvile intended to have 
built at Gunthewait in about 1690'  
5 items 
 

c. 1690 

U DDBM/7/7 Bond in £10 by Thomas Roebuck of Roydhouse, par. 
Kirkburton, yeoman  
Not to hunt in grounds of Godfrey Bosevile without 
licence. Witn. George Walker, Jo. Morton 
1 item 
 

 28 Apr 1697 

U DDBM/7/8 Portion of a rental of Gunthwait 
1 item 
 

 1723 

U DDBM/7/9 Case and Opinion of John Spencer: a right of way 
through the Lower Fold to Town Field Pasture. 
Endorsed, 'A right of way near Denby...' 
1 item 
 

 23 Oct - 4 Nov 
1769 

U DDBM/7/10 Copy Agreement for Sale at £7 15s. an acre: William 
Bosseville to W. Spencer 
Wood in Swifts Spring: Witn. Wm. Wheatley, Ed. Bunny 
1 item 
 

 6 Mar 1721 

U DDBM/7/11 Agreement for Sale at £11 15s an acre: Godfrey 
Bossville of Gunthwait, esq., to William Westby Cotton 
of Haigh Hall, par. Darton, gent.  
Wood in Great and Little Burnt Coat Woods, Great and 
Little Cuckold Car Woods in Gunthwaite: Witn. Bridget 
Bosvile, Jona. Parkins 
1 item 
 

 24 Jun 1738 

U DDBM/7/12 Gift: John Skotte, John Peke, Sir William Srawdere, 
John Coryngham and Roger de Kechyn, chaplains to 
Sir William Dronsfeld, Sir John de Calthorn, parson of a 
moiety of the church of Huland, Sir John Walker,  

14 Jan 1406 
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chaplain, Thomas Wynteworth and Robert Corff of 
Wakefeld 
Manor of Gunythwaythe and all property they had of 
the gift of William Bossevyle of Neuhall: Witn. Nicholas 
Burdyte, Robert de Barneby, Richard Osxpryng, John 
Henryson, Richard Turton. Given at Gunylthwayte 
Thursday after Saint Hillary, 7 Henry IV. Seals, (i) and 
(ii) missing, (iii) armorial, a lion rampant (iv) 'R' 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/7/13 Grant.: John Calthorne, parson of a moiety of the 
church of Huland, John Walker, chaplain, Thomas 
Wyntworth and Robert Corff of Wakefeld to John 
Bosvyll of Ardeslay  
Reversion of manor of Gunthwayte and of property 
there and in Denby sometime of Thomas Bosvyll of 
Ardeslay, at present held for their lives by William 
Bosvyll and wife Joan: When the estate was granted by 
the grantors to W. and J. Bosvyll, the reversion was 
granted to Sir William de Dronsfeld now dec'd. Witn. 
John Amyas, Robert Monk, John Frankys, John 
Holgrave (or Holgrene), John de Holdeworth. Given at 
Westbretton, Sunday after Circumcision. 8 Henry 
1 item 
 

2 Jan 1407 

U DDBM/7/14 Letter of Attorney: Edmund Hastynges, sheriff of 
Yorkshire to Robert de Staynton, bailiff of the liberty of 
Osgodcrosse, Thomas Cartwryght and John Calsworth  
To execute writ to deliver seisin to John Bosvyll of 
Erdeslay of the manor of Gunnylthwayt which he 
recovered in the King's court at Westminster from 
William de Stavelay and his wife Joan: Given at York 
Castle, Tuesday before St. Bartholomew, apostle. 11 
Henry IV 
1 item 
 

19 Aug 1410 

U DDBM/7/15 Demise: John Bosvile of Erdeslay to William de 
Staveley and wife Joan, for her life  
Manor of Gunnylthayt with 1 messuage, 70 acres land, 
4 acres meadow and 6 acres wood in Calthorne, which 
he lately recovered from them: Witn. Richard Burdet, 
Richard Oxspring, John Halished, Thomas del Rodes, 
John Scotte. Given at Gunnylthwayt, Friday before Nat. 
B.V.M. 11 Henry IV 
1 item 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Sep 1410 
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U DDBM/8 Helmsley (North Riding) 

1 item 
 

 4 Aug 1664 

U DDBM/8/1 Lease for 21 years at £200 rent: George, Duke of 
Buckingham to William Watson of Cockfeild, county 
Durham, esq.  
Messuage, the castle and castle dykes (16 acres 2 r.) 
Apple Garth except the way there (5 acres 3 r. 3 p.), 
Coney Garth (4 acres 3 r 20 p.), Lower Lawnes (10 
acres 1 r.), Swangsfeild (10 acres) and the West Parke 
(810 acres): Witn. Henry Brandreth, Br. Fairfax, Wm. 
Roll, John Fisher, John Wicliffe 
1 item 
 

 4 Aug 1664 

U DDBM/9 Hessle 
1 item 
 

 15 Mar 1364 

U DDBM/9/1 Gift: William, clerk, of Walton to William, son of John 
Shiphird of Walton  
1 rod at Hesel Well, sometime of Lawrence de 
Dronsfeld: Witn. John de Mallyng, Adam de Heghrod, 
John King, James del Hall, Thomas Wright. Given at 
Sandale, Friday before Ramispalma, 28 Edward III 
1 item 
 

 15 Mar 1364 

U DDBM/10 Hoyland Swain (West Riding) 
6 items 
 

 10 Feb 1549 –  
8 May 1575 

U DDBM/10/1 Quitclaim. Godfrey Bossevile to William Swynden of 
Gomuldthayth, labourer  
Messuage called Westthorp in Holandsuayn reserving 
suit of court at G. B.'s manor of Gomildthwayth): Given 
at Westthorpe 
1 item 
 

 8 Feb 1550 

U DDBM/10/2 Bargain and Sale for £26 6. 8d: William Swenden, late 
of Gomuldthwayte, yeoman and son and heir of 
Thomas Swyenden of Westthorpe, dec'd, to Godfrey 
Bossevill of Gomuldthwayte, esq.  
Messuage called Westthorpe, in occupation of 
Richarde Holme, with appertenances in town and fields 
of Howlandswayne, par. Sylkestone: Seal, a bear's 
head erected between 'G B' 10 February 1549  
Endorsement of enrolment before Hugh Sayvile J.P. 
and Henry Broune, Clerk of the Peace for the West 
Riding. 15 July 1549 
1 item 
 

 10 Feb 1549- 
15 Jul 1549 

U DDBM/10/3 Feoffment further to DDBM/10/2: for £26: Parties and 
property as DDBM/10/1. Witn. William Swydale 
(Snydale?), gent., Percival Hawisworth, clerk, Robert  

 10 Feb 1549 
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Brodehede, Thomas Abram, John Rodes. Given at 
Howlandswayn 
Endorsement of livery and seisin before same witn.and 
Robert Weste 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/10/4 Counterpart of DDBM/10/3 
1 item 
 

 c. 1549 

U DDBM/10/5 Quitclaim: John Swenden, late of Pengston, tailor, 
second brother of William Swynden and son of Thomas 
Swenden of Westthorp in. Hollandswayne, dec'd, to 
Godfrey Bossevile of Gomulthwayte, esq.  
Messuage and lands in par. Silkston bought by G. B. 
from W. S., (as DDBM/10/2?). Witn. William Snydale, 
gentleman, Sir Hugh Sylvester, clerk, Thomas 
(Wesste?), Richard Hadoke, John Collyns, John 
Neubolte, Wyllm. Lunte 
1 item 
 

 24 Dec 1552 

U DDBM/10/6 Exchange: Frauncis Bosvile of Gunthwait alias 
Gomblethwayte, esq. and John Haukesworthe of Brode 
Oke alias Roides and his brother Peter Haukesworthe 
of Claytenhall, yeoman  
J and P. H. to have messuage in Westthorpe in 
Hoilandswayn (in tenure of William Walton) and all 
appertenances in Hoilandswayne.F. B. to have parcel 
called Mykellthwait Feildes in Gonthwait (on W. side of 
Gonthwait Hall and adjoining Yng Byrcheworth): Witn. 
Richard Burdett, Robert and Rychard Bylcylffe, Willm. 
Craven, Willm. Catttlin, Richard Hackesworthe, 
(James?) Hackesworth 
1 item 
 

 8 May 1575 

U DDBM/11 Langsett (West Riding) 
2 items 
 

 2 Feb 1367 –  
2 Aug 1814 

U DDBM/11/1 Copy Gift: Robert son of Edmund de Berneby, lord of 
Midhop, to J.D. of Langside 
All lands in Langside sometime of John, son of 
Thomas: Rendering 11s. 6d. and doing two suits at 
donor's court of Midhop ad sex decimvas (up to sixteen 
measures ?). Witn. William de Hatterslay, Richard de 
Hordryn, John de Swynden, John de Ronksley, Elyas 
del Street. Given at Langsid, Purification B.V.M. 1366. 
Seventeenth century copy on paper 
1 item 
 
 
 
 

2 Feb 1367 
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U DDBM/11/2 Notice. William Payne, as owner of Langside Moors, 

has given the game there ('much destroyed by the 
inclemancy of the preceeding winter') a 'Jubilee for the 
Season'. Trespassers will be prosecuted 
1 item 
 

2 Aug 1814 

U DDBM/12 Mappleton (East Riding) 
1 item 
 

early 13th cent. 

U DDBM/12/1 Gift: William de Ori to Hamo, son of Alan Riling of 
Hedon 
1 bovate in Mapelton, excepting the toft belonging to it 
(i.e. the other of the two bovates sometime held by 
Reginald Westiby, son of Roger, and lying next to two 
bovates which Walter Angelus sometime held, on the 
S., towards the sun. ('Ex parte Australi versus solem')): 
Doing forinsec service for one bovate where 48 
carucates make a knight's fee. Witn. Simon de Stutevill, 
William de Robertcot, Robert de Fridby, Yvo Sotwain, 
Peter son of Robert de Rolleston and John his brother, 
Robert Cokerel, Robert son of Matthew Cockerel, Hugh 
de Aike, Henry de Preston, Henry de Arnestorpe and 
Gerard his brother, Peter de Otringham, Martin his son, 
Adam de Ross, Henry de Stutevill, Robert de Flinton 
1 item 
 

 early 13th cent. 

U DDBM/13 Meltham (West Riding) 
1 item 
 

 22 Oct 1621 

U DDBM/13/1 Feoffment: Thomas Oldfeild, yeoman to Edmund 
Eastwood, butcher, both of Melthame  
Closes called Wodd Dole, (lands of Edweard Taylear 
W.; and of Robert Waterhous E. and N.) and Jellop 
Roide (lands of Sir Richard Beaumonte E.; of Edward 
Taylear W.;and of John Gleadhill S.; le Croddinhooles 
N.) in Melthame. Further to marriage of E. E. and 
Elizabeth, a daughter of Thomas Oldfeild. Witn. 
Edward Taylear, James and John Armitage 
1 item 
 

 22 Oct 1621 

U DDBM/14 Midhope (West Riding) 
16 items 
 

 [1270] - 1726 

U DDBM/14/1 Copy Grant: Thomas de Furnivall, son of Thomas de 
Furnivall to Elias Middop, (who holds the manor of 
Midhop of the grantor, rendering 5s. 6d, yearly and 
doing suit of his court at Sheffelde)  
E. de M. and his heirs and assigns (religious and Jews 
excepted) not to be put on any inquisition, jury of 
examination at the court of Sheffeilde, not to be 
compelled to swear there in any judicial process; and to  

n.d. [1270 - 
1279] 
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be quit of any other services and customs formerly 
recorded by the grantor or his ancestors for the said 
manor: Witn. Sir William de Morten, Sir Ralph de 
Crumwell, Elias de Bosco, Ralph de Birley, Ralph de 
Auley, Adam de Mora, Adam de Bosco, Thomas de 
Holdworth, Thomas de Morewood  Endorsed that the 
copy was made 2 Mar. 1632 by Anthony Moorewood 
and Thomas Gallard, from the original then in custory 
of Anthony Moorewood of Alfreton, co. Derby, gent. 
1 item 

U DDBM/14/2 Midhope Manor Court Roll 
1 item 
 

 7 Oct 1553 

U DDBM/14/3 Deed to declare uses: John Beighton of Smalfeild to 
John Wainewright of Over Midhop, yeomen  
Of a Final Concord following conveyances  (i) John 
Greaves of Hunshelf and Thomas Greaves of Rolleston 
Park, par. Tutbury, co. Staffs., yeoman to J. B. and J. 
W.: messuage and lands in Over Midhop and Nether 
Midhop: ('lately')  (ii) J. G. and T. G. to J. B.: messuage 
in Over Midhop with closes called Tenter Croft, Lathe 
Croft, Meale Landes and Thickwoodes, 6 doles in 
Byerdolefeild (mentions Lowmy land furlong, the 
Intackes, Wharelandes furlong, Long Acre, Acres 
furlong, Westfeild furlong and close called Bateroyd): 6 
May 1591  (iii) To J. W.: Yngcroft, the Hollme and 8 
byerdoles in the Byerdolefeild of Over Midhope 
(mentions Fallderynges, Ellroogrevetop, Longroodes, 
Townefeild yate, Kilnepece furlong, Birkinland Furlong, 
Sherbordes furlong, Croftes Endes and Newe Ynges). 
1 May 1591. Witn. John Walker, John Wordesworth, H. 
Weste, Thomas Greaves, George Hopkinson. 26 
February 1592 
1 item 
 

 1 May 1591 - 
26 Feb 1592 

U DDBM/14/4 Lease for 10 years at 4 d rent: for £25. Thomas 
Hatterslaye of Denibie to Thomas Barber of Derwen, 
co. Derby, husbandman  
Messuage and lands in Midop in tenure of Thomas 
Oldham (excepting the dower of Doynes wife of T. O.): 
Witn. Edmund Barber, George Brownell, George 
Tincker 
1 item 
 

 18 Aug 1594 

U DDBM/14/5 Receipt for £30 paid by Anthony Morewood of 
Hunsworth, co. Derby, gent., to Thomas Barnebye of 
Barnebye Hall, esq.  
Being residue of purchase money for the manor of 
Middopp. Witn. Edm. Cundy, Henr. Shawe 
1 item 
 

 15 Aug 1621 
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U DDBM/14/6 Bargain and Sale: in a division of the estate of John 

Beighton of Smallfeild, dec'd: Jeremiah Warde of Little 
Ashoppe, par. Hope gent. , and wife Elizabeth to Jane, 
wife of Thomas Brooke of Dodworth, yeoman, 
(Elizabeth and Jane being daughters of J. B.)  
Tenement called the Shaw in Middop: In exchange for 
£20 and lands of J. B. in Smallfeild. Witn. Nic. 
Sheirclyffe, Tho. Bocking, Law. Greene, Robt., Eyre, 
Tho. Bocking. 7 July 1648  Endorsement of livery of 
seisin. Witn. Henr. and William Waterhouse, William 
Shaw, M. Boothe. 25 July 1649 
1 item 
 

 7 Jul 1648 –  
25 Jul 1649 

U DDBM/14/7 Bond in £160: James Robarts of Woodall in Holmfirth, 
yeoman and wife Elizabeth, daughter of Thomas 
Hattersley of Middhoppe, yeoman, to her father T. H.  
E. R. being entitled to a moiety of the tenement in 
Middope in which her father lives, from his death for 
term of her life; and he having paid to them £66 for her 
child's portion; they now undertake that the eldest son 
of T. H. may have the whole of the tenement, free of 
any claim from them. Witn. Elias and Hen. Morton, 
Oliver Roberts 
1 item 
 

 21 Feb 1657 

U DDBM/14/8 Memorandum of Agreement: Ralph Saunderson and 
Thomas Hattersley  
T. H. to have a way 5 yards broad from his close called 
Laithcrofte. R. S. to have a way 'three or four times in a 
year upon necessity', through T. H.'s close called 
Meale an Burght to R. S.'s close called Newclose. 
'These articles to be affixed unto certain Articles 
Indented touching the division and partition of the 
Townfeeld of Middop', of the same date. Witn. Jo. 
Sotwell, Joseph Charlesworth, Joseph Eyre 
1 item 
 

 12 Dec 1674 

U DDBM/14/9 Bond in £200: Daniell Rich of Smallshawe and John 
Wainwright jnr., Ralph Saunderson, William Cook and 
Thomas Hattersley all of Middop to Jonathan Beighton 
of Hansworth, yeoman  
For peaceful possession by J. B. (from 25 March 
1676)of 5 acres 2 r. 18 p. in the Townefeeld of Middop 
(adjoining W. side of lands allotted to R. S. and shortly 
to be inclosed with a wall, further to Agreement 
between them, dated 12 December 1674); and for 
execution by them to him of any further assurances of 
the premises as he might request during the next 7 
years: Witn. Daniel Rich junior, John Lockwood, Henr. 
Jackson, George Hey, Martin Jepson 
1 item 

 26 Dec 1674 
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U DDBM/14/10 Quitclaim: Daniel Rich, John Wainwright, Ralph 

Saunderson, William Cooke and Jonathan Beighton to 
Thomas Hattersley (all as DDBM/14/9 )  
4 closes or inclosures called Hassels and Meale and 
Bought, and Eldergreves, Narfolderings and 
Farfolderings (12 acres 3 r. 27 p.) in all in Middop: 
Further to an Agreement for 'the division and partition 
of the Townfield land of Middop', (12 December 1674). 
Reserving rights of way laid down in that Agreement. 
Witn. John Beighton, James Bagshawe, Martin Jepson, 
Henry Jackson 
1 item 
 

 9 Feb 1678 

U DDBM/14/11 Deed to declare uses: Godfrey Bosvile of Gunthwaite, 
esq. and Henry Hall of Stumperlow, gent. 
H. H. having demised the manor of Meddopp to G. B. 
for 1000 years, by deed of same date; and having 
surrendered to him all his copyhold land in the manor 
of Sheffeild; as soon as the necessary fine and 
conveyances of the manor of Meddopp are completed 
from H. H. and wife Sarah to G. B., he will pay 
scheduled creditors of H. H. as far as £2,250 will allow 
(and any balance to H. H.), and will surrender the said 
copyhold lands to such persons and uses as Sarah 
shall appoint: Schedule of creditors annexed. Witn. W. 
Simpson, Wm.Ward, J. Banks. 15 April 1690  Endorsed 
with receipt for the £250 purchase money. Witn. 
Joseph Banks, Joseph Jolley. 28 December 1691 
1 item 
 

 15 Apr 1690 - 
28 Dec 1691 

U DDBM/14/12 Meddop alias Medhop Manor Court Book 
1 item 
 

7 Oct 1691- 
1 Jun 1704 

U DDBM/14/13 Leases for 21 years: for 25s: Godfrey Boseville of 
Gunthwait, esq., to Richard Bagshaw, gent., and 
Thomas Charlesworth, yeoman, both of Castleton, co. 
Derby  
Copper, lead and all other mines in G. B.'s manors of 
Over and Nether Midhop (coal mines excepted): 
Rendering a twelfth part of all ore, and paying 40 
guineas to Bridget, wife of G. B. when they have made 
£100 profit. Witn. Edmund Howe, John Barber, Jos. 
Morton 
2 items 
 

 12 Feb 1697 

U DDBM/14/14 Agreement: John Greaves grants to Thomas 
Hattersley, both of Middop, a right of way through the 
fold lying S. and E. of J. G.'s dwelling, to lead manure 
from T. H.'s south fould and that part of the Backlane 
adjoining.  
T. H. 'may have a writeing' if he will pay the cost; and J.  

 9 Jan 1701 
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G. likewise, a counterpart. Witn. John Wainwright, 
Joshua Wilkinson 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/14/15 Final Concord for £60: Edward Eyre, plaintiff and 
Thomas Hattersley, deforceant  
Messuage, garden, orchard, 7 acres land, 7 acres 
meadow and 10 acres pasture in Upper Middop 
1 item 
 

 12 Nov 1726 

U DDBM/14/16 Final Concord for £60: Edward Eyre, plaintiff and 
Thomas Hattersley, deforceant  
Messuage, garden, orchard, 7 acres land, 7 acres 
meadow, and 10 acres pasture in Upper Middop. As 
DDBM/14/15 
1 item 
 

 12 Nov 1726 

U DDBM/15 Oxspring (West Riding) 
10 items 
 

 26 Sep 1549 –  
6 Oct 1747 

U DDBM/15/1 Oxspring Manor Court Roll. 26 September 1549, 29 
October 1575 
1 item 
 

 26 Sep 1549 –  
29 Oct 1575 

U DDBM/15/2 Covenant to levy a Fine: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwait, esq., and Rev. Edmund Cundy of Wortley  
G. B.'s manor of Oxespringe and all his property there 
and in Roughebirchworth and Thurguland (i.e. manor of 
Oxspringe with 11 messuages, 2 cottages, 150 acres 
land, 20 acres meadow, 150 acres pasture, 40 acres 
wood and 200 acres moor): To use of G. B. Witn. 
William Shirt, Thomas Eyre, John Micklethwaite, 
Edward Hynchclyffe 
1 item 
 

 26 Dec 1624 

U DDBM/15/3 Covenant to levy a Fine: Godfrey Bossevile of 
Gunthwaite, esq. and Rev. Edmund Cundy of Wortley  
G. B.'s manor of Oxespringe and all his property there 
and in Roughebirchworth and Thurguland, (i.e. manor 
of Oxespringe with 11 messuages, 2 cottages, 150 
acres land, 20 acres meadow, 150 acres pasture, 40 
acres wood and 200 acres moor): To use of G. B. Witn. 
William Shirt, Thomas Eyre, John Micklethwaite, 
Edward Hynchclyffe. Not executed 
1 item 
 

 14 Nov 1645 

U DDBM/15/4 Presentments in Oxspringe manor court 
1 item 
 

 14 Nov 1645 

U DDBM/15/5 Pains laid at Oxspringe manor court 
1 item 

 14 Nov 1645 
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U DDBM/15/6 Lease for 13 years at £25 rent: Godfrey Bosevile of 

Tunthwaite Hall, par. Peniston, esq. to Francis 
Wordsworth of Stainbrough par. Silkston, miller  
Oxspring Mill on river Dun, consisting of two pair of 
stones and two kilns under on roof: Witn. Robert Firth, 
Jane Ellis, Nathan Staniforth 
1 item 
 

 23 Mar 1685 

U DDBM/15/7 Oxspring Manor Call Roll 
1 item 
 

 5 Oct 1741 – 
 6 Oct 1747 

U DDBM/15/8 Oxspring Manor Verdict 
1 item 
 

 5 Oct 1741 

U DDBM/15/9 Oxspring Manor Verdict 
1 item 
 

 6 Oct 1747 

U DDBM/15/10 Oxspring Manor Jury List 
1 item 
 

n.d. [Oct 1747] 

U DDBM/16 Penistone (West Riding) 
16 items 
 

 1545 - 1819 

U DDBM/16/1 List of presentations to the living of Penistone 
1 item 
 

 1545 - 1648 

U DDBM/16/2 Final Concord of £40: Godfrey Bosvile, plaintiff and 
Amery Burdett, deforceant, esq.: 60 acres pasture in 
Penyston  
1 item 
 

 2 May 1557 

U DDBM/16/3 Copy. Presentments of churchwardens and constables 
of Peniston to articles of Commissioners for charitable 
uses  
Lands, rents and deeds relating to the parish and 
school, wrongfully detained 
1 item 
 

 1613 

U DDBM/16/4 Lease for 20 years: Godfrey Boswell of Gunthwayt, 
esq., George Burdet of Demby, gent., Roger 
Michelthwayt of Ingbirchworth, Raph. Wordisworth of 
Snodell, Emer Rich, Thomas Eyre, John Michelthwayt, 
John Preist, William Hinchley and William Greaves, 
yeomen, parishioners and owners of lands in Peniston, 
to Francis Okey, vicar and schoolmaster of Peniston, 
Richard Rich, Richard Michelthwayt, Edward Hinchley 
and Richard Walter, yeomen of Peniston and Richard 
Hey, B. A.  
House in tenure of Ralph Roodes with lands (years rent 
8 s.); house in tenure of Francis Catlin (yearly rent 7 
d.); 2 parcels in grounds belonging to the Scholehill, in  

 18 Sep 1616 
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tenure of William Wordsworth, (yearly rent 2 s. 7.); 
house in tenure of James Marsden (yearly rent 6 d.), 
parcels in tenure of Thomas Wordesworth, gentleman, 
lying mixed with land of Shepeardes Castle (yearly rent 
6 s. 8 d.), 2 parcels in East Feild in tenure of Thomas 
Woodcocke (yearly rent 5 s.), stable in tenure of 
Mathew Robuck (yearly rent 20 d.), all in Peniston: 
Rendering the yearly rents to the schoolmaster, or the 
lessors. Recites that Richard Hey is the late 
schoolmaster, and the specified arrears of rents from 
the premises and from School-lands are due to him. 
The lessees are to make the most they can from the 
profits and issues of the premises and pay the surplus 
(over the rents reserved as above) to R. H. to pay off 
those arrears. If any of those in arrears pay off R. H., 
the property they occupy shall be exempt from the 
provisions of the lease. Not executed 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/16/5 Order of West Riding Quarter Sessions for repair of 
bridge over river Dunne at Oxspringe Milnes, ('being 
the high roade way between ...Lancastershire and 
Cheshire'), at the charge of the parish of Peniston. 20 
January 1641 
Endorsed with list of churchwardens and overseers for 
Peniston parish 
1 item 
 

 1639 - 1641 

U DDBM/16/6 Survey of lands of Penistone School with a valuation 
'made about 8 years agoe' 
1 item 
 

 8 May 1678 

U DDBM/16/7 Rental of Penistone School lands 
1 item 
 

 16 May 1678 

U DDBM/16/8 'Catalogue of the Writings concerning the Free 
Grammar Schoole of Penistone, and the Revennues 
thereof, now kept in the Church there' 
1 item 
 

 21 Sep 1678 

U DDBM/16/9 List of rent charges belonging to Penistone School 
1 item 
 

 c. 1678 

U DDBM/16/10 Copy Inspeximus of a Decree (12 June 1677) of 
Commissioners under Statute for Pious Uses 
appointing Godfrey Bosevile, esq., Syvanus Rich, 
Robert Blackburn, George Walker, Josias Wordsworth, 
William Beever, Arthur Hinchcliff and Francis Morton, 
gents., all of Peniston, and the vicar of Peniston, as 
feoffees and trustees of Peniston School lands 
1 item 

 28 Nov 1678 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 31 of 93 

 
U DDBM/16/11 Surrender and Admission in Peniston manor court: 

Francis Burdett, gent., and wife Rachel, Humphrey 
Marler, gent., and wife Esther, George Dale, gent. and 
wife Ruth, Elkanah Rich, gent. , and wife Margaret to 
Gilbert Keene, gent. and wife Rebecca and heirs of 
their bodies  
Third part of a messuage, barn, stables, folds and out 
houses in Peniston: Signature of William Bossevile, 
steward 
1 item 
 

 12 Jun 1683 

U DDBM/16/12 Notice: Penistone Court Baron to be held 
1 item 
 

 19 Nov 1696 

U DDBM/16/13 Acquittance: John Ramsden, schoolmaster of the 
Grammar School of Penistone (with the consent of 
Elkanah Rich, John Wood, William Fenton, George 
Walker, John Micklethwait, gents. and Edmund Hough, 
vicar of Peniston, feoffees of the school), to William 
Bosseville of Gunthwait, esq. 
For £20 under Will of George Sedasque, great uncle of 
W. B. by marriage, for the benefit of the master of the 
school. Further to a recited order under a Commission 
for Charitable uses (5 December 1715). There are 9 
witnesses and 15 'principle inhabitants' of Peniston 
sign as agreeing to the payment 
1 item 
 

 5 Mar 1717 

U DDBM/16/14 Copy Agreement of 20 parishioners at a meeting to 
settle the dues to the vicar of Penistone 
1 item 
 

 7 Jan 1720 

U DDBM/16/15 Agreement for Sale: for £1800: Hugh Hamersley and 
his father in law Thomas Archdale to Godfrey Bosvile: 
property (tenants named) in Pennystone 
1 item 
 

 11 Aug 1748 

U DDBM/16/16 Peniston Inclosure Bill 
1 item 
 

 1819 

U DDBM/17 Roughbirchwood (West Riding) 
2 items 
 

 20 Oct 1618 –  
1 Jan 1719 

U DDBM/17/1 Feoffment: Robert Marsden, yeoman to Henry Burgon, 
farmer, both of Roughbirchworth  
Close called le Crymbles, 1 acre in le Overfeild, (lands 
of Godfrey Bosevile, esq. south and of Thomas Senyor 
and Edward Taylor north, Roughbirchworth common 
west, Mylnegate lane east), and 1 acre in Longleyes 
(lands of Godfrey Bosevile on either side : common 
fields called le Kirkewood west and le Ryefeild east).  

 20 Oct 1618 
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Witn. Francis West, Robert Burgon, Nicholas Burgon, 
John Mitchell, William Crosley 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/17/2 Lease for 21 years at £8 11s. rent: William Bosseville 
of Gunthwait to John Parkin of Peniston mercer  
Messuage with closes called the Croft, the Crimbles, 
two closes at the back of the Laith; Near, Middle and 
Lower Oldfields; the Intack and the Oldfield in two 
closes, in Routh-Burchworth: Witn. G. Wheatley, 
Gregory Wordsworth, Edm. Bunny 
1 item 
 

 1 Jan 1719 

U DDBM/18 Seaton Ross 
1 item 
 

 14 May 1742 

U DDBM/18/1 Receipt for £12 10s. paid by Godfrey Bosvile, esq. (by 
the hands of Mr Wright) to Richard Donn, being the half 
year's payment due to him for serving the cure of 
Seaton Ross 
1 item 
 

 14 May 1742 

U DDBM/19 Thorpe and Rudstone (East Riding) 
43 items 
 

 20 Apr 1557 –  
23 Oct 1874 

U DDBM/19/1 Copy Feoffment (as DDBM/19/9): for £80: Thomas 
Thwaite of Marston, esq. to John Wood of Thorpe near 
Rudstone, gent. 
His manor in Thorpe (late in tenure of Thomas 
Awmond and sometime parcel of the possessions of 
Thomas Newport esq.): Power of attorney to Thomas 
Fairfax and Thomas Pulley, gent., to deliver seisin. 20 
April 1557  Endorsement of livery of seisin. Witn. 
Michael Peirson, clerk, William Farthings, Robert Frear, 
William Rudston, John Edmond, William Hawson, Will. 
Warcupp, George Acclome, Peter Watson, John Rose, 
John Sharpe, Robert Henryson, John Gray, Lancelot 
Metcalfe, Matthew Warcupp, Edward Sharpe 
1 item 
 

 20 Apr 1557 

U DDBM/19/2 Copy Bargain and Sale for £36: Francys Constable of 
Carethorpe, esq., to John Wood (as DDBM/19/1)  
Messuage, barn, close, 4 oxgangs in Thorpe nigh 
Rudstone (parcel of the inheritance of Sir William 
Constable, dec'd, grandfather of F. C.). Witn. John 
Dyneley, gent., Lawrence Marsh, Robert Freer 
1 item 
 

 22 Mar 1561 

U DDBM/19/3 Lease: at 20 s. rent: William Constable of Cattfosse to 
Thomas Wodd of Thorpe nigh Rudstone, gent.  
Toft and 4 oxgangs in Thorpe. 2 1/2 oxgangs in  

 26 Aug 1575 
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Cathrope: for 21 years from the death of William 
Thorpe of Beverley, father in law of W. C. Witn. Martin 
Rous, Robt. Holme, Robt. Wryght, Willm. Dunn. Seal 
'W C' 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/19/4 Part of a copy of Conveyance: John Wright to Thomas 
Wood  
Toft and 4 oxgangs in Thorpe: Witn. William and 
Christopher Constable, Robt. Hunter, Henry Robinson, 
James Barugh, John Scowston, Willm. Bower, Hen. 
Peirson, Percivall (Lanveder ?) 
1 item 
 

 30 Apr 1588 

U DDBM/19/5 Lease for 14 years at £161 9s. 8d. rent: Godfrey 
Bosville of Thorp, esq. to John Raywood, late of 
Rumbling Street, co. Derby and now of Rudston, 
yeoman 
Newly erected messuage or farmhouse with 463 acres 
2 r. 8 p. called John Raywood's Farm (mentions 
Saintfoin Closes and Meadow Close) in Thorp and 
Rudston  
1 item 
 

 2 Oct 1775 

U DDBM/19/6 Lease for 4 years: at £277 3s. 3d. rent: same to William 
Hopper of Rudston, yeoman  
Farmhouse with 464 acres 2 r. 15 p. (mentions 2 High 
Closes, 2 Low Closes, Round Close, Christopher 
Hopper's Close, North Ings, Three Cornered Close, 
arable part of Thorp North Field, Garth and allotment, 
Ings Head Allotment, Longlands Allotment) in Rudston 
and Thorp 
1 item 
 

 2 Oct 1775 

U DDBM/19/7 Draft Appointment: Godfrey, Lord Macdonald of Thorpe 
to William Dawson of Thorpe, 'menial servant to me'  
As gamekeeper of manors of Thorpe and High And 
Low Caythorpe 
1 item 
 

 1831 

U DDBM/19/8 Bargain and Sale for £80: Thomas Thwayte of Marston, 
esq., to John Wood of Thorpe nigh Rudstone, gent.  
His manor of and all property in Thorpe (now or late in 
tenure of Thomas Awmond and sometime parcel of the 
possessions of Thomas Newport, esq.). Witn. Leonard 
Boynton, Roger Renyngham, William Thomson, Robert 
Thomson, John Herryson 
1 item 
 
 
 

 19 Apr 1557 
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U DDBM/19/9 Feoffment (as DDBM/19/1). Thomas Thwayte of 

Marston, esq. to John Wood of Thorpe nigh Rudstone, 
gent.  
His manor of and all property in Thorpe (now or late in 
tenure of Thomas Awmond and sometime parcel of the 
possessions of Thomas Newport, esq.) (parties and 
property as DDBM/19/8. Witn. to livery of seisin, 
Michael Pierson, clerk, William Ferthyng, Robert Frear, 
William Rudston, John Edmond, William Hewson, 
William Warcop, George Acclome, Peter Watson, John 
Rose, John Sharpe, Robert Henryson, John Gray, 
Lancelot Metcalfe, John Hellard, Edward Warcop, John 
Acclome, George Edmond, Matthew Warcop, Edward 
Sharpe 
1 item 
 

 20 Apr 1557 

U DDBM/19/10 Messuage, barn, close and 4 bovates in Thorpe near 
Rudstone, (inherited by F. C. from his grandfather Sir 
William Constable): Witn. John Dynebie of Brydlington 
gent., Lawrence Mashruder, Robert Freer, William 
Edminde, John Harryson of Rudston 
Feoffment for £36 (further to DDBM/19/2) : Francis 
Constable of Carethorp, esq., to John Wood of Thorpe 
near Rudstone, gent.  
1 item 
 

 23 Mar 1561 

U DDBM/19/11 Feoffment: John, son and heir of John Wood of Thorpe, 
dec'd, to his mother Margaret Wood, widow  
All his property in Rudston: Witn. Thomas Wood senior 
and junior, Thomas Doweman, Richard Alatson, John 
[Lindsaye] 
1 item 
 

 15 Jul 1572 

U DDBM/19/12 Bond in £40: Thomas Peirson, vicar of Rudestone to 
Thomas Wood of Thorpe near Rudstone, gent.  
For performance of covenants of deed of same date: 
Witn. John Wright, Walter Snawdell, Thomas 
Adamson, Lawrance Robinson 
1 item 
 

 8 Aug 1580 

U DDBM/19/13 Copy Exemplification of Final Concord for £140: 
Thomas Wood, gent., plaintiff and Margaret Wood, 
widow, deforceant  
Manor of Thorpe near Rudston with 10 messuages, 10 
tofts, 1 windmill, 10 gardens, 2 orchards, 300 acres 
land, 50 acres meadow, and 50 acres heath and furze 
in Thorpe near Rudston and Rudston 
1 item 
 
 
 

 3 - 6 May 1584 
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U DDBM/19/14 Exemplification of a Final Concord for £140: Thomas 

Wood, gent., plaintiff and John Wood deforceant  
Manor of Thorpe near Rudstone with 2 messuages 10 
tofts, 10 gardens, 1 orchard, 250 acres land, 50 acres 
meadow, 100 acres pasture, 50 acres heath and furze 
in Thorpe near Rudstone  
1 item 
 

[6 Oct 1596] 

U DDBM/19/15 Lease and Release for £600: Thomas Wood of Thorpe 
near Rudston, gent., to Elizabeth Bower of Bridlington 
Key, spinster  
Manor of Thorpe with capital messuage, 3 barns, a 
stable, 24 oxgangs in the North and South Fields, 
closes called the Holmes of Low Pasture, New Close, 
East Close adjoining Gathorpe, West Close divided into 
5, South Ings, Carrewell, 2 closes in the hillside called 
Hagging Closes, Upper Garth and 3 closes on the 
north side of North Street (i.e. Towne End Close, New 
Intacke and East Gaire Field or Old Intacke): Witn. 
Edward and William Bower, Fr. Knowsley, Mar. Nelson. 
25 October 1688 - 26 October 1688. Endorsement of 
production in Mathew Newton and others v Thomas 
Wilson and others. 29 August 1710 
2 items 
 

25 - 29 Aug 
1710 

U DDBM/19/16 Defeasance of DDBM/19/15. Conditional on payment 
to Elizabeth Bower of £600 and interest, in house of 
William Bower of Bridlington Key, merchant. Witn. and 
endorsement as DDBM/19/15 
1 item 
 

 26 Oct 1688 - 
29 Aug 1710 

U DDBM/19/17 Bond for performance of covenants of DDBM/19/15 
1 item 
 

 26 Oct 1688 

U DDBM/19/18 Release for £104 10 s: Charles Stouteville of 
Hunmanby, esq., to John Ellard and his son William 
Ellard of Rudston, yeomen  
2 cottages, 2 crofts on north of Rudston church, close 
called Froscall and 3 oxgangs (in tenures of Thomas 
Edmond, Richard Hopper, Thomas Lumbart and 
William Potts) in Rudston: Witn. Thomas Perritt, 
William Hubanke, Chr. Wilson 
1 item 
 

 10 Apr 1706 

U DDBM/19/19 Memorial of Release: Thomas Hassell of Thorpe. esq., 
and wife Anne to Sir William Wentworth of Bretton and 
Sir Richard Osbaldeston of Hunmanby 
Property in High and Low Hutton and (28 tenants 
named) in Rudston 
1 item 
 

 27 Jan 1720 
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U DDBM/19/20 Mortgage for £2000: Thomas Hassell of Thorpe, esq., 

to Elizabeth Roundell of York, widow, guardian of her 
daughters Catherine and Mildred 
As DDBM/19/15: Witn. Richd. White, W. Clair 
1 item 
 

 1 - 2 Sep 1729 

U DDBM/19/21 Bond for performance of covenants of DDBM/19/20 
1 item 
 

 2 Sep 1729 

U DDBM/19/22 Abstract of Title Deeds relating to manor of Thorpe 
(1548 - 1725) 
1 item 
 

 1 May 1738 

U DDBM/19/23 'Particulars of the estate settled upon Mr Hassell in 
joynture', (i.e. property in Rudston in tenure of 16 
named tenants) 
1 item 
 

 c. 1738 

U DDBM/19/24 Bargain and Sale for £81 13s. 4d.: Edward Gylbard, 
citizen, goldsmith and late alderman of London (and 
wife Alice) to John Wood of West Lutton, gent  
His manor or capital messuage with all its 
appurtenances, in Rudstone, sometime parcel of the 
inheritance of Sir Robert Skargill, dec'd  
1 item 
 

 18 Nov 1564 

U DDBM/19/25 Feoffment further to DDBM/19/24: Power of attorney to 
Thomas Pulley, gent. and Christopher Hewbanck, 
yeoman, to deliver seisin. Witn. George Crakall servant 
to Wilfred Lewty, scrivener, Thomas Dawson. 30 
November 1564 
Endorsement of livery of seisin. Witn. William Edmond, 
Thomas Symson, John Edmond, John Wright, Thomas 
Ellerton, Edward Sharp, Richard Burthon, Robert 
Pikeryng, Robert Collynson, Robert Melton, Thomas 
Orre, Peter Archer, Thomas Burthon, Richard Edmond, 
John Taillor. 10 December 1564 
1 item 
 

 30 Nov 1564- 
10 Dec 1564 

U DDBM/19/26 Final Concord for 80 marks. Robert Ellis, plaintiff and 
Barney Wood, gent., and wife Mary, deforceants 
Manor of Rudston with messuage, cottage, 3 tofts, 2 
gardens, 200 acres land, 10 acres meadow, 100 acres 
pasture, 2 acres wood, 100 acres heath and furze and 
3 s. rents in Rudstone 
1 item 
 

 22 Apr 1604 

U DDBM/19/27 Exemplification of Final Concord as DDBM/19/26 
1 item 
 
 

 19 Jun 1605 
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U DDBM/19/28 Exemplification of Common Recovery: John Wright and 

William Ellis from Robert Ellis 
Manor of Rudstone with 2 messuages, 2 gardens, 200 
acres land, 10 acres meadow, 100 acres pasture, 2 
acres wood, 100 acres heath and furze and 3 s. rent in 
Rudston: Barnay Wood vouched to warranty. Initial 
portrait of James I (Mich. 1605) 
1 item 
 

 28 Nov 1605 

U DDBM/19/29 Settlement: John Harrison, yeoman to John Carlton of 
Beforthe in Holderness, gent. and Thomas Gibson of 
Killome, yeoman  
Messuage, a little close, 7 oxgangs and certain Forbie 
lands in Rudston: To use of J. H. for life, and then 
successively in tail male to his grandsons William, 
second son, John, son, and George, youngest son, of 
Anthonie Harrison of Flixton, yeoman, dec'd. Witn. Jo. 
Gibson, clerk, Joseph Gibson, Henrie Sawmond. 30 
April 1607  Endorsements of (i) livery of seisin. Witn. as 
to Settlement, also Charles Whytinge, Bartholomew 
Tomson. 30 April 1607. And (ii) attornment of Anthonie 
Edmonde. Witn. Jo. Gibsonn, clerk, Bartholomew 
Tomson, Charles Whiting, Ric. Bodie, Perswell Foster, 
Lawrence Marshall. 14 May 1607 
1 item 
 

 30 Apr 1607 - 
14 May 1607 

U DDBM/19/30 Bargain and Sale for £45: Robert Knowsley of Burton 
Flemming, gent., and wife Anne to Robert Ellis of 
Rudstone, yeoman  
Cottage and garth (King's Street S., Westgayte W.), 
one oxgang throughout the fields in place of fee called 
Scargill fee; and one oxgang through the fields 
between lands of vicarage of Rudstone and lands late 
of John Harrison, dec'd: Witn. Willm. Swadell, James 
Ellis, Thomas Haggett, Robt. Smythe, Tho. Gibson 
1 item 
 

 20 Jan 1614 

U DDBM/19/31 Feoffment further to DDBM/19/30 Endorsement of 
livery of seisin. Witn. as DDBM/19/30 and Henrie 
Parkyn, Robt. Branbie, Mathew Johnson, John 
Jefferson 
1 item 
 

 20 - 27 Jan 
1614 

U DDBM/19/32 Exemplification of Final Concord for £41: Robert Ellys, 
plaintiff and Robert Knowsley, gent., and wife Anne, 
deforceants  
Cottage, garden and 40 acres land in Rudston: (20 
January 1617) 
1 item 
 
 

 23 Jan 1617 
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U DDBM/19/33 Bargain and Sale for £100: Rev. George Harrison of 

Wickham to his brother John Harrison of Scarborough, 
merchant  
Messuage, barn, foregarth, croft, 6 oxgangs and Forbie 
lands in Rudstone: Witn. Nath. Grantham, Willm. 
Haryson, Robt. Byngham, John Edmond, Tho. Gibsonn 
1 item 
 

 3 Mar 1621 

U DDBM/19/34 Lease for 11 years: at rent of £9 and 2 quarters of oats 
for first year, and £12 yearly for remainder of term: 
John Harrison of Scarborough, gent., to Robert 
Simpson of Rudston, yeoman  
Messuages and 13 oxgangs: Witn. Willm. Hodgson, 
John Craven, Dor. Harrison 
1 item 
 

 11 Nov 1673 

U DDBM/19/35 Final Concord for £260: Thomas Cradocke, esq. and 
Thomas Holford, gent., plaintiffs and Henry Ball, esq. 
and wife Dorothy, deforceants  
Manor of Righton with 9 messuages, 1 windmill, 100 
acres land, 100 acres meadow and 100 acres pasture 
in Rudston, Scarborough and Righton  
1 item 
 

 25 Nov 1675 

U DDBM/19/36 Settlement by way of a Covenant to stand seized: 
Henry Ball of Par. Saint Martin's in the Fields, esq. to 
Walter Ettricke of Sunderland besides the sea county 
Durham  
Manor of Righton, 5 oxgangs, cottage and house in 
Righton. Paradise House, close Paradise How Close, 3 
messuages and Common Close adjoining Brackenhill, 
all in Scarborough. 2 messuages and 13 oxgangs in 
Rudston: To use of H. B. and wife Dorothy for Lives, 
then to heirs of H. B. Recites that a Final Concord of 
the premises (as DDBM/19/35) was to same uses. 
Witn. Tho. Heblethwaite, Hen. Yemes, John Cragge 
1 item 
 

 11 May 1676 

U DDBM/19/37 Final Concord for £400: James Cockerill, plaintiff and 
Henry Ball, esq. and wife Dorothy, deforceants, manor 
of Righton with 8 messuages, 5 cottages, windmill, 8 
barns, 8 stables, 2 tofts, 4 gardens, 200 acres land, 
100 acres meadow, 100 acres pasture, 100 acres 
heath and furze and 5 s. 1 d. rent in Righton, Rudston 
and Scarborough 
1 item 
 

 25 Nov 1681 

U DDBM/19/38 Bargain and Sale for £450: Henry Ball and wife 
Dorothy, (as DDBM/19/36), (she being only daughter of 
John Harrison of Scarborough, esq., dec'd) to James 
Cockerill of Scarborough, master and mariner  

 26 Nov 1618 
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Manor of Righton. Paradise House, close, Paradise 
Low Close, 3 messuages and Common Close adjoining 
Brecken Hill in Scarborough. 2 messuages and 13 
oxgangs in Rudston: Witn. Antho. Colcot, Hen. 
Thompson, Robt. Williamson 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/19/39 Will of James Cockerill (as DDBM/19/38)  
Bequests to wife Frances, son James, daughters Mary, 
Elianor: Reighton, Rudston, Stowbrow, Cloughton and 
Scarborough. Probate 24 April 1696 
1 item 
 

 25 Feb 1696 

U DDBM/19/40 Additional Mortgage for £150: James Cockerill of 
Scarborough, master mariner, (son and heir of James 
Cockerill, as DDBM/19/38), to Scudamore Lazenby of 
Leeds, merchant, (heir and executor of Lovell Lazenby 
of Scarborough, gent., dec'd)  
9 oxgangs, Hall Close, Well Close, Ayram Close, 
cottage and windmill in Reighton. Messuage and 13 
oxgangs in Rudston: Recites a Mortgage of the 
premises for £200 by J. C. the father to John Estoft of 
Etton, esq., (15 February 1693) and its Assignment to 
Lovell Lazenby by Francis, son and heir of John Estoft 
(15 August 1709). Witn. James Cooke, Wm. Stockdale 
1 item 
 

 2 Feb 1714 

U DDBM/19/41 Quitclaim: for £372 15 s: Scudamore, Lovel, Thomas, 
Joseph and John Lazenby all of Scarborough, (exors. 
of Lovell Lazenby), to James Cockerill the son (as 
DDBM/19/40)  
All claims under mortgages as DDBM/19/40 
1 item 
 

 31 Jan 1718 

U DDBM/19/42 Lease for 99 years: James Hopkinson of Billingshill, 
esq. to William Goforth, shoemaker, George 
Richardson, tailor, William Dowson, labourer, John 
Bell, smith, John Pinder, labourer, William Taylor, 
grocer, John Usher, labourer, Jonathan Goforth, 
shoemaker, all of Rudston, Robert Robinson of Kilham, 
labourer and John Peter Akester Cherry of Hessle, 
gardener 
Parcel, 48 square yards (i.e. 8 yards N. to S. x 6 yards 
E. to W.) on W.side of Town Street of Rudston as site 
for Primitive Methodist Chapel. 
1 item 
 

 11 Oct 1827 

U DDBM/19/43 Sale Particulars: Spring Dale Estate: Plan. 
1 item 
 
 

 23 Oct 1874 
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U DDBM/20 Tanshelf (West Riding) 

1 item 
 

 29 Apr 1662 

U DDBM/20/1 Surrender in Tanshell manor court by Lionel Royston  
Messuage in Tanshell near Ropergate end, (in tenure 
of Thomas Thornton): To use of himself for life and 
then to Sylvester Roylston and heirs of his body, and 
then to James Roylston son of L. R. and his heirs 
1 item 
 

 29 Apr 1662 

U DDBM/21 Worsborough (West Riding) 
2 items 
 

 Sep 1565 –  
Jun 1690 

U DDBM/21/1 Demise: at 10 s. rent: for minority of Alexander, son of 
John Bosvill, a Crown ward. 
Alexander Westall, gent., and William Parkins, 
husbandman to Nicholas Shaye, cutler and wife Allice 
and Alexander Parkine, all of Ardislawe: 2 closes called 
Gryme in Worbroguhdall, (late parcel of lands of John 
Bosvill, gent.): Witn. Robert Thwaites, Queen's bailiff of 
Barnsley, Robert Thwaites junior. Robert Bayley 
1 item 
 

 24 Sep 1565 

U DDBM/21/2 Worsbrough Poll Tax assessment 
1 item 
 

 Jun 1690 

U DDBM/22 Cheshire 
1 item 
 

9 Aug 1716 

U DDBM/22/1 Deed to declare uses. John, Bishop of Lichfield and 
Coventry to Henry Bosvile, attorney at law  
Manor, town and lordship of Burton in Worrall (leased 
by the Bishop to H. B. 8 August 1716 : for lives of 
Lettice, Lady Lee (wife of the bishop), Robert and 
Christopher Harrison, at £20 rent): To uses of Lady 
Lee. Witn. Priscilla Beckett, Robt. Holte, Ben. Caning 
1 item 
 

9 Aug 1716 

U DDBM/23 Derbyshire 
1 item 
 

25 Jul 1570 

U DDBM/23/1 Bargain and Sale: Henrye Bossevile of London, 
clothworker, to Henrye Hopkynson of Bonsall, co. 
Derby, yeoman  
Rectory and parsonage of Ilkeston, with its tithe and 
glebe: Reserving the advowson and excepting two 
leases made by James Hardwicke of Hardwicke, co. 
Derby, esq., (from whom H. B. purchased the 
premises); one, of the tithes, to Hercules Fulyambe and 
the other, of the glebe, to Edwarde Holte 
1 item 

25 Jul 1570 
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U DDBM/24 Essex 

1 item 
 

pre 1140 

U DDBM/24/1 'A Copy of the Grant of the Tithe of Islip, from Dale's 
Antiquities of Harwich and Dovercourt 1730' 
Reference to lands held of William de Blossaville 
1 item 
 

pre 1140 

U DDBM/25 Lancashire 
1 item 
 

18th cent. 

U DDBM/25/1 'A Plan of Duke of Bridgewater's Curious Wear ... in 
Castle Field near Manchester' 
1 plan 
 

18th cent. 

U DDBM/26 Leicestershire 
4 items 
 

3 Oct 1622 –  
25 Mar 1654 

U DDBM/26/1 Bargain and Sale: Roberte Peshall of Blorepipe, co. 
Staffs., esq., to Nicholas Hand of Bushopps Offley, 
yeoman  
Capital messuage called Wrights Farm House with 2 
closes called Sheepcote Leys and Heyly Close in Cold 
Newton: Witn. John Chetwind, Richard Harvye, 
Abraham Pennyfather and Thomas Thurstans 
1 item 
 

3 Oct 1622 

U DDBM/26/2 Demise: Robert Peshall of Blorepipe to John Chetwind 
of Rudge, esqs.  
Manors of Newton, Cold Newton, Newton Burditt and 
Newton Marmyon alias Marmyon's Manor in Lowesby. 
(conveyed to R. P. by Richard Daston of the Inner 
Temple, esq., and J. C.). For 40 years after deaths of 
Robert Peshall and of Lady Elizabeth Bossevile, wife of 
Sir Robert Bossevile, and in trust to dispose of the 
premises on the death of either of them in accordance 
with specified uses. Witn. Richard Harvye, Abraham 
Pennyfather, Thomas Thurstans 
1 item 
 

 5 Oct 1622 

U DDBM/26/3 Settlement: Robert Peshall of Blorepipe, esq. to Sir 
John Peshall of Horsley (son and heir of Thomas P. of 
Horsley, esq., dec'd, eldest brother of R. P.) and 
Edmund Peshall, citizen and grocer of London, 
(youngest brother of R. P.) and Richard Harvey of 
Eccleshall, yeoman 
Manor of manors called Newton, Cold Newton, Newton 
Burditt, Newton Marmyon alias Marmyonsmanor on or 
near Lowesby. Capital messuage, cottages and lands 
in Cold Newton (mentions capital messuage called 
Wrightes Farm, messuage called Jordans House; and  

 7 Oct 1622 
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closes and lands called Ash Close or Burbage Close, 
Marshalls Close, Sturges Close, Sheepecote Leyes, 
Hill Furlonge, Sandpitt Leyes, Brewhouse Close, 
Overhall Close, close near the chapel, close with a 
double dovehouse, Netherhall Close with hop yard, 
Benchcrofte Close, close near the Dovehouse Close 
adjoining the church, Crosback Close, Breach Close, 
Stashopps Close, Skeyghil Close, Breakland Close, 
Broadhill Close, Neathowse Close, Massons Close and 
Goborms Close): Witn. John Duckett, Hugh Jordaine, 
Robert Burbige, William Orton, Rowland Watkin, Hughe 
Ilsonn, Thomas Sturges, John Chetwind and Abraham 
Pennyfather, Thomas Thurstans, Nicholas Hand, 
Walter Wullans 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/26/4 Bond in £300: Thomas Storer of Anstey, gent., to 
Richard Bosvile of Bionny par. Elleshall, esq.; for 
performance of covenants of deed of same date. Witn. 
Ann Snape, Wa. Higgs 
1 item 
 

 25 Mar 1654 

U DDBM/27 Scotland 
6 items 
 

 17 Aug 1596 –  
24 Aug 1911 

U DDBM/27/1 Letter of Tack under Privy Seal of James VI to Donald 
Gorme of Slait: for 5 years: at rent of 380 marks  
The fourscore markland of Trouteynes: Given at 
Falkland. Seal missing. 17 August 1596  With a letter: 
Tods, Murray and Jamieson, 66, Queen St., Edinburgh 
to Lady Macdonald: purchase of this document at a 
sale at Dowells. 14 July 1933 
1 item 
 

 17 Aug 1596 –  
14 Jul 1933 

U DDBM/27/2 Ms. 'Enquiry into the Chieftainship of Macdonald, by 
the Reverend D. Macqueen' 
1 item 
 

 1782 

U DDBM/27/3 Report of John Blackadder, surveyor, on Lord 
Macdonald's estates of Sky and North Uist and 
agricultural methods there 
1 item 
 

 1799 

U DDBM/27/4 Album containing copies of correspondence relating to 
a dispute between 3rd Lord Macdonald and Col. A. R. 
Macdonell of Glengarry 
Over claims arising from their descent from the Lords 
of the Isles and Earls of Ross, to the chieftainship of 
Clan Macdonald 
1 vol 
 

 1824 
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U DDBM/27/5 Address of Welcome to Sir Alexander Bosville 

Macdonald from members of Clan Macdonanld, on his 
taking up residence at Duntulm, Isle of Skye 
1 item 
 

 24 Aug 1911 

U DDBM/27/6 Address of Welcome to Sir Alexander Bosville 
Macdonald from members of clans (other than 
Macdonald) on the Kilmuir Estate 
1 item 
 

 24 Aug 1911 

U DDBM/28 Various Townships 
20 items 
 

 11 Feb 1433 –  
30 Aug 1830 

U DDBM/28/1 Gift: John Bosvill of Neuhall, esq., to Lady Matilda de 
York, Countess of Cambridge, William Skargill, Percival 
Cresacre, William Mirfeld and James Cresacre  
Manors of Newhalle and Gunnyllthwayte. Moiety of 
manors of Westbritton, Bulcliffe and Berghe. All his 
property in Darfeld, Wombwell, Erdeslay, 
Werkesburghe, Berneslay, Calthorn, Denby, 
Hygheholand, Gunnylthwayte, Yngbrchworthe, 
Cambyworthe, Westbritton, Sandall, Wolley, 
Wykurslay, Frythe, Carhouse and Derton. Reversion of 
a moiety of the manors of Bulcliffe in Westbritton and 
Berghe and of all his property in Detton, Wolley, 
Kersforthe, Holdton and Bernby which Grace, widow of 
Sir William Dronesfeld held for her life, of the 
inheritance of the donor: Witn. Robert Mauleverer, 
esq., William Stodfold, chaplain, John Staynroyd, 
chaplain, Richard Stanes and John Munke. Given at 
Newhall 
1 item 
 

 11 Feb 1433 

U DDBM/28/2 Final Concord: Matilda, Countess of Cambridge, 
Percival Gresacre, esq. and James Gresacre, plaintiffs 
and John Bosvill of Newehalle, esq. and wife Isabel, 
deforceants  
40 messuages, 1337 acres land, 129 acres meadow, a 
moiety of 70 acres pasture, 156 acres wood '& dimid,' 
('and half' i.e. 156 1/2 acres or 'and a half of' the rents 
which follow ?) 71 s. 8 d. rent in Derfeld, Wombewell, 
Ardesley, Werkesburgh, Bernesley, Calthorn, 
Gunnylthwayt, Denby and Hegh Holand. Moiety of 26 
messuages, 59 acres land, 54 acres meadow, 200 
acres pasture, 16 acres wood and 19 s. 6 1/2 d. rent in 
Westbretton, Comberworth, Hegh Holand, 
Ingbircheworth, Frith, Carhouses, Wykirsley and 
Staynton 
1 item 
 
 

 6 Oct 1435 
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U DDBM/28/3 Final Concord for £300: Sir Thomas Clifford, William 

Mirfield, esq. and Percival Cressacre, esq., plaintiffs 
and William Boswell and wife Matilda deforceants  
40 messuages, 910 acres land, 126 acres meadow, 
100 acres pasture, 100 acres wood and 43 s. rent in 
Ardeslay, Workesburgh, Barneslay, Gunthwayt, Denby, 
Calthorn and Yngbirchworth  
1 item 
 

 27 Apr 1449 

U DDBM/28/4 Quitclaim: John, Lord Clifford and of Westmorland to 
Thomas Anne, Thomas Beaumont and John Gisburn, 
chaplain  
All, claims which he, with, William Mirfield and Percival 
Cressacre, esqs. (still living) and his late father 
Thomas, Lord Clifford and others now deceased had of 
the gift of Isabell, late wife of John Bosvile, esq., when 
she was single, in Ardeslay, Workesburgh, Barneslay, 
Gunthwayt, Denby, Calthorn and Yngbircheworth: Seal, 
a wyvern wings displayed 
1 item 
 

 27 Sep 1456 

U DDBM/28/5 Letter of Attorney: Emma, daughter of John Flecher of 
Darfeld, to Geoffrey Diconson of Newark, slater 
To deliver seisin to her brother Richard Flecher of 
Roderham of all property of J. F. in Milnehouse and 
Darfeld: Given at Blith 
1 item 
 

 30 Nov 1463 

U DDBM/28/6 Gift: Thomas Burdhed of Denby Hall to Amery Burdhed 
of Burthwaith, gents.  
His manor of, and all property and mills in, Denby 
(reserving suit of the mills), and all his property in par. 
Penyston and in Claiton, Skelmondthorpe and 
Cawthorn, sometime hereditaments of Nicholas 
Burdhed, dec'd, grandfather of T. and A. B. Reserving 
to T. B. a meadow in Denby called Deffurth (or 
Desfurth) Fott, a tenement in Claiton: Power of attorney 
to Nicholas Savile, gents and William Turton to deliver 
seisin. 13 October 1546  Endorsed. 'Received then this 
deed of Samuel Burdet of Denby. Test. Rich. 
Woolfendin jnr.' 3 July 1704 
1 item 
 

 13 Oct 1546 –  
3 Jul 1704 

U DDBM/28/7 Rental of property of Ralph Barnbye, esq.: Barnbye 
near Cawthorn, Medhope, Longside, Bylclyf, Swynden 
1 item 
 

 1554 

U DDBM/28/8 Exemplification of Final Concord for £1000: Alfred 
Copley jnr. and John Dighton jnr., gents., plaintiffs and 
Francis Bossevile, esq., deforceant  
Manors of Gunthwaite alias Gumblethwaite, Oxsprynge  

 16 Jun 1587 
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and Penystone, with 12 messuages, 10 tofts, 1 mill, 2 
dovecotes, 12 gardens, 300 acres land, 150 acres 
meadow, 200 acres pasture, 100 acres wood, 500 
acres moor and 20 s. rent in those places in 
Thurlstone, Dawthorne, Barnesley, Ardslowe, Denby, 
Walton, Rowge Birchworthe and Kexforthe alias 
Kereforthe Hill 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/28/9 Gift: Raffe Bossevile of London gent., to Queen 
Elizabeth I  
Manors of Gunthwait, Oxspringe and Penistone and all 
other property of Francis Bossevile, esq., in those 
places and in Thurleston, Cawthorne, Barnesley, 
Ardslowe, Denbye, Walton, Rough Byrworth and 
Kexforth alias Kerefurth Hill (settled by a recited deed 
of 8 January 1586): To secure payment to the crown of 
£5. Witn. Robt. Houghton, Robert Doughtye, Henrye 
Armiger 
1 item 
 

 26 Nov 1588 

U DDBM/28/10 Bargain and Sale for £600  
(i) David Waterhouse and John Priestly of the Inner 
Temple, esqs. (executors of John Mansfeild of the 
Inner Temple, esq., dec'd) and Stephen Waterhouse of 
London, gent. 
(ii) William Tankard of Great Langton, esq., to 
(iii) Richard Heslarton of Lower Hutton, gent. 
7 acres in a Little Close beyond the Wraylands towards 
New Malton, 18 acres in the Toftes, 8 acres 2 r. in the 
Rye Hill, 8 acres 2 r. in the Millstee Hill, 8 acres 1 r. 
between the Myers, 6 acres 2 r. in the Wray and White 
Crosse Landes; meadow ground in the Soccetts Sykes, 
Bagwith Wray Inggs and Lange Myers; part of certain 
oxgangs sometime property of William and Anne 
Wasse, with common of pasture belonging to them in 
the Sleights, Cowpasture, Oxpasture and Sheepe 
Pasture. messuage with West Garthe, Nuncrofte, 
arable lands called concealed lands, 3 1/3 acres in 
Annan Hill alias Hutton upon Darwent: Recites previous 
Conveyances of the manor of Hutton Bardolph with 
lands in Hutton upon Darwent and Kenithorpe. Witn. 
Ph. Milner, Richard Waterhouse, Martin Lindley, Jo. 
Matteson, Richard Slater, Thomas Hassell 
1 item 
 

 18 Feb 1603 

U DDBM/28/11 Award of William Ramsden and John Kaye, esq., 'by 
the Umprage of Sir Richard Beaumont'  
The custome of the demesnes of manors of Gunthwait 
and Oxspringe to be confirmed as the counsel of 
Godfrey Bossevile shall devise, during Sir Francis  

 20 Jan 1620 
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Wortley's interest in the parsonage of Penystone; G. B. 
to pay Sir F. W. £110, 'whereof so much shallbee sett 
upp as to us ahallbee thought fitt for Mr Bossevile his 
manor of Penyston ... and the same to be sufficiently 
conveyed to Sir Francis' 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/28/12 Exemplification of a Final Concord for £500 ; Rev. 
Edmund Cundy, plaintiff and Godfrey Bosvile, esq., 
deforceant  
Manor of Oxspringe with 11 messuages, 2 cottages, 
150 acres land, 200 acres meadow, 150 acres pasture, 
40 acres wood and 200 acres moor in Oxespringe. 
Roughbirchworth and Thurguland: (20 January 1626) 
1 item 
 

 23 Jan 1626 

U DDBM/28/13 Final Concord for £200: John Pershall and William 
Egerton, gents., plaintiffs and Sir William Pershall and 
Richard Bossevil, esq., deforceants 
10 messuages, 8 cottages, 100 acres land, 30 acres 
meadow, 70 acres pasture and 40 acres heath and 
furze in Eccleshall, Brocton, Sengnall, Horsley and 
Offley: Staffs 
1 item 
 

 10 Nov 1648 

U DDBM/28/14 Portion of a rental (of William and Godfrey Bossevile): 
Gunthwaite, Oxspringe, Cawthorne, Roughbirchworth, 
Peniston and Thurlston 
1 item 
 

 1657 - 1663 

U DDBM/28/15 Copy Quitclaim: Richard Bosvile of Sugnell co. Staffs. 
and his sister Bridget to their brother Robert  
All claims out of his estates in cos. Leicester, Kent and 
Stafford: Witnessed as a true copy and signed by 
Bridgett Peshall 
1 item 

 21 Mar 1678 

U DDBM/28/16 Agreement 
(i) Edward Wortley, lord of the manor of Hunshelf and 
William Fenton of Underbank, Henry Balguy of Wortley, 
lordship, George Walker of Hunshelfe and John 
Cockshutt of Hunthwaite, gents., Thomas Pierson of 
Snoddenhill, Joshua Newton of Hunshelfe Bank, John 
and George Pearson of Roughbirchworth, yeoman, all 
freeholders of Hunshelfe and 
(ii) Godfrey Bosville, now or late of Gunthwaite, esq., 
lord of the manor of Oxspring 
To submit disputes over boundaries of Snoddenhill 
Common in Hunshelfe and Roughbirchworth Common 
in Oxspring to arbitration of Godfrey Wentworth of 
Hickleton, Aymor Rich of Bullhouse and Joseph Clay of 
Brighouse, esqs. 
1 item 

 24 Jul 1756 
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U DDBM/28/17 Rental: Gunthwaite, Cawthorn, Denby, Oxspring, 

Roughbirchworth, Middop and Penniston 
1 item 
 

 1776 

U DDBM/28/18 'Memorandums by General Bosville relating to the 
papers': Huttons Ambo, Hunshelfe, Oxspring, Darfield, 
Gunthwaite, Midhope 
1 bundle 
 

 c. 1780 

U DDBM/28/19 Survey: estates of William Bosville, esq., in Darfield, 
Wombwell, Boardhill, Peniston, Gunthwaite, 
Hoylandswaine, Denby, Cawthorne, Middop and 
Oxspring. Plans 
1 item 
 

 1809 

U DDBM/28/20 Particulars of sale: manors of Penistone and Landset 
and estate (740 acres in all) in Penistone, Langset, 
Oxspring, Thurgoland, Cawthorne and Denby. Plans 
1 item 
 

 30 Aug 1830 

U DDBM/29 Various Deeds 
9 items 
 

 26 Jan 1548 –  
2 May 1814 

U DDBM/29/1 Grant: for £66: Godfrey Bossvyle of Gonuldthwayte, 
esq., to Nicholas Wheatlet of Cudworth, gent.: 
wardship and marriage of Crystofer, son and heir of 
John Bossevyle and wife Jane  
After reciting:  
a) Bargain and Sale by J. and J. B. to G. B. of the 
wardship and marriage of Crystofer. (26 January 1548) 
b) That he had previously been handed over to John 
Bossevyle, esq., father of G. B., who died before 26 
January 1548 leaving G.B. his exor. 
c) That by the same deed, J. and J. B. conveyed to G. 
B. property in Ardysley, par. Derfeld (of £4 clear yearly 
value) to provide for Crystofer 
d) That J. B. (father of Crystofer) was entitled to 
remainder of other lands on death of his father 
Alexander, out of which he covenanted to convey to G. 
B. lands of 40 s. clear yearly value, during minority of 
Crystofer and for his maintenance 
e) That J. B. had covenanted not to convey all the 
above lands to anyone other than G. Bo., for as much 
ready money as any other person would give 
f) That J. B. was bound in £200 for performance of the 
above covenants  Witn. Henrye Lynley, John 
Hermitage, George Best, Thomas Lyster, John More, 
John Oldfeld, John Lambert, John Lea, John (Wodsone 
?) 
1 item 
 

5 Jan 1556 
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U DDBM/29/2 Draft Inquisition Post Mortem: Godfrey Bossevyle of 
Gunthwaite, esq.  
Manor of Gunthwaite with 3 messuages, 2 cottages, 1 
watermill, 200 acres land, 100 acres meadow and 100 
acres pasture and 30 acres wood (held of George, Earl 
of Shrewsbury, of his manor of Brearley). Manor of 
Oxspring with 1 1/2 watermills, 3 cottages, 200 acres 
land, 100 acres meadow, 200 acres pasture, 20 acres 
wood, and underwood, 100 acres heath and furze and 
£6 6 s. 8 d. rent in Oxspringe, Rughburcheworth, 
Thurlestone, Hunshelf and Ormethwaite (similarly held 
of Earl of Shrewsbury). Capital messuage, 40 acres 
land, 20 acres meadow and 60 acres pasture in 
Kerforth (held of Crown manor of Barnsley). 8 
messuages, 2 cottages, 100 acres land, 80 acres 
meadow and 200 acres pasture in Cawthorne (held of 
Thomas Watson of Waulton, esq. of his manor of 
Callthorne). Manor or capital messuage, 3 messuages, 
4 cottages, 60 acres land, 60 acres meadow, 100 acres 
pasture and 200 acres heath and furze in Pennystone 
(held of Crown manor of East Greenwich). 4 
messuages, 4 crofts, 20 acres land, 10 acres meadow, 
20 acres pasture and 100 acres moor in Barnesley 
(held of the Crown manor of Barnesley and sometime 
property of Pontefract Priory): Recites his Will, that he 
died 22 July 1580, and that his eldest son and heir 
Francis Bossevyle was then over 17 years 3 months in 
age 
1 item 

 5 Oct 1580 

U DDBM/29/3 Quitclaim: Thomas East, citizen and stationer London 
and his wife Lucresse (admin. of her brother Benedict 
Hassell alias Snowden both dec'd), to Thomas Hassell, 
citizen and draper of London 
All claims and actions: Witn. Emanuell Maunsell, scr. 
and his servant William Peckston 
1 item 

 8 Nov 1585 

U DDBM/29/4 Copy of Deeds of covenants 
a) Rauffe Bossevile of London, esq. to his brother 
Henrye of Bradbourne, co. Kent, esq.: not to demand 
money or apparel from him, nor to enter his house and 
take meat or drink without his consent: For 
performance of which R. B. is bound in £1000. This 
covenant to be void on discharge of a recognizance 
forfeited to H. B. by Frauncis Bossevile of Gunthwayht, 
esq. 
b) H. B. to F. B. (both as in a)): not to take advantage 
of the forfeited recognizance during the lifetime of R. 
B., or on payment of £100 within a year of death of R. 
B., provided H. B. keeps covenant as a). Witn. Roberte 
Bossevile, Michael Berysford, Richard Hore, Trystram 
Conyers, Robte. Petteyn 
2 items 

 22 Jun 1587 
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U DDBM/29/5 Letter of Attorney: Allane Lamont of Bridlington, gent. 
to Thomas Hassell of Thorpe, esq.  
To act for him in recovery of debts. Witn. Tho. Watson, 
Tho. Booth. Small seal of arms of T. L., quarterly, 1 and 
4 a lion rampant, 2 and 3 (swords ?) crossed in saltire 
1 item 
 

 11 Dec 1733 

U DDBM/29/6 Memorandum of purchase by John Cockshutt from 
Amor Rich 'on the behalfe of Godfrey Bosvill': for £290  
Storrs Wood and Gothard Wood: The woods to go 
down in 2 years and A. R. to wall 100 roods 
1 item 
 

 2 Apr 1746 

U DDBM/29/7 Quitclaim: Mary Bosville to her mother, Bridgett 
Bosville: all claims under Will of her father 
Reference to property at Barnby Dunn and Darwent 
Dale 
1 item 
 

 31 Mar 1752 

U DDBM/29/8 Bargain and Sale: Hon. Godfrey Macdonald, Colonel in 
1st Regt. Foot Guards to Thomas John Burgoyne of 
Montagu Street, co. Middlesex, esq.  
Estates under Will of William Bosville of Thorpe, esq.: 
To recited uses. Endorsed with appointment (15 June 
1815) and a Revocation of the deed (18 September 
1815) 
1 item 
 

 31 Mar 1814 - 
18 Sep 1815 

U DDBM/29/9 Copy of Exemplification by the College of Arms of the 
Bosville and Macdonald quarterly, further to the Royal 
Licence granted to Hon. Godfrey Macdonald and his 
children to quarter such arms and to take the surname 
Bosville only 
1 item 
 

 2 May 1814 

U DDBM/30 Accounts and vouchers 
31 items or bundles 
 

 1579 - 1832 

U DDBM/30/1 Quietus of Robert Stannford of Puryhall, co. Staffs, 
esq.: in respect of debts of Robert Carewe, esq., 
receiver of the Queen in the cos. of Beds. and Bucks. 
1 item 
 

 1579 

U DDBM/30/2 Pay account of Col. Godfrey Bosseville, 'Colo. of a 
Foote Regimt.', with the Committee of Safety for 
Warwickshire 
1 item 
 

 1642 -1645 

U DDBM/30/3 Accounts of Capt. and Mrs Bossville: clothing 
3 items 
 
 

 1645 - 1654 
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U DDBM/30/4 Acquittance: George Sedascue to his father in law, 

Godfrey Bossville, esq.  
For £10. being remainder of a debt to Edward 
Saunders at Warwick 
1 item 
 

 18 Jan 1656 

U DDBM/30/5 Account of money laid out for Robert Bosvile esq., by 
his guardian Christopher Hawley 
1 item 
 

 1668 - 1672 

U DDBM/30/6 Acquittance: Anna Higgs to Mrs Elizabeth Martyn  
For £4. for half a year's diet for herself and maid, 'and 
for entertaining her friends and relations' 
1 item 
 

 25 Nov 1689 

U DDBM/30/7 Account of rents received 
1 item 
 

early 18th cent. 

U DDBM/30/8 Wage account (mentions Sprotborough, Bentley, 
Brodsworth) 
1 item 
 

 1708 - 1709 

U DDBM/30/9 File of Accounts and vouchers of Hugh Bosville 
Reference to Seaton Ross, Oxspring Mill, Denby, 
Gunthwait. With agreements of Anne Pashley of 
Oxspring, widow and John Lockwood of Cawthorne, 
yeoman to an increase in their rent in respect of 
additional buildings 
1 file 
 

 1729 - 1730 

U DDBM/30/10 Fragment of account book of Lady Osbaldeston 
(purchase of furniture and pottery) 
1 item 
 

 1729 

U DDBM/30/11 Miscellaneous vouchers  
25 items 
 

 1732 - 1819 

U DDBM/30/12 Account of John Payne for medicines 
1 item 
 

 1734 

U DDBM/30/13 Account book: miscellaneous accounts and 
memoranda 
Accounts includereference to a military company 1739 
- 1740; household and personal 1774 - 1777 
1 vol 
 

 1739 - 1777 

U DDBM/30/14 Account of William Spencer with Godfrey Bosvile: 
purchase of hedgerows and cordwood (Rawroyd, 
Cawthorne, Gunthwaite) 
1 item 
 

 1644 - 1745 
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U DDBM/30/15 Account of William Wight with Godfrey Bosville: estate 

accounts (Eastbourn, Battleburn, Rotsey). 1747 
Endorsed with memorandum of marriage of Godfrey 
Bosville of Gunthwaite and Mrs Bridgett Hotham of 
Scorborough, at Scorborough. 13 October 1681 
1 item 
 

 1681 - 1747 

U DDBM/30/16 Account book: debts of Thomas Hassell (1773) and 
estate at Hutton (Huttons Ambo ?) (1755) 
1 volume 
 

 1755 - 1773 

U DDBM/30/17 Aquittance: David Roberts for John Calcraft, esq.) to 
Godfrey Bosville, esq.  
For £950, a deposit on an Ensign's Commission in the 
Coldstream Regt., for William Bosville 
1 item 
 

 29 Dec 1761 

U DDBM/30/18 Account of J. Richardson: legal work for Godfrey 
Bosvile on behalf of Mrs Place 
1 item 
 

 1765 

U DDBM/30/19 Household and personal account book (of Godfrey 
Bosville ?) 
1 volume 
 

 1766 - 1767 

U DDBM/30/20 Account of money paid by John Cockshutt on behalf of 
Godfrey Bosville 
1 item 
 

 1768 - 1769 

U DDBM/30/21 Account of William Hall with Godfrey Bosville: estate 
accounts (Eastburn, Rotsye) 
1 item 
 

 1769 - 1773 

U DDBM/30/22 Household and personal account book (of Godfrey 
Bosville?) 
1 volume 
 

 1771 - 1772 

U DDBM/30/23 Accounts of John Stevenson with Godfrey Bosville 
(estate, clothing, funeral of Madam Bosville)  
5 items 
 

 1771 - 1772 

U DDBM/30/24 Accounts and acquittances of Godfrey Bosville as exor. 
of Elizabeth Bosville  
3 items 
 

 1771 

U DDBM/30/25 Account stated between Thomas Richard Beaumont 
and William Bosville 
1 item 
 

 1776 - 1793 

U DDBM/30/26 Household account book 
1 volume 

 1777 - 1779 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 52 of 93 

 
U DDBM/30/27 Account of Jonathan West: legal work for Godfrey 

Bosville 
1 item 
 

 1778 - 1780 

U DDBM/30/28 Coachman's account 
1 item 
 

 1781 

U DDBM/30/29 Account of Mr Hall, attorney of Beverley, with Matthew 
Lock 
1 item 
 

 1794 

U DDBM/30/30 Account of Mr Hall: personal property of William 
Bosville, dec'd 
1 item 
 

 19 Jan 1814 

U DDBM/30/31 Extracts from lawyer's Day Book: account of Lord 
Macdonald 
1 bundle 
 

 1830 - 1832 

U DDBM/31 Bonds 
8 items 
 

 7 Mar 1546 –  
6 Jun 1747 

U DDBM/31/1 In £100: William Swynden of Westthorpe, husbandman 
to Godfrey Bossevile  
W. S. not to alienate without licence of G. B. any lands 
which he had given to G. B., Rauffe Wordysworth and 
others: Given at Penyston 
1 item 
 

 7 Mar 1546 

U DDBM/31/2 In £40: John Morton of Dembye, husbandman to 
Godfrey Bossevyle, lord of the manor of Gomuldthwayt, 
esq.  
J. M. to pay to G. B. annuity or annual rent of 4 d.; and 
to do suit at Gomuldthwayt manor court: Witn. John 
Ermyttage, steward of the court, Richard Hawkisworth, 
Roger Estwod, Roger Grene, Thomas Hawkisworth, 
Robert Coke 
1 item 
 

 10 Oct 1562 

U DDBM/31/3 In £160: Richard Wortleye of Wortley, esq., to Francis 
Bosvile of Gunthwaite, esq. 
For performance of covenants of deed of same date: 
Witn. Ro. Kay, William Pickard, Rauphe Waterhouse, 
Ric. Wortley, Georg Lane, Anker Stansall, Leo. 
Keresbye 
1 item 
 

 22 Apr 1590 

U DDBM/31/4 In £600: Rev. Matthew Booth of Bothal Castle, co. 
Northumberland and his son Rev. John Booth, of the 
same to Thomas Steade of Ouseacre in the Chapelry 
of Bradfield, yeoman 

 26 Apr 1669 
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For performance of covenants of deed of same date: 
Witn. Jere Ward, Thomas Ibotson, Richard Morton, 
William Waterhouse, Nicholas Shaw, Joseph 
Charlesworth, John Revell 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/31/5 In £60: John Shirt of Cawthorne, yeoman to Godfrey 
Bossevile of Gunthwaite, esq.  
For performance of covenants of deed of same date: 
Witn. Geo. Sedascue, Will. Benton, Tim Kent 
1 item 
 

 21 Nov 1676 

U DDBM/31/6 In £320: John Beighton of Nether Bradfeild, chapelry of 
Bradfeild and Jonathan Beighton of Mansworth Hall, 
par. Mansworth, yeoman to Thomas Hattersly of Upper 
Midhope  
For performance of covenants of deed of same date. 
Witn. James Lee, Thomas Hattersley, Edmund 
Whithead, Martin Jopson 
1 item 
 

 7 May 1680 

U DDBM/31/7 In £1000: Richard Woolfenden of Denby, yeoman to 
William Bosvile of Gunthwaite, esq. 
To abide by the Award to be made between them by 
Peter Johnson of York, Richard Witton and William 
Oates of Wakefield and Charles Radcliffe of Barnsland: 
Witn. Wm. Phillip Burdett, John Hawksworth, Edm. 
Bunny, Wm. Fenton jnr 
1 item 

 18 Sep 1719 

U DDBM/31/8 In £200: Thomas Hassell of par. Saint Pancars, co. 
Mdx., to Thomas Hassell of Thorp, esq.  
For payment of £100 and interest: Witn. Wm. Hassell, 
Edward Pratt 
1 item 
 

 6 Jun 1747 

U DDBM/32 Correspondence 
56 items, bundles or volumes 
 

 1639 - 1846 

U DDBM/32/1 Letters to Godfrey Bosville, Gunthwaite From John 
Sharpe, Archbishop of York; Duke of Leeds: Col. John 
Beaumont; L. Wortley; Thomas Pickering ; Charles 
Hotham; William Thorold; Thomas Wentworth; Lt. 
William Bosville; E. Burgess; Alexander Bosville; John 
Watson and others 
References to Bosville genealogy; Penistone School; 
cure of Seaton Ross; battle of Sedgmoor and 
Monmouth's rebellion; Parliamentary affairs; Irish 
campaign, landing of William of Orange; Penistone 
market; York gaol; shrievalty of Yorkshire; Rotsea 
estate; poll at York Castle; Lt. Bosville's military career; 
purchase of books; news letters 
70 items 

 1679 - 1710 
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U DDBM/32/2 Letters to Bridget Bosville from Col. John Beaumont ; 

Charles Hotham and others 
References to Parliamentary affairs, Dutch invasion; 
rising in Scotland; Irish campaign 
1 bundle 
 

 1681 - 1700 

U DDBM/32/3 Letters to Sir Thomas Pershall, Sugnall, co. Staffs., 
from his wife Lady Rachel Pershall, J. Serjeant; 
Thomas Gaywood; Thomas Ireland and 'An humble 
servant'  
References to marital troubles; poor King very ill at 
Winser lays things to hart and the queen sat crying in 
her Chapell till her face swelled; rumours of risings in 
the City; Lord Mayor's Show very small towards what it 
used to be' 
6 items 
 

 1686 - 1688 

U DDBM/32/4 Letters to Thomas Hassell, Thorpe, from Thomas 
Wentworth, Sir William Dawes; Archbishop of York; 
Michael Bridges; brother Samuell Hassell; William 
Strickland; William Burrow; Thomas Watson   
Mainly family matters; news of Culloden reaching Hull 
(24. 4. 1746); curacy of Hutton 
28 items 
 

 1722 - 1746 

U DDBM/32/5 Letters to Hugh Bosville, Gunthwaite, from his son, 
Godfrey Bosville at Cambridge and John Hildyard, York  
Son's affairs; Smales family of Gilling area 
3 items 
 

 1735 - 1737 

U DDBM/32/6 Letters to Bridget Bosville from M. Townshend and 
'Philoveritas'  
Society and the Bishop of Worcester; a suggested 
match between he daughter (Mary) and Joseph Turner. 
With a letter (from Mary to Joseph Turner ?) 
3 items 
 

 1735 - [1750] 

U DDBM/32/7 Letters to Diana Bosville (nee Wentworth), Gunthwaite, 
from her sisters Julia de Chair, Elizabeth and 
Annabella Wentworth; her son, William, sister in law 
Mary Bosville (afterwards Place); Mary Allott 
(afterwards Tulloh); C. Cornwallis; William Dade; Sarah 
Boswell; Jamaica; Thomas Wentworth and others 
References to family affairs; society gossip from York, 
London and Brightthelmstone; gallery at Thorpe; 
gardening; Sir Joshua Reynolds; the Gunnings 
c. 80 items 
 

 1739 - 1783 

U DDBM/32/8 Letters to Godfrey Bosville, Gunthwaite and Thorpe 
from his sister Mary Place; Thomas Wentworth; mother 
Bridget; son Thomas; John Hand; uncle J. Blackett;  

 1742 - 1783 
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William Wight; son in law Alexander Macdonald; 
Thomas Hanmer; James Boswell; Edinburgh (13 March 
1780): With photocopy of reply. George Wood; John 
Wilson; and others  
References to family affairs; George Whitefield; visitors 
to Bridlington; Newmarket and Wakefield races; 
pineapples and the first turtle sent to Thorpe; a plan of 
'the larger front' of a house, sent in charge of 'young 
Carr'; London and Edinburgh gossip; rejection of a 
would be suitor of a daughter of Godfrey Bosville; nails 
for work on Bridlington pier; arms in Royston Church 
41 items 
 

U DDBM/32/9 Letters to John Spencer, Cannonhall, from Godfrey 
Bosville 
Is sending him oysters; duel between Lord Byron and 
Mr Chaworth; parliamentary and society gossip; has 
bought two volumes of 'Tristram Shandy'; dancing 
'almost out of fashion'; 'the Nobility hold themselves 
uncontaminated by the Commons'; new play 'of the 
Platonic wife' is disliked; Lord Tavistock injured hunting 
near St. Albans 
2 items 
 

 1765 - 1767 

U DDBM/32/10 Letters of Thomas Hassell, Henry Willoughby and 
William St. Quintin, Deputy Lieutenants executing the 
office of Lord Lieutenant during a vacancy  
Lieutenancy affairs 
8 items 
 

 1763 - 1769 

U DDBM/32/11 Letters to Julia Bosville from T. Blackett; Lord 
Rosebery; S. Hudson; Miss Willis; R. Shee; William 
Ward  
References to subscription ball at Almack's; Mr Leland 
drowned bathing; and society gossip. Love letters from 
R. Shee and William Ward 
7 items 
 

 1774 - 1780 

U DDBM/32/12 Letters to William Bosville from Lord Fitzwiliam; William 
Cobbett; John Hall; William Radclyffe (Rouge Croix); 
Mary Hart; Mrs M. Macdonald  
References to parliamentary election of 1784 (asking 
his support for Foljambe and Weddell); subscription list 
for Miss Taylor; scandal of the Duke of York and Mrs 
Clarke; compilation of Bosville pedigree; estate affairs, 
survey of Stainforth, Hatfield and Fishlake; funeral of 
Horne Tooke 
10 items 
 
 
 

 1784 - 1814 
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U DDBM/32/13 Letters to Godfrey Macdonald, 3rd Lord Macdonald, 

from Bishop of Sodor and Man; Duke of Devonshire; 
Spencer Stanhope; K. Duncombe; Jemima Wilson; 
Clanranald; D, Baird; Duke of Kent; J. W. Macdonald 
(peninsular); 2nd Lord Macdonald; William F. Burdett; 
Charles James; George Sinclair; J. Maister; Samuel 
Dashwood; Ralph Creyke;William Curtis; John 
Greame; F. W. Blanberg; Prince Polignac; Lord 
Stafford; Admiral Ross Donnelly; Sir John Lowther; 
Thomas Wildman; Lord Melbourne; J. Polkinghorne; 
Tatton Sykes; Sir James Graham; James Hall; 
Archibald Macdonald (one from Saint Petersburg); 
Walter Pollard; John Hall; Diana Sinclair; Sons, 
Alexander, Godfrey, James and William; Duke of 
Wellington; and others 
Family, estate and political matters including 
references to enlargement of Cawthorne Church; 
William Cobbett; coursing meetings at Malton; sons 
absence from school at Eton, 'your son lately under 
pretence of Illness staid out of school ... Dr Keate has 
punished him and turned him down to the bottom of the 
fourth form. It is discovered by his own confession, as 
was suspected that he was at Epsom Races'; proposal 
that the magistrates meeting should be established at 
Driffield instead of Barmston; the Reform Bill; 
appearance of Paginini in Exeter, Sheffield and York; 
furnishings for communion table in Rudston Church; 
marriage of daughter Susan to Capt. Beaumont; 
Peninsula War, mentioning Duke of Wellington and 
Napoleon; costs of rebuilding Denby and Middop corn 
mills; erection of monument to Sir Walter Scott 
c. 200 items 
 

 1806 - 1832 

U DDBM/32/14 Letters to Louisa Maria Macdonald from Lord 
Macdonald; James Macdonald in Spain and London; 
daughter Louisa; Diana Beaumont; son, Alexander; son 
Duncan Davidson; D. Sinclair; Alex Murray; Secretary 
of Bridlington National School; James Gaunt, London; 
Margaret Morison, Edinburgh; M. A. Ansley; S. 
Hamery, Norwich  
Family and private affairs; Peninsular War 
41 items 
 

 1810 - 1832 

U DDBM/32/15 Letters to Alexander William Robert Macdonald 
(Bosville) from Archibald Macdonald; James 
Macdonald; John Hall, Beverley; cousin Catherine 
Sinclair; son Wentworth Bosville; B. Charlesworth, 
Barnsley; Wm. Barker, Bridlington; Spencer Stanhope; 
Sheffield; Wortley, Silkestone and Wakefield Railway 
Co.; Parker Smiths ; Baxter, Rose and Norton; Geo. 
Strickland; sisters Julia and Louisa Bosville; daughter  

 1811 - 1846 
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Julia Louisa Bosville; mother; father Godfrey Bosville  
Family and estate affairs, curacy at Shotley; statues of 
Thomas and Isabella Bossevile in Darfield Church; 
restoration of Bridlington Church; South Yorkshire; 
Doncaster and Goole Railway; Sheffield-Manchester 
Railway; proposed Burlington-York Railway and 
George Hudson the 'Railway King'; holiday in 
Edinburgh; description of a 'Grand Ball given by the 
officers of the Guards'; 'Lord Wellington has got 
possession of Salamanca and Toro and is advanced 
nearly to Valladolid. We shall soon hear of his having 
made good ground as far as Burgos. The French have 
taken away some of their best Generals from the 
Peninsula and a good many of their veteran Troops, 
who have been replaced by Conscripts'; school affairs 
at Harrow; visit to Holland and France; social events; 
coursing meetings. (c. 125) 
c. 125 items 
 

U DDBM/32/16 Letters to Walter Spencer-Stanhope from Archibald 
Macdonald 
Bosville estates; 'We have no particular news in 
London, but the Declaration of Parliament with respect 
to the Manifesto occasions much speculation. Fight it 
out, I say, there can be no good Peace with the present 
Ruler of France.' 'I hear that Bonaparte has accepted 
the terms of Peace offered him by the Allies. Lord 
Castlereagh sets out immediately for Frankfort. Lord 
Wellington has Heaten Soult after 3 day's fighting and 
the French are retreating by Bourdeux'. Family affairs; 
visit to Brighton 
3 items 
 

 1813 - 1828 

U DDBM/32/17 Letter to Robert Rawson from Godfrey Bossvile, 
Gunthweat 
Corn tithes of lodge field in Oxspringe 
1 item 
 

 Sep 1639 

U DDBM/32/18 Letter to John Shirt, ('Honest John'), Cawthorne from 
Godfrey Bosseville, Coventry 
Non payment of rents 
1 item 
 

 28 Nov 1642 

U DDBM/32/19 Letter from Mr Simpson 
Asking for the money for Mr Fillingham, as he is going 
to London 
1 item 
 

 22 Jan 1681 

U DDBM/32/20 Letter to 'Dear Cousen' from Alexander Bosvile 
Pedigree and history of the Bosville family 
1 item 

 7 Nov 1692 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 58 of 93 

 
U DDBM/32/21 Letters to Joseph Banks, Sheffield from Nich. Baker  

Passing of Letters Patent; interest with Secretary 
Vernon, has resolved with Mr Jessop not to apply to 
the Privy Council 'till the interest be fixt by which affairs 
are to be governed', but they will take the best course 
for Mr Bosville's service  
2 items 
 

 20 Jul 1700 - 
21 Dec 1700 

U DDBM/32/22 Letter, Thomas Picker[ing], Under Sheriff from Richard 
Gregson, Signet Office  
Legal matters; 'Sir Francis Child's second son (a lawyer 
and member for the Devises in Wiltshire) hang'd 
himselfe in his chambers in the Temple' 
1 item 
 

 16 Feb 1703 

U DDBM/32/23 Letter from Thomas Nevill Simmons 
Will take care to procure 'what you want by the first' 
1 item 
 

 21 Dec 1703 

U DDBM/32/24 Letter from C. Arthington 
Financial matters; references to legacies and funeral 
expenses 
1 item 
 

 9 Jun 1709 

U DDBM/32/25 Letter to Thomas Hare, esq., Recorder of York from Ja. 
Mihill, Beverley  
'I find two Several Mortgages upon the estate of Tho. 
Hassell esquire, but they are both discharged. Before 
he purchased it there were Incumbrances upon it' 
1 item 
 

 28 Aug 1729 

U DDBM/32/26 Mrs Wentworth at Bretton from J. Moyser, York  
Congratulating her upon victory Sir William has 
obtained over Mr Langley. 'I have already lade out near 
twenty guneas in fees and with the tavern Expences 
dont come near a hundred more' 
1 item 
 

 22 May 1731 

U DDBM/32/27 Wm. Spences, esq., Cannon Hall from H. Bosvile 
Pipe of wine 
1 item 
 

 1 Nov 1737 

U DDBM/32/28 Letter to Mr Prickett, Kilham from 'A. H.' Walkington  
'If I must not be so happy as to see Mr Hassell when he 
comes to the Sessions at Beverley...I beg he will send 
me Supplys of money by you the next week.' Has 
received turkey and fowls from Thorp 
1 item 
 
 
 

 7 Jan 1747 
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U DDBM/32/29 Letter to Frances Bosvile from brother Thomas Bosvile, 

Hadley 
He is destitute and asks for relief 
1 item 
 

 24 Dec 1749 

U DDBM/32/30 Letter to T. Richardson esq., Brandesburton from J. 
Taylor, St. John's and J. Newcome  
Death of uncle of T. Richardson and value of clerical 
living 
1 item 
 

 Oct 1755 

U DDBM/32/31 Letter from Henry Bosville of Bradbourne, co. Kent 
Living of Penistone, references to Ralph Bosville of 
Bradbourne 
1 item 
 

 30 Mar 1760 

U DDBM/32/32 Copy letters from W. Hassell, Horsmorden, nr. 
Lamberhurst, co. Kent 
Estate and Will of William Hassell, dec'd 
1 bundle 
 

 Jan - Feb 1764 

U DDBM/32/33 Copy letter to (Archbishop of York ?) from T. Hassell 
Disputes concerning terms of Inclosure Award 
1 item 
 

1760s 

U DDBM/32/34 Letter to J. Stevenson, Stafford from Frederick Bishop 
of Lichfield and Coventry 
Death of Mr Bosville. With draft reply 
1 item 
 

 21 Jan 1767 

U DDBM/32/35 Letter to Mr Stevenson, Queen Street, Cheapside from 
Diana Bosville  
Acknowledging receipt of bank post bill for £200; 
parliamentary election, 'Mr Crowe who is one candidate 
for the North Riding register Office and Mr Warley the 
other, it is expected there will be a pretty smart contest 
between them' 
1 item 
 

 9 Aug 1774 

U DDBM/32/36 Draft letter from Mr Pygott 
Lease of a house 
1 item 
 

 6 Oct 1782 

U DDBM/32/37 Letter to Capt. Thomas Bosville, Great Russell St., 
Bloomsbury from T. Blackett 
Will of Annabell Wentworth: bequests to L'Hospital des 
Enfants at Nice; Miss Jean Rollo of Vandouvre at 
present residing with Madam La Comtesse de Castaldi. 
(7 July 1778) 
1 item 
 

 4 Jan 1783 
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U DDBM/32/38 Mr Hall, Beverley from his brother (John) H[all], 

Scorbro' 
'I shall be at York on Fryday' 
1 item 
 

 25 Dec 1791 

U DDBM/32/39 Mr Wilson from Hon. Shawe 
Title deeds relating to Mr Archdale's estate at 
Pennistone sold to Mr Bosville 
1 item 
 

 13 Aug 1798 

U DDBM/32/40 Letter to Mr Travis, from Samuel Hall, Beverley 
Concerning mortgage of Mr Bosville's estate at Thorpe 
and Rudston 
1 item 
 

 1 Feb 1801 

U DDBM/32/41 Letter to Mrs Travis, Brough from J. Singleton, 
Givendale 
Lease of a farm 
1 item 
 

 9 Sep 1808 

U DDBM/32/42 Letter to Lady Charlotte Campbell from Col. Macdonald  
Arranging for his son Alexander Macdonald and Master 
Campbell to travel back to Harrow together 
1 item 
 

 10 Sep 1811 

U DDBM/32/43 Draft letter to Darley (Colonel Macdonald ?) 
Disposal of a commission in the 1st Guards 
1 item 
 

n.d. [1812] 

U DDBM/32/44 Letter to Lt. Colonel James William Macdonald from 
Godfrey Macdonald, camp near Oyazun  
Visit to St. Sebastian; 'The siege has been suspended 
for some time past owing to lack of ammunition; a large 
supply, however has just arrived and vigorous 
measures are expected immediately to be 
recommended ... Lord Wellington was on the heights 
here yesterday. His headquarters at Lesec (Lesca). He 
has ordered the great boats round; and cannon is to be 
brought to the heights this looks like remaining in our 
present position. The French will not I think venture to 
attack us here as the position I should consider with 
British troops impregnable the only possibility of 
advancing would be at low water and if he did not 
succeed in that interval he would be in a scrape' etc 
1 item 
 

 21 Aug 1813 

U DDBM/32/45 Letter to James (Macdonald ?) from (Godfrey 
Macdonald ?), Notting Hill 
Death of 'uncle Mr Bosville' 
1 item 
 

 13 Jan 1814 
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U DDBM/32/46 Letters from Geo. Darley, Orderly Room, 1st Guards 
a) rates of pay; 'the gay doings here continues, the 
tents are pitching within the railings of the Park and a 
most superb Bridge is erected opposite the Stable Yard 
over the Canal, which has a Pagoda in it's Centre 
about 80 feet high. The Royal Booth extend from the 
Wall of the Duke of York's northward and galleries 
follow to the Buildings facing the Green Park... It is 
almost time these things were stopped, for John Bull 
has had too much holiday'. 21 July 1814 
b) 'General Disney I understand gets a Regiment in 
Succession to the Colinelcy of the 15th Foot vacant by 
the Death of General Powell... the German part of the 
first Division were embarking upon that day but the 
Guards were nor expected to go on board until the end 
of the month'. 23 July 1814 
c) rates of pay. 27 July 1814 
1 bundle 
 

21 - 27 Jul 1814 

U DDBM/32/47 Printed letters of Major James. Military Library, 
Whitehall 
Plan for the distribution of half-pay to the army 
2 items 
 

 25 Jul 1814 

U DDBM/32/48 Letter to Archibald Macdonald, Basildon Park, nr. 
Reading from G. Bosville 
Family matters, opinion of Mr Dance 
1 item 
 

 15 Sep 1816 

U DDBM/32/49 Letter to Julia Macdonald, Thorpe from James 
(Macdonald ?), Horse Guards 
Requesting money 
1 item 
 

 8 Jan 1833 

U DDBM/32/50 Letter to Mr and Mrs Bosville from W. Penn, Hopetown 
House 
Accepting invitation to visit Thorpe 
1 item 
 

 22 Oct 1837 

U DDBM/32/51 Letter to Godfrey William Wentworth, 4th Lord 
Macdonald from C. Soulsby, Bessingby 
Family and local gossip; Holderness Hunt 
1 item 
 

 2 Oct 1839 

U DDBM/32/52 Letter from William Kay, Midhopestones 
Seeking permission to continue hunting 
1 item 
 

 1847 

U DDBM/32/53 Letter from Louisa Blaaun, Tunbridge Wells 
Interest on Lord Yarborough's mortgage 
1 item 
 

19th cent. 
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U DDBM/32/54 Letter to 'my Dearest wife' from Thos. Terry, Gower St.  

'Keld is not arrived in Town but is expected to day, 
whether we shall get on with the drainage or not I 
cannot tell- the committee upon the Walkington Petn. 
comes on Friday.....An Express is just arrived to the 
Admiralty of the mutiny still continues and it is say'd the 
French Fleet are out' 
1 item 
 

late 18th cent. 

U DDBM/32/55 Portion of letter from J. Stanfield 
Prisoners of French being sold as slaves in the West 
Indies 
1 item 
 

late 18th cent. 

U DDBM/32/56 Draft, from 'your affectionate Brother' 
Allowance of £50 a year out of brothers estates 
1 item 
 

19th cent. 

U DDBM/33 Miscellaneous 
51 items, bundles or volumes 
 

 [1525] - 1930 

U DDBM/33/1 Answer of Rauf Alcroft and [Charles Mychell] to the Bill 
of Complaint of Roger [Grene] 
Relating to property demised by Thomas Boswell of the 
New Hall esq. 
1 item 
 

 mid 16th cent. 

U DDBM/33/2 Depositions in Rychard Hawksworth v. Godfrey 
Boswell and Adame Bothomes 
Case relating to tenement [Brode Oakes] and 4 closes 
called Mickletwaite Fields and a right of way, in 
Gunthwaite 
1 item 
 

 31 Mar 1578 

U DDBM/33/3 Illuminated Pedigree of the Bosville family by Robert 
Glover, Somerset Herald 
1 item 
 

 1586 

U DDBM/33/4 Commonplace Book  
Containing:  
a) 'A Calender of the Libertie': list of privileges enjoyed 
by (the liberty of St. Mary, York?) 
b) List of free tenants in Yorkshire. Early seventeenth 
century 
c) List of surnames of those accompanying William the 
Conqueror on his invasion of England. Seventeenth 
century 
1 volume 
 
 
 

 17th cent. 
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U DDBM/33/5 Illuminated Certificate of William Camden, Clarencieux 

King of Arms  
Sir Raph Bosvile of Bradbourne co. Kent was knighted 
at Whitehall. 23 July 1603 ('about the time of' 
Coronation of Jas. I; that he is of noble descent and 
connected, through his marriage with Mary second 
daughter of Margaret, Baronnes Dacre, with many 
noble families of the Kingdom. His arms exemplified in 
the margin 
1 item 
 

 29 Sep 1621 

U DDBM/33/6 Petition to parliament of Thomas, son of Sir Thomas 
Bosevile of Aynsford, co. Kent 
To free his estate from sequestration 
1 item 
 

 c. 1650 

U DDBM/33/7 List of people on the committee for raising money for 
the maintenance of the army in the cos. Yorks (W. R.) 
and Warwickshire 
Also extract from pamphlet 'A pair of spectacles for the 
City 1648' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1660 

U DDBM/33/8 Petition of Sarah, widow of Richard Babington of 
Urney, co. Tyrone, gent., to the 'Committee for 
distributions to the distressed Protestants of Ireland' 
Losses during the rebellion 
1 item 
 

 1670 

U DDBM/33/9 Copy of Proceedings in Sir William Hunstler, Sir 
Richard Osbaldeston, and William Osbaldeston esq., v 
John Morton of Cawthorne, yeoman  
Plea of debt 
1 item 
 

 1704 

U DDBM/33/10 Jury lists and calendars of cases at Lammas Assizes. 
1705 
Bound in Lease for 21 years: at rent of £16, 2 gallons 
of strawberries, 2 bushells of roses and 1 bushell of 
apples being pear mains or pippins : Francis Lucy of 
St. Martins in the Fields, co. Middlesex esq., and wife 
Elizabeth to Ralphe heir of Ralphe Gregge of 
Hammersmith par. Fulham, co. Middlesex, gent., dec'd: 
2 messuages with 2 gardens and an orchard in 
Hammersmith. Not executed. 1680 
2 items 
 

 1680 - 1705 

U DDBM/33/11 Folder  
Containing:  
(i) Lease for a year : Thomas Hassell of Beverley, gent. 
and wife Hellen to Samuell Hassell of Thorpe esq.: 2  

 1703 - 1757 
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oxgangs, close called the Thornes, oddlands called 
Jewison Land, 2 cottages called Guild Hall; cottage 
Garth, 6 1/2 oxgangs, closes called the Thornes and 
the Paddock; messuage, garth and barn; and rent of 
2s. 6 d. all in Nafferton and sometime property of 
Thomas Wood of Thorpe, gent., dec'd : To lead to a 
Release. Witn. Geo. Williamson, Jane Rumbert. 30 
November 1703 
(ii) Notes on the Hassell family taken from Dugdale's 
Visitation (1665) 1757 
(iii) Pedigree of Bosvile family of Warmsworth. 
(Eighteenth century copy) 
1 file 
 

U DDBM/33/12 Pedigree of Bosvile family 
1 item 
 

early 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/13 'Verses written by Sir Walter Blackett Bart.'  
'On a faded picture of himself done by Sir Joshua 
Reynolds' 
1 item 
 

 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/14 Memoirs of the Bosville's family 
1 item 
 

 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/15 Genealogical memoranda of families of Swift of 
Doncaster ; Bossville of New Hall, Wartley, Doncaster, 
Birthwaite, Chevet and Gunthwaite 
1 item 
 

 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/16 Extracts from 'Collins Peerage Volume II' relating to 
Aquila, Bussill and Lizures families. 1714 
Also 'An Elegiack Poem in Praise of Durham from the 
Saxon' 
1 bundle 
 

 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/17 Lists of Sheriffs of Yorkshire (1649 - 1710) 
1 bundle 
 

 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/18 Memoranda and cellar book of Godfrey Bosville 
2 items 
 

 1722 - 1725 

U DDBM/33/19 Folder containing miscellaneous poems, Napoleonic 
map of western Europe, epitaphs 
40 items 
 

 1776 - 1806 

U DDBM/33/20 Inventory of Lady Osbaldeston's plate and linen 
1 item 
 

 1730 

U DDBM/33/21 'Directions about Miss Bosvile' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1731 
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U DDBM/33/22 Ms. notes on a debate in Parliament granting the King 

power to increase his sea and land forces 
1 item 
 

30 Mar 1734 

U DDBM/33/23 Case and Opinion of D. Ryder: relating to repayment of 
sums of money loaned on mortgage to William Bosville 
1 item 
 

 29 May 1737 

U DDBM/33/24 Commission of Godfrey Bosville, esq. as Deputy 
Lieutenant for the West Riding, York and Ainsty 
1 item 
 

 14 Jul 1738 

U DDBM/33/25 Commissions of Godfrey Bosvile, esq., as Deputy 
Lieutenant for the East Riding and Hull 
1 item 
 

 6 Aug 1739 

U DDBM/33/26 Poem. 'The Revd., Mr Shakepear of Layland, to Miss 
D. Y. G[  ]rell of Preston on her presenting with a blue 
and white Huswife' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1745 

U DDBM/33/27 Book (of Rev. Samuel Hassell?) containing 
memoranda and inventories of wines, books, letters, 
documents, etc' 
1 volume 
 

 1739 - 1781 

U DDBM/33/28 Book containing pedigrees and genealogical material of 
the family Bosville of Gunthwaite 
1 volume 
 

 mid 18th cent. 

U DDBM/33/29 Receipt of Godfrey Bosville for £35 7s. 0. paid to 
James Hamilton, merchant of Hull 
1 item 
 

 11 Jan 1755 

U DDBM/33/30 Book containing rent accounts, stock of cattle at 
Thorpe and (Brandes?) Burton and lists of contents of 
drawer at Thorpe 
1 volume 
 

 1753 - 1784 

U DDBM/33/31 Extracts from 'William Dugdale's Monastican 
Anglicanum' relating to the Bosville family 
1 bundle 
 

 1766 

U DDBM/33/32 Book containing 'A schedule of writings in the 
possession of Godfrey Bosville of Gunthwaite, esq.' 
1 volume 
 

 1767 

U DDBM/33/33 Account for 'Lady Macdonalds wedding cloathes' 
1 item 
 
 

 1768 
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U DDBM/33/34 Copy of names in the Commission of the Peace for the 

East Riding 
1 item 
 

 1771 

U DDBM/33/35 List of members of the Driffield Hunt 
1 item 
 

 18 Dec 1772 

U DDBM/33/36 Pedigree of the Bosville family of Gunthwaite 
1 item 
 

 1772 

U DDBM/33/37 Invitation to dinner: the Lord Mayor to Mr Boswell 
1 item 
 

 1774 

U DDBM/33/38 Commission of Godfrey Bosville as Deputy Lieutenant 
of the East Riding 
1 item 
 

 10 Jul 1779 

U DDBM/33/39 Instruction of Godfrey Bosville that his body shall be 
used for medical research after his death 
1 item 
 

 c. 1780 

U DDBM/33/40 Irish State Lottery Ticket 
1 item 
 

 1782 

U DDBM/33/41 Commission of Thomas Bosville esq., as Captain, 
Coldstream Guards 
1 item 
 

 26 May 1789 

U DDBM/33/42 'Match Book' containing programmes of Coursing 
meetings at Malton, Altcar, Ashdown and Louth 
With covering letters from Rev. Francis Best, South 
Dalton and Thomas Goodlake, Benhams, Wantage 
27 items 
 

 1814 - 1831 

U DDBM/33/43 Pedigree of Bosville family 
1 item 
 

 1814 

U DDBM/33/44 Volume.  'The new, complete, authentic and universal 
system of geography: being a complete modern history 
and description of the whole world...' by George Henry 
Miller (London, printed for Alex. Hogg) 
1 volume 
 

 early 19th cent. 

U DDBM/33/45 Schedule of 'Title deed, Evidences and writings' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1835 

U DDBM/33/46 'Schedule of Abstracts of Documents and papers etc. 
relating to estates in the West Riding... belonging to the 
late Lord Macdonald' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1835 
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U DDBM/33/47 Transcripts of documents and extracts from church 
registers made by Rupert Simms relating to Bosville 
family 
1 bundle 
 

 1909 

U DDBM/33/48 Prospectus of 'The Memorials of Calverley Church' by 
Rev. Henry Stapleton 
1 item 
 

 Jan 1912 

U DDBM/33/49 'Tree showing the descent of the Families of 
Macdonald of Sleat and the Isles' 
1 item 
 

 1916 

U DDBM/33/50 Cutting from the 'Yorkshire Telegraph and Star'  
Presentation to Sheffield Corporation of 4 1/2 acres of 
parkland on S.bank of Porter Brooke by T. W. Hall 
1 item 
 

 29 Mar 1930 

U DDBM/33/51 'Land Charters and Court Rolls from the Bosville 
Collection' by T. Walter Hall 
1 item 
 

 1930 

U DDBM/34 Settlements 
16 items 
 

1559 - 1788 

U DDBM/34/1 Copy Settlement: Godfray Bossvyle of Gunildthwayte 
to Robert Rocklay of Rocklay and Thomas Drax of 
Woodhall, esqs.  
Manors of Gunildthwayte, Denby and Oxspringe and all 
his property in those places and in Cawthorne, 
Penyston, Thurleston, Barneslay, Rughbirchworth and 
Hunshelf: To the use of G. B. for life and then 
successively in tail male to his sons Francis, Godfrey 
and William; his brother Rafe and Henry; and Jervis 
Bossevyle of Newhall esq. Witn. William Barmbey, 
Matthew Uther, Ralph Jenkinson, John Mickelthwayte, 
John Jenkynson, Roger Mickelthwayt, Lawrence 
Moakson. Thomas Hawkesworth. Robert Scorer, John 
Michell, Anthony Wodcocke. 20 June 1559. Attached is 
relative Feoffment. 21 June 1559 
1 item 
 

 20 - 21 Jun 
1559 

U DDBM/34/2 Copy. Settlement: Godfrey Bossevyle of 
Gomuldthwayte, esq. to Robert Rocklay of Rocklay and 
Thomas Drax of Woodhall, esqs.  
Manors of Gomuldthwayte, Denby and Oxspringe,. 
Cawthorne, Penyston, Thurleston, Barneslay, 
Kearesforth, Rughbyrchworth, Hunshelf : To the use of 
G. B. for life and then successively in tail male to son 
Francis, brother Rafe and Henry and Jervis Bossevyle 
of Newhall, esq. Witn. to livery of seisin Richard 
Beaumont, John Kay, William Barmbye, esq., Thomas  

 13 Aug 1572 
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Hawkesworth, Robert Cooke, John Michell, Thomas 
Catlin, Anthony Woodcocke. With copy of relative 
Feoffment 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/34/3 Settlement 
(i) Francys Bossevyle of Gunthwayte esq. 
(ii) Avary Copley jnr., and John Dignton jnr., gents. 
(iii) Robert Bradford esq., and Christopher Copley, 
gent. 
Further to marriage of F. B. and wife Dorothie: manors 
of Gunthwayte alias Gumblethwayte, Oxsprynge and 
Penystone, Thurleston, Cawthorne, Barnesley, 
Ardslowe, Denbie, Walton, Rowgh Byrcheworthe and 
Kexforthe alias Kereforthill. Witn. Richard Crosbye, 
John Buckley, William Byncke 
1 item 
 

 8 Jan 1586 

U DDBM/34/4 Settlement: Thomas Hattersley of Middop in the 
chapelry of Bradford yeoman and James Taylor of 
Gledlees, sheather and George Roukesley of 
Ryvelingeside, husbandman: further to marriage of T. 
H. and wife Elizabeth 
Middop. Witn. Thomas Crosley, George Bendus and 
Wm. Lee 
1 item 
 

 2 Sep 1642 

U DDBM/34/5 Marriage Settlement: Sir William Pershall of Cannell 
and Richard Boswell of Sengnall, esqs., to John 
Pershall of Horsley and William Egerton of Betley, 
gents., all co. Staffs.: on marriage of R. B. and 
Elizabeth, daughter of Bridgitt Pershall of Checkley, co. 
Chester, widow 
Property (45 tenants and closes called the Intacks, 
Ladies Peece, the Coningree and the Wiggs named) in 
Eccleshall, Brockton, Senghall, Horseley, Bishops 
Offley and Croxton co. Staffs.. Witn. Walter Ashton, Ro. 
Robotham, Sy. Degge, Antho. Goodalle. 2 November 
1649. Endorsement of production to Robert Robotham 
esq., at a commission at Eccleshall. Witn. John 
Colclough, Henry Haworth, Thomas Bagnall. 8 April 
1649 
1 item 
 

 8 Apr 1649 – 
 2 Nov 1649  

U DDBM/34/6 John Beighton of Nether Bradfield and his son and heir, 
Jonathan Beighton of Hansworth, yeoman to Robert 
Turner of Hutton Pannell, gent., and Thomas Stead of 
Onesecre, co. York: further to marriage of Jonathan B. 
and Mary, only daughter of Henry Wainwright of 
Hansworth, yeoman, dec'd  
Messuage and close in Middopp. Witn. William  

 8 Apr 1649 
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Swickett, Thomas Barley, Martha Beighton, William 
Machell 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/34/7 Marriage Settlement 
(i) Robert Hall of Stumperlow par. Sheffield, gent. 
(ii) John Spender senr., of Cannon Hall in Cawthorne 
(iii) Henry Hall, gent., son and heir of Robert Hall 
Further to marriage of .H H. and Sarah, widow of John 
Norton of Kettlethorpe, gent., dec'd, and daughter of 
John Spender for her marriage portion of £750: 
messuage, cottage called Hallam Feild Coate and 
close called Near and Faree Sneathinges, Upper and 
Nether Storths, the Springe, Little Meadow at the back 
of the barne, the Leyes, the Leyes alias Odecroft and 4 
Hallam Feilds all in Stumperlow, Manor of Meddopp 
alias Over Meddopp with Meddopp Hall and 
messuages (8 tenants named) and all appurtenances 
in Meddopp, Langside and Bradfeild, Farm called 
Coates par. Silkston. Witn. J. Wilson, Tho. Whitakers, T 
Wainwright, Charles Moore 
1 item 
 

 16 Apr 1680 

U DDBM/34/8 Marriage Settlement 
(i) Robert Hall of Stumperlow par. Sheffield, gent. 
(ii) John Spender senr., of Cannon Hall in Cawthorne 
(iii) Henry Hall, gent., son and heir of Robert Hall 
Further to marriage settlement of H. H. and Sarah, 
widow of John Norton of Kettlethorpe, gent., dec'd and 
daughter of John Spender for her marriage portion of 
£750: messuage cottage called Hallam Feild Coate and 
close called Near and Free Sneathinges, Upper and 
Nether Storths, the Springe, Little Meadow at the back 
of the barne, the Leyes, the Leyes alias Odecroft and 2 
Hallam Feilds all in Stumperlow. Manor of Meddopp 
alias Over Meddopp with Meddopp Hall and 
messuages (8 tenants named) and all appurtenances 
in Meddopp, Langside and Bradfeild. Farm called 
Coates par. Silkston. Witn. J. Wilson, Tho. Whitakers, 
T. Wainwright, Charles Moore. All as DDBM/34/7 
1 item 
 

 16 Apr 1680 

U DDBM/34/9 Settlement: Thomas Hassell of Thorpe, esq., and wife 
Anne to Sir William Wentworth of Bretton and Sir 
Richard Osbaldeston of Hunmanby: Further to 
marriage of T. and A. H. for her marriage portion of 
£2000  
5 messuages, little close at the High the High Towne 
End , 2 closes called Tennloes and part of 
Peckenddaile, Well Close, closes in Staincliffefield and 
part of Croambeck, Thorpe Acres, Adeleskew Bank,  

 27 Jan 1720 
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Kell Springs, part of Croambeck Banks in Croambeck. 
Farr, Middle and First closes in Cow Moore, 
Peckenddaile, the way to Boubrough, Arrasdales, 
Buckton Acres and little close next Dovecoat all in High 
and Low Hutton. 27 messuages in Rudston (Tenants 
named). Witn. Dorothy Staines, John Johnson, Peter 
Wride 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/34/10 Settlement 
(i) Thomas Hassell of Thorp esq. 
(ii) Anne Elwick of Mayplace, co. Kent, esq., and 
Thomas Watson of Rudston, gent. 
(iii) Nathaniel Elwick of Mayplace, co. Kent esq. and 
Thomas Watson of Rudston, gent. 
On marriage of T. H. and A. E.: messuage and lands in 
Rudston (16 tenants named):Witn. James Young, Robt. 
Simpson, Marm. Prickett 
1 item 
 

 12 Jan 1745 

U DDBM/34/11 Articles of Agreement further to and parties as, 
DDBM/35/10  
For payment to Anne Elwick of legacies under Will of 
her father Thomas Elwick of Stainforth, gent., dec'd, 
and for settlement of manor of Haitfield and property of 
E. A. in Haitfield Thorne, Stainforth, Fishlake and 
Dowsthorpe. Witn. as DDBM/35/10 
1 item 
 

 12 Jan 1745 

U DDBM/34/12 Covenant to levy a fine 
(i) William Martyn of Middle Temple, London, gent., and 
wife Elizabeth, widow and admin. of Richard Bosvile of 
Bionnie, co. of Staffs. esq. 
(ii) John Byrch of Cannocke, co. Staffs., gent. and 
Walter Higges of Stafford, gent. 
(iii) Sir Richard Oteley of Pitchford co. Salop and Sir 
Henry Bosvile of Eynsford co. Kent and Robert Bosvile 
esq., (as (i)) 
Capital messuage called Sympsons place in Bromeley; 
400 acres woodland in pars. Beckenham, Bromeley, 
Hayes, Lewsham, Orpington and Keiston all in the co. 
Kent: To uses declared in indenture of previous dated. 
Witn. Geo. Gyford, Rob. Brent, John Evens 
1 item 
 

 7 Feb 1668 

U DDBM/34/13 Settlement: John Welles of Sandbach, co. Chester, 
esq. and wife Elizabeth, widow of Richard Bosvile, 
gent. to Francis Elde of Highforde, esq., Hester 
Bowyer, spinster (a daughter of Sir John B. of 
Kinpersley, co. Staffs., dec'd) and Walter Yonge son 
and heir of John Y. of Charmes, co. Stafford, esq.:  

 20 Jan 1694 
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further to marriage of J. and E. W. 
Annuity of £25 from lands in the co. Leics. settled on E. 
W. by her late husband, and all her personal estate: 
Witn. Jonah Bowyer, John Cotton 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/34/14 Copy. Marriage Settlement 
(i) Thomas Place of York jnr., esq. 
(ii) Bridget Bosville, widow of Hugh Bosville of York 
dec'd 
(iii) Mary Bosville spinster daughter of H. B. 
(iv) Godfrey Bosville of Gunthwaite, esq., William Todd 
of Newstead esq., and Rev. Edward Place rector of 
Bedale 
On marriage of T. P. and M. B. for her marriage portion 
of £300: capital messuage and lands at Barmby upon 
Dunn. Witn. Thomas Taylor, Eliz. Lascelles. With 
covering letter from John Richardson to Godfrey 
Bosville esq., enclosing this copy 
1 item 
 

 29 Oct 1755 

U DDBM/34/15 Marriage Settlement 
(i) Hon. William Ward of par. St. George, Hanover 
Square, co. Middlesex youngest son of John, Lord 
Dudley and Ward, dec'd 
(ii) Godfrey Bosville of Thorpe esq. and daughter Julia 
(iii) G. B., William Bosville and Thomas Blackett 
Bosville all of Thorpe esqs. 
On marriage of W. W. and J. B. for her marriage 
portion of £1000: messuages and farms (mentions 
Lodge Hall, Sedgley Park Farm. Tenants named) in co. 
Staffs. Witn. Williams Smith, Jon. Pugh 
1 item 
 

 31 Jul 1780 

U DDBM/34/16 Copy. Marriage Contract: Sir John Sinclair of Ulbster, 
co. Caithness and Hon. Diana Macdonald, eldest 
daughter of Alexander, Lord Macdonald 
1 item 
 

 28 Feb 1788 

U DDBM/35 Wills 
43 items 
 

1582 - 1807 

U DDBM/35/1 Will of Henrye Bossevile of Nottingham, gent. 
Bequests to his sister Elyoner, wife of Leonarde Gibson 
of Sennock, co. Kent; Elyzabeth, Dorathye, William, 
Thomas, James and Raufe children of E. and L. G.; 
sister Dyonyse and her husband Henry Pygott of 
Abyington uxsa Royston, co. Cambs., esq., nephews 
Henrye Bossevile of Bradborne, co. Kent, esq. and his 
brother Robert Bosevile; uncle Willm Barnabye esq., 
aunts Anne Lynacre widow of Beighton Co. Derby and  

 16 Jul 1582 
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Katherin Streate of Silkston; cousin Thomas Barnabye 
alias Hole attorney; nephew Francys Bossvile, gent.; 
servant John Oxley; poor of Nottingham; Earle of 
Shrewsbury: personalty and money. Reference to 
Robert Sharpe citizen and goldsmith of London, living 
at the sign of the basket in Westcheape, William 
Wentworth of Kelwick, Edwarde Maddyson of 
Fonnebye, co. Lincs. Witn. Rychard Jamys, Wm. 
Jackson, Thomas Cas...end. Probate 10 October 1582 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/2 Will of Thomas Hattersley of Denbie par. Penistone, 
yeoman  
Bequests to wife Johane, son and heir Thomas, 
daughters Johane and Marie: lands in Middope and 
elsewhere in the co. York. 'Great Arke' in his house at 
Middope. Cupboard and counter in house at Denbie: If 
wife remarries tuition of children to Houmfray Strit, 
brother John Hattersley and Christopher Marsden. 
Witn. Thomas Fanshawe, Homfray Strit, Roger Swift, 
James Hey 
1 item 

 18 Sep 1603 

U DDBM/35/3 Will of William Watson of Helmsley, gent. 
Bequests to sons Thomas and William; daughters 
Mary, Hellen, Anne and Jane; brothers John and Ralph 
Watson; wife: lands at Cockfeild, farm at Hollamoore 
and the Collery; money; 'one grey filly of Mr Croslands 
mare, gott by the Bay Arrabian'. Probate Canterbury 17 
February 1673 
1 item 

 20 Nov 1672 

U DDBM/35/4 Will of William Watson of Helmsley, gent.  
Bequest to sons Thomas and William; daughters Mary, 
Hellen, Anne and Jane; brothers John and Ralph 
Watson; wife, lands at Cockfeild, farm at Hollamoore 
and the Collery; money, 'one grey filly of Mt Corslands 
mare, gott by the Bay Arrabian'. As DDBM/35/3. 
Probate York 12 September 1673 
1 item 

 20 Nov 1672 

U DDBM/35/5 Will of Thomas Hassel of New Malton. esq., barrister of 
Grays Inn  
Bequests to sons Samuell, Thomas, Barney, Ralph and 
Mansfield; daughter Elizabeth Watson; daughters 
Anne, Mary and Margarett: property in Trimdon, co. 
Durham, personalty 
1 item 

 29 Feb 1692 

U DDBM/35/6 Will of Thomas Wood of Thorpe, gent., to be buried at 
Rudston  
Bequests to godson Thomas, son of Samuell Hassell : 
Bower and Henry Cowton and wife Elizabeth nee 
Bower both of Bridlington Key, merchants; poor of 
Ridston and Nafferton; nephews George St. Quintyn,  

 16 Jul 1695 
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Thomas Hassell of Beverley, Ralph Hassell; nieces 
Ann Hassell (nee Ann St. Quintyn) Margarett and Mary 
Hassell. Mrs Frances Norcliffe, Thomas Cattell of 
Rudston, Mrs Ann Tennant: messuage in Thorpe; lands 
in Thorpe, Rudston, Flaxton, Nafferton; money: 
Trustees Edward Bower, Bridlington Key, Henry 
Cowton of Bridlington, merchant. Witn. Ann Tennant, 
Frances Norcliffe, Thomas Cattel, Samuel Wearsdall, 
notary public 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/7 Copy. Will of Thomas Wood of Thorpe, gent., to be 
buried at Rudston 
Bequests to godson Thomas, son of Samuell Hassell : 
Bower and Henry Cowton and wife Elizabeth nee 
Bower both of Bridlington Key merchants; poor of 
Rudston and Nafferton; nephews George St. Quintyn; 
Thomas Hassell of Beverley; Ralph Hassell; nieces 
Ann Hassell (nee Ann St. Quintyn) Margarett and Mary 
Hassell. Mrs Frances Norcliffe; Thomas Cattell of 
Rudston; Mrs Ann Tenant: messuage in Thorpe; lands 
in Thorpe , Rudston, Flaxton, Nafferton; money: 
Trustees Edward Bower, Bridlington Key, Henry 
Cowton of Bridlington, merchant. Witn. Ann Tennant, 
Frances Norcliffe, Thomas Cattel, Samuel Wearsdall, 
notary public. Copy of DDBM/35/6 
1 item 
 

 16 Jul 1695 

U DDBM/35/8 Copy. Will of William Bosevile of Heath esq. 
Bequests to wife Bennet, sons Henry and William: 
Money. Exors. and trustees brother Godfrey Bosevile 
of Gunthwaite, brother Godfrey Copley of Scelbrooke 
esq. Rev. John Clayton rector of Crofton and Mr 
Theophilus Shelton of Heath 
1 item 
 

 19 Sep 1696 

U DDBM/35/9 Will of Thomas Hattersley of Upper Middop in the 
Chapelry of Bradfeild, yeoman  
Bequests to sons Thomas, Jesper, John, William, 
Nicholas and Joseph; daughters Sarah Hattersley and 
Ann Shaw; brother John Hattersley of Wath: messuage 
and closes in Upper Middop:Thomas to provide 
sufficient meat, drink, lodging, learning and apparel for 
Joseph until he reaches the age of 14. Witn. Emor. 
Rich, John Greaves, Robert Oldham. Probate 20 
September 1699 
1 item 
 

 10 Apr 1699 

U DDBM/35/10 Will of Sir Henry Bosvile of Littlemote Eynsford co. Kent  
Bequests to poor of Eynsford, godson Bosvile Willaims 
son of niece Margarett Williams, John Durlin, Thomas  

 21 Apr 1701 
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Streatfeild of Sevenocke co. Kent, gent., Robert 
Bosvile of Eagleshall, co. Stafford: messuage called 
'the farme upone Seavenoaks Vine' with 82 acres in all 
and all other property in co. Kent. Probate 29 April 
1702 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/11 Will of Thomas Hattersley of Upper Middop in the 
Chapelry of Bradfeild, yeoman  
Bequests to son Thomas Hattersley, daughter Dorothy, 
brothers Jasper, John, William, Nicholas and Joseph, 
sister Sarah Oldham; wife Anne: messuage called 
Abby alias One Manshouse with freehold land in 
Derbyshire or Yorkshire; 2 messuages in Upper 
Middop (one called the Upper House). Trustees 
Thomas Eyre of Hollins par. Castleton, co. Derby, 
yeoman. Probate 20 August 1711 
1 item 
 

 8 Jul 1711 

U DDBM/35/12 Copy. Will of Sir Thomas Pershall of Sugnall, co. 
Staffs.: to be buried in family vault at Eccleshall  
Bequests to sister An Pershall and Robert Bosvile of 
Biana co. Staffs.; grandchildren Arabella Pershall, 
Frances Ireland; Henry Bosville brother of R.B. 
Trustees Henry Legh of High Legh and George Parker 
of Parkhall, both co. Chester, esqs. 
1 item 
 

 15 Feb 1713 

U DDBM/35/13 Will of Margarett Stanhope of Bolton par. Calverley, 
widow  
Bequests to sisters Elizabeth Watson, Ann Hassell; 
cousin Samuel son of uncle Ralph Hassell, nephew 
Thomas Watson; god-daughter Mrs Dorothy Lister; 
niece Mrs Elizabeth Watson: money and personalty 
1 item 
 

 24 Mar 1721 

U DDBM/35/14 Will of Margaret Stanhope (as DDBM/35/13) 
Legatees as DDBM/35/13. Probate 7 November 1735 
1 item 
 

 20 Aug 1725 

U DDBM/35/15 Will of Catherine Osbaldeston, widow 
Bequests to brothers Thomas and Samuel Hassell; 
daughter Eleanor Osbaldeston: personalty and money: 
Exors. and trustees, T. H. and cousin Elizabeth 
Fothergill widow. Probate 4 March 1734 
1 item 
 

 25 Jun 1733 

U DDBM/35/16 Will of Jane Gray par. St. Dunstan's, West London, 
spinster: to be buried 'in the vault under the pew 
wherein my Dear Loveing mother usually Sat in Saint 
Thomas's Church in Winchester' 

 29 Nov 1735 
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Bequests to friend Thomas Watson of Grays Inn, 
Middlesex, gent.: 3 messuages in Maiden Lane par. St. 
Paul, Covent Garden and St. Martins in the fields, co. 
Middlesex (tenants named); personalty 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/17 Copy. Will of Thomas Hassell of Thorp esq.  
Bequests to wife, cousin George Hassell of Ripon, 
gent., eldest son Thomas Hassell and younger son: 
Huttons Ambo, Thorpe, Rudston, rectory of Hutton and 
Brandesburton. Personalty 
1 item 
 

 22 Mar 1737 

U DDBM/35/18 Assignment: Ann Hassell of York, widow of Thomas 
Hassell of Thorpe esq., son Thomas  
All claims rising from the property of Will as 
DDBM/35/17. Witn. Jn. Jackson, Stephen Buttle 
1 item 
 

 20 Mar 1740 

U DDBM/35/19 Will of Anne Hassell (as DDBM/35/18) 
Bequests to sons Thomas and Samuel; daughter Anne: 
personalty. Probate 14 September 1748 
1 item 
 

 30 Jun 1740 

U DDBM/35/20 Will of Samuel Hassel of Beverley, gent., younger son 
of Thomas Hassell of Thorpe esq., dec'd,  
Bequests to brother Thomas: personalty 
1 item 
 

 7 Apr 1741 

U DDBM/35/21 Will of Thomas Brown of Rudstone, yeoman  
Bequests to wife Elizabeth 
1 item 
 

 3 Feb 1743 

U DDBM/35/22 Will of Samuel Hassel of St. John's College, Cambridge 
son of Thomas Hassell of Thorpe esq., dec'd (as 
DDBM/35/19) 
Bequests to brother Thomas. Seal of Hassell Arms 
1 item 
 

 12 Jun 1744 

U DDBM/35/23 Copy: Will of Lt. Gen. Thomas Wentworth  
Bequests to wife; sister Elizabeth Wentworth; brother 
Sir William Wentworth his heirs in tail male then to the 
foundling hospital erected near Hatton Garden; Sir 
Edward Turner, Godfrey Wentworth esq., Phillip Baker 
esq., nephew Thomas Wentworth esq., John Launder 
of the Temple, attorney, servant Thomas Williamson 'all 
my Journalls, Draughts Papers etc, relating to the 
Expedition to the West Indies or to any other Publick 
Business wherein I have been employed may be 
collected together and deposited at Bretten'. Shorthand 
writings to be burnt: cos. Glos., Herts. and Lancs.,  

   6 Apr 1741 –  
1 Dec 1747 
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house in Clarges St.: , personalty. 6 April 1747  Codicil 
(T. W. now of Kensington), bequests to valet Thomas 
Williamson. Dated Turin 1 December 1747 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/24 Will of William Talbott of Biana, co. Staffs., 
husbandman 
Bequests to Mary Davies of Sutton, Sarah Talbott sen. 
and jnr., poor of Eccleshall, John Shropshire and his 
sons Thomas and William, servants at Biana; Frances 
and Elizabeth Bisville of Biana, kinsmen, Thomas 
Talbott of Walford and Robert Talbott of Sutton 
1 item 
 

 26 Jan 1749 

U DDBM/35/25 Will of Thomas Watson of Rudston, gent., student of 
Grays Inn  
Bequests to Thomas Hassell of Thorpe esq., sister 
Elizabeth Watson, Rev. Samuel Hassell: 3 messuages 
in Maiden Lane par. St. Paul, Covent Garden; money, 
personalty. Reference to dec'd wife Jane. Seal Armorial 
1 item 
 

 19 Sep 1751 

U DDBM/35/26 Copy: Will of Thomas Hassell of Thorp esq.  
Bequests to uncle Samuel Hassell of Brandsburton, 
gent., servant Nathaniel Hurst, Thomas Watson of 
Rudston gent., Mary and Elizabeth Wilson of Thorp, 
spinsters, Elizabeth Watson, Sarah Sawdon daughter 
of Mary Hall of Rudston, spinster 'now residing with 
William Sawdon of Sledmere, yeoman'; Francis 
Boynton of Burton Agnes esq.; George Hassell of 
Ripon, gent.: money 
1 item 
 

 27 Apr 1757 

U DDBM/35/27 Copy: Will of Henry Bosville of Bradbourn par. 
Sevenoaks, co. Kent esq.  
Bequests to Richard Betenson of Queen Sq., New 
Ormond St., Westminster, Thomas Mompesson of 
Sindrish, co. Kent esq. and William Selby of the Mote 
par. Ightham, co. Kent esqs., William eldest and 
Thomas second, sons of Thomas Lane doctor of physic 
of Sevenoake, Godfrey Bosville, Mary Johnston of 
Bradbourne in Sevenoake, co. Kent, spinster, Thomas 
Hodsall sen. of Riverhead par. Sevenoake: money. 
Probate 21 April 1761 
1 item 
 

 12 Jan 1761 

U DDBM/35/28 Will of Thomas Watson of Rudston, gent., student of 
Grays Inn  
Bequests to kinsman Thomas Hassell of Thorpe esq.; 
cousin Samuell Hassell of Brandsburton, gent.: 3 
messuages in Maiden Lane, par. St. Paul, Covent  

 9 Jul 1764 
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Garden and St. Martins in the Fields. Probate 16 
February 1771 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/29 Will of Thomas Hassell of Thorpe, esq.  
Bequests to servants Elizabeth Wilson, Thomas 
Sawdon, Nathaniel Hurst, John Mason and Mary Keiler 
widow, William Sawdon of Sledmire, yeoman in trust 
for Sarah Sawdon: cousin Thomas Watson of Rudston 
gent., Godfrey Bosville of Gunthwaite esq.: money. 
Probate 5 June 1773 
1 item 
 

 26 May 1770 

U DDBM/35/30 Letter: John Holme of Brandsburton to Col. Hassell at 
Thorpe.  
With extracts from Will of William Southby : bequests to 
sister in law Mary Latham of Eltham, co. Kent, brothers 
in law George Wright of Brandsburton labourer and 
Thomas Wright, brother John Southby; George 
Madrass, servant to Richard Rigby esq., friend Mark 
Wright of the Tower of London, gent.: money and 
personalty. Probate 19 February 1753. Also reference 
(in letter) to Quay from North Bridge to Beverley Gates 
at Hull and its effect upon drainage at Sutton 
1 item 
 

 10 Apr 1773 

U DDBM/35/31 Copy: Will of Godfrey Bosville of Gunthwaite par. 
Penistone and Thorpe par. Rudston esq.  
Bequests to wife Diana : daughter Elizabeth Diana wife 
of Alexander, Lord Macdonald of Ireland; sons Thomas 
Blackett Bosville, William Bosville: money 
1 item 
 

 12 Aug 1780 

U DDBM/35/32 Will of Annabella Wentworth  
Bequests to cousin Madam La Comptesse de Gastaldi; 
Mary Allot 'that married Mr Tulk'; servants Miss 
Elizabeth Payne of Queens Square, Bloomsbury 
1 item 
 

late 18th cent. 

U DDBM/35/33 Copy: Will of Edmond Rogers of Barnesley, yeoman: to 
be buried in chancel of Barnsley church  
Bequests to Ellen Rooke; niece Alice wife of Edward 
Hincliffe and daughter of brother Thomas Meller; Alice 
Meller, Alice wife of John Rogers dec'd; niece Anne 
wife of Thomas Smith and daughter of brother John 
Rogers; poor of Barnsley and Thorpe Awdling; Francis 
Watson and Hugh Allen; Mrs Sandford of Silkeston; 
Mrs Bateson of Barnsley; John, Henry and Thomas 
Woodcock; 'Thomas Parkin wife of Hesslesbrough'; 
John Hirst of Pyegreave; wife of Amborse Wordsworth; 
Isaac Waterhouse; John Waterhouse and his three  

 11 Jan 1647 
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children; Mrs Massye; 2 daughters of Thomas Mellor; 
Henry Swift of Wadsley; twenty pounds for the 
maintenance of a preacher at Middopp Cappell 'and 
when the place is vacant to the poore of Waldershelfe'; 
Mary Bennett and her sister Ellen; poor of Silkeston 
and South Kirkeby; John Swallow; Mr Hatefeild vicar of 
Darton; Mr Wild; William Wainewright; £10 for the 
erection of a clock in the Town Hall, Barnsley; 
Elizabeth Waterhouse; £50 each for the erection of a 
schoolhouse and house for the preaching minister in 
Barnsley; Gregory Armitage; Nicholas Broadley and 
Thomas Wood: messuage in Middopp; tithes of corn 
and grain at Thorpe, Wentbridge par. Badsworth : 
rectory of Kirkeby 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/35/34 Copy. Will of John Haighe of Middopp, yeoman: to be 
buried at Bradfield  
Bequests to Mary Streese; wife Elizabeth; brothers in 
law John Hobson of Dodworth and Daniell Rich of 
Smaleshawe; Josias Streete; maintenance of a 
preacher at Middopp Chapell; William Downend and 
his wife; Henry Charlesworth; Thomas Morton; John 
Marsden; Elizabeth Ibotsonn; John Webster; William 
Wainwright; William Swallow; Richard Charlesworth; 
Phebe Hilley; Robert Man; Robert Walker; Margarett 
Greene: messuage and closes in Silkeston; messuage 
'wherein I live'; closes in Middopp; close called the Roid 
in Langsett; money; ewes. Probate 5 May 1691 
1 item 
 

 25 Nov 1645 

U DDBM/35/35 Will of Thomas Wood of Thorpe, gent.: to be buried at 
Rudston  
Bequests to godson Thomas son of Samuel Hassell : 
Bower and Henry Cowton and wife Elizabeth nee 
Bower both of Bridlington Key, merchants : poor of 
Rudston and Nafferton; nephews George St. Quintyn; 
Thomas Hassell of Beverley; Ralph Hassell; nieces 
Ann Hassell (nee Ann St. Quintyn) Margarett and Mary 
Hassell. Mrs Frances Norcliffe; Thomas Cattell of 
Rudston; Mrs Ann Tennant : messuage in Thorpe, 
lands in Thorpe, Rudston, Flaxton, Nafferton : money: 
Trustees Edward Bower, Bridlington Key, Henry 
Cowton of Bridlington merchant. Witn. Ann Tennant, 
Frances Norcliffe, Thomas cattel, Samuel Wearsdall, 
notary public. As DDBM/35/6 
1 item 
 
 
 
 

 16 Jul 1695 
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U DDBM/35/36 Copy. Will of Francis Mosley of Aldbrough, gent.  

Bequests to wife Susanna, Matthew Smales of Gilling, 
gent., Thomas Smales, nephew Francis Burbeck, 
Cousin Francis Mosley, Katherine, wife of Rev. Jaques 
Sterne (widow of deceased brother Charles Mosley): 
manor of and property in Huggit 
1 item 
 

 10 Jan 1728 

U DDBM/35/37 Copy: Will of Sir William Blackett of Wallington, co. 
Northumberland  
Bequests to Lancelot Allgood of Hexham, gent.; 
Charles Clerk of Greys Inn, co. Middlesex, gent.; Major 
Allgood of Brandon, co. Northumberland, gent.; 
Abraham Dixon of Newcastle on Tyne, merchant; wife 
Layd Barbara Blackett; daughter Elizabeth Ord alias 
Blackett; Guy's Hospital; nephew Walter Cavalry (son 
of Sir Walter Cavalry); 30 Charity Boys belonging St. 
Andrews; sisters Frances and Isabella Blackett: 
manors of Hexham and site of Hexham Priory, Arick 
grange, Fenwick, Wallington, Camber, Rothley and 
Harterton. Tenements called Harwood, Hardwood 
Houses, Hawick, Sweethorpe Green, Leighton and 
Leighton Dikehead; royalties of Kirkeaton with colliery 
and coalmines. Messuages called Fallow Lees par. 
Rothbury. Messuages in Weldon par. Ovinham. Manor 
of Gunerton par. Chollerton. All co. Northumberland. 
Moiety of manor of Kenton alias Keynton. Fourth part of 
manor of Winlington with colliery and coal mines in par. 
Ryton co. Durham. Messuages and farmholds called 
Dukesfield and Dukesfield Hall, East and West 
Dukesfield, Coalpits alias Colpits, Steelyats, Hally all 
par. Slaley, co. Northumberland. Messuages called 
Steel alias Easter and Wester Steel in par. Hexham. 
Houses in Pilgrim St., in Newcastle on Tyne with 
parcels called the Nuns adjoining and messuage 
thereon. Lands in Sidgate without the Walls. Messuage 
called Woodcroft. Messuages called Short Thorne, 
Reed Barn and Lints Garth in Hillhope and Wellhope 
par. Stanhope; close in Walsingham, co. Durham. 
Leadmines in par. Stanhope and Walsingham. Moieties 
of Ryall and Kearsley and Woodcroft and messuage in 
Ingoe all par. Stamfordham alias Stannerton 
1 item 
 

 14 Aug 1728 

U DDBM/35/38 Copy of will of Anne Hassell (as DDBM/35/19) 
1 item 
 

 26 May 1770 

U DDBM/35/39 Copy of will of Thomas Watson of Rudston, gent. (as 
DDBM/35/28) 
1 item 
 

 9 Jul 1764 
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U DDBM/35/40 Copy of will of Godfrey Bosville of Gunthwaite par. 

Penistone and Thorpe par. Rudston esq. (as 
DDBM/35/31) 
1 item 
 

 12 Aug 1780 

U DDBM/35/41 Copy. Will of Sir Thomas Blackett formerly called Sir 
Thomas Wentworth of Bretton Hall, par. Silkeston 
Bequests, in tail male, to nephew William Bosville; 
Thomas Richard Beaumont of Darton esq., and wife 
Diana; William Lee of Leeds, merchant and wife 
Sophia; Louisa Wentworth (Diana, Sophia and Louisa 
being natural daughters of T. B.) and Sir John Sinclair 
of Caithness, successively; son Thomas Wentworth; 
nephew Thomas Bosville; daughters Diana Bosville 
and Julia de Chair; Catherine Margaretta Maria Allott; 
Edward price esq.; godson Thomas Surney; servants 
Joseph Stevenson, Matin Nowill, Ann and John 
Deplidge; Elizabeth 'widow of my late gamekeeper' 
Edward Taylor; Hepsheba wife of Edward Laycock and 
her daughters Elizabeth, Mary and Anne; maintenance 
of Richard and William Bartholomew; Thomas Lindley; 
Richard Allott of Bretton 'my carpenter'; Joseph 
Medlam 'my gardener'; Richard Hutchinson 'my 
husbandman'; Michael Sefton 'my butler'; servant 
Thomas Burdett Ann daughter of John Hall of Bretton 
Furnace; Dougald son of William Wainewright; William 
Tweedale of Bretton: manor of Gumerton, co. 
Northumberland. Property in Ryal, Ingo, Kearsby, 
Fenwick, Weldon alias Welton, Hallington and 
HallingtonMains coe.s Durham and Northumberland. 
Bretton and High Hoyland 
1 item 
 

 29 May 1790 

U DDBM/35/42 Extract from will of Sir Thomas Blackett (as 
DDBM/35/41) 
1 item 
 

 29 May 1790 

U DDBM/35/43 Copy Will and Codicil; William Bosville of Thorpe Hall 
esq.  
Bequests to nephew Hon. Godfrey Macdonald, Colonel 
in 24th Foot, of Nottinghill, co. Middlesex, then in tail 
male to Alexander William Robert Macdonald; nephew 
and godson the Hon. James William Macdonald, 
Officer in the 1st Guards nephew George son of Sir 
John Sinclair of Thursco in Caithnethshire 
successively; Major Charles James of Great Castle 
Street, Cavendish Square; servants; Rev. Charles Este 
of George's Row, Oxford St., co. Middlesex; Sir Robert 
Wilson: estates, personalty and money. 7 February 
1807. Codicils 11 April 1811: 20 January 1812 
1 item 

 7 Feb 1807 –  
20 Jan 1812 
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U DDBM/36 Kent 

14 items 
 

1604 - 1702 

U DDBM/36/1 Acquittance ; Sir Robert Bosvyle of Aynsford to Robert 
Pershall of Eccleshall, co. Staffs., esq.  
500 marks in part payment of £1000 due to Sir R. B. 
under settlement prior to marriage of Sir R. B. and 
Elizabeth only daughter of R. P. Witn. John Mories, 
Edmonde Whyte and William Whyte 
1 item 
 

 19 Nov 1604 

U DDBM/36/2 Letter of attorney: Dame Elizabeth Bossevill of 
Bloerpipe, co. Staffs., widow to William Iremonger of 
London, gent.  
To take possession of the manor, lordship or farm of 
Petham Courte, co. Kent and all other property 
conveyed for her jointure by her late husband Sir 
Robert Bossevill: Witn. Ra. Massie, Richard Harvey 
1 item 
 

 13 Sep 1623 

U DDBM/36/3 Marriage Settlement: William Stile senr. of Bromlye 
esq., to his son and heir Sir Humphrey Stile, Sir John 
Peshall of Sogonhill, co. Staffs., Dame Elizabeth 
Boswell widow of Sir Robert Bosvile, Thomas Stile of 
Watringberrie esq. and Edmond Stile of Beckenham 
gent., (brother of W. S. senior): prior to marriage of Sir 
H. S. and Dame E. B.  
Messuages and lands in Beckenham, Lewsham, 
Langlye Greene, Wickham and Deptford, co. Kent; and 
in Batrichsey, co. Surrey (Tenants and rents specified. 
Mentions capital messuage called Langley, messuage 
called Kent House and lands called the Parkes, 
Tomshill, Southfield, Rudlies and Croftes, Dawes 
Grove, Gravely Croft, the Newe Orchard, Gilbertes, 
Gilbertes Brooke, Henly Grove, Feildes, Great and 
Little Toms Woodfeild, Bruehouse Field, the Wildes, 
Willmottes, Clayhersts, Tenn Acres, the Hopyard, the 
Ozier Yard, Wickersland Meade in Beckenham, 
Birchgrove in Wickham. Jenkyns and Issabell Field in 
Lessham). Witn. Stephen Scott, Robert Style, Ra. 
Massie, Richard Harvye, John Fryer, Edmund Savage. 
Endorsed with attornment of 34 tenants (26 April 1624) 
1 item 
 

 9 Apr 1624 

U DDBM/36/4 Settlement 
(i) Sir Ralph Bossville of Bradbourne par. Sevenoke 
(ii) his son and heir Sir Leonard Bosseville of 
Bradbourne 
(iii)  Sir William Boswell (Resident with the States 
General of the Netherlands ) 
(iv) Thomas Barnes of Lambweth, co. Surrey and  

 4 Jun 1634 
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Symon Prickles of Westminster, co. Middlesex, gents. 
Manor of Blackhall. Capital messuage called 
Bradbourne Place with all appurtenances in 
Bradbourne, Blackhall and St. Jones par. Sevenocke. 
Messuages, lands, 2 water mills with the mill house 
and fulling mill in Bradbourne. Lands at Twetton par. 
Otteford. Messuages called 'Brittons', 'upon the Vine 
called the Farm upon the Vine', 'St. James', 'Fletchers 
in the Hole alias Cladhammer', 'the Chawntry House', 
'Capernose and Cradles' and lands (Mentions 
Hartlands) in Sevenoke.. Messuage and land called 
Whitley, par. Sevenoke. Hoath lands called Bradbourne 
Hoath. Messuages and lands in Blackhall in Sevenoke. 
Messuage at Knol Park. Messuages and lands in 
Rotherhead par. Sevenoke. Rye Farm and messuages 
called Tyle Howse Foare in par. Otteford. Messuages 
called Caverleys in par. Chevening. (Tenants named): 
Reference to Dame Margaret wife of Sir W. B., 
daughter of Sir R. B. and sister of Sir L. B. Witn. Wm. 
Hughes, William Harris, Maur. Eady, Rich. Heade. 
(Hum ?) Clerke 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/36/5 Settlement 
(i) Sir Lennard Bosvile of Bradbourne par. Sevenoke 
(ii) Rev. George Bosvile D. D., rector of Rivenhall, co. 
Essex 
(iii) William Hughes of Grays Inn esq. and Edward 
Bridgwood of Kelvedon, co. Essex, gentleman 
Manor of Blackhall. Capital messuage called 
Bradbourne Place and property in Bradbourne, 
Blackhall, St. Johns, Twelton par. Otford, Knol Parke 
Gate and par. Sevenoke and par. Chevening, 
Retherhead (cf. in 4 ). (Tenants named): To recited 
uses. Witn. Wm. Hughes, Sam. Benham, Richard 
(Snatt ?) 
1 item 
 

 4 Nov 1637 

U DDBM/36/6 Covenant to levy a fine: Rev. George Bosvile, D. D., 
parson of North Bemfleet, co. Essex to Dame 
Margarett Boswell (widow of Sir William B. and sister 
and admin. of Sir Lennard B. both of Bradbourne, 
dec'd) and her trustees Lawrance Wright of London, 
doctor of physic and Robert Flatman of Staple Inn, 
gent.  
Manor of Blackhall. Capital messuages called 
Bradbonre Place and property in Bradborne, 
Sevenocke, Knol Park Gate, Rethered, Twetton par. 
Otford, Chevening and Seale (cf. property in 4). 
(Tenants named) 
1 item 

 27 Jan 1652 
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U DDBM/36/7 Settlement: Dame Margarett Boswell of Bradbourn 

widow of Sir William Boswell to William Greenewood of 
Great Yarmouth co. Norfolk esq., and William 
Raymond of London, gent.  
Manor of Blackhall. Bradbourne Place and all property 
of Dame M. B. in Sevenocke, Otford, Bradborne, Seale 
and Chevening: To recited uses mentions Lennard, 
William and Humfrey Bosville). Witn. Robt. Flatman, 
Gregory Iremonger, Wm. Reevs, Hum. Carter and Pet. 
Miles 
1 item 
 

 9 Mar 1652 

U DDBM/36/8 Deed of Partition: Henry Bosvile of Eynsford esq. and 
his brother Robert B., gent.,  
Cottages, closes and lands mentions Broadefeilde, 
Shaplanes, Stonydowne, Kingsdowne, Louncroft, Little 
Sheplans, Eight Acres, Perry Downe Spring and 
Blasvester, Barre Feild, Parkehouse Woods, 2 Mill 
Fields, 2 Whitelands, Bankins Hope, Pery Downe, 
Swanton Croft, Stoney Downe, the Bowling Alley or 
Hanging Hill, Poppies Downe, Two Bostolls, Hoppe 
Ground, Further Sheplans, Longelande Wood and 
Great and Little Welthies) in Eynsford and Farningham. 
Goshold Wood in Sutton att Hone. (Tenants named): 
Witn. Geo. Gifford, Tho. Brewer, J. Seawell 
1 item 
 

 17 Apr 1662 

U DDBM/36/9 Assignment: Henry Bosvile of Eynsford esq., to 
Elizabeth Bosvile of Horton Kirby (widow of Thomas B. 
of Eynsford esq., dec'd) for her dower  
Capital messuage called Little Mote Eynsford with 
messuages, cottages and lands (mentions Park House 
Woods and Swanton Wood ) in Eynsford and 
Farningham. Goshold Wood in Swanley par. Sutton att 
Hone. (Tenants named): Witn. Geo, Gifford, Jo. 
Seawell 
1 item 
 

 22 Sep 1662 

U DDBM/36/10 Settlement: Lennard Bosvile of Ash alias St. Peters 
Ash, gent. to Dame Margarett Boswell of Bradburne 
(widow of Sir William Boswell) and Sir Henry Bosvile of 
Little Mote Ensford and wife Dame Mary  
Britone Farm and farm called Clodhammers in 
Sevenoke. Farm in Sevenoke Vine. Farm in 
Redereth.Farm in Whitelay. (Tenants named): Witn. 
George Gifford, Margaret Norcliffe 
1 item 
 
 
 
 

 24 Jun 1674 
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U DDBM/36/11 Settlement 

(i) Sir Henry Bosvile of Eynsford, Robert Brent of 
Grayes Inn esq., Benjamin Green citizen and 
haberdasher of London and Edward Browne of 
Cliffords Inn, gent. 
(ii) Richard and Bridgett Bosvile younger children of 
Richard Bosvile of Bionnie, co. Staffs., esq. 
(iii) Robert Bosvile esq. (son and heir of the said 
Richard B. dec'd) and Elizabeth Martin widow of 
William Martin of the Middle Temple, gent., dec'd 
Capital messuage called Simpsons Place in Bromley 
with all appurtenances and 400 acres of woods in 
Beckenham, Bromley, Hayes, Lewsham, Orpington 
and Keiston: Witn. E. Simanans, Paul Pullein 
1 item 
 

 24 Jun 1673 

U DDBM/36/12 Assignment: William Bosvile, gent., William Russell, 
gent. and wife Elizabeth (nee Worsley) and Anne 
Worsley, gentlewoman (W. B., E. R. and A. W. being 
executors of Dame Margarett Boswell widow) to Anne 
Bosvile mother of W.B. 
Gavelkinde Land (160 acres) in pars. Buckland and 
Buckland Dane (held under a recited Lease for 21 
years from Gilbert, Archbishop of Canterbury to Dame 
M. B. (29 July 1676):Witn. George Gifford, Tho. Burgh, 
Finch Unfrey and John Ball 
1 item 
 

 29 Nov 1682 

U DDBM/36/13 Release to lead to a Common recovery 
(i) William Bosvile of Sevenoacke, gent. 
(ii) Sir Henry Bosvile of Little Mote Eynsford (uncle of 
W. B.) and wife Dame Mary 
(iii) Samuell Browne of Farningham, gent. 
Shares of lands and closes in pars. Eynsford and 
Farningham (mentions White Land, Swanton Crofte, 
Perry Downe, 3 Mill Feilds, Bankins Hope, Horseleys, 
the Hopp Garden, Further Sheplands, Stoney Downes, 
3 Poppy Downes, 2 Bustockes and Hanging Hill of the 
Bowling Alley ):Witn. George Gifford John Bell, Tho. 
Steatfeild, Finch Umfrey 
1 item 
 

 23 Jan 1684 

U DDBM/36/14 Inventory of goods and chattels of Henry Bosvile of 
Eynsford dec'd 
1 item 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 19 Mar 1702 
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U DDBM/37 Staffordshire 

37 items, bundles or volumes 
 

1491 - [1950] 

U DDBM/37/1 Gift: John Wilkyns of Meere and his eldest son John to 
John Gerves  
All their property in Croxton and Suggenell, par. 
Ecclesall: Power of attorney to John Blest of Peirsall 
and Christopher Bagger of Great Suggenal to deliver 
seisin. Witn. Thomas Gatewodde, John Barton and 
John Breswell of Croxton. Given at Croxton 
1 item 
 

 3 Apr 1491 

U DDBM/37/2 Bargain and Sale for £50: John Haroeourte of 
Rontonhall to Roberte Pershall and Horsley, gents. 
Messuages, burgages and cottages in Eccleshall (3 
tenants named). Pasture called the Bushes in Wotton: 
Witn. Anth. Diott, Homfrey Harecourt, William Rodon, 
Anthony Marshall, Andrew Higson 
1 item 
 

 25 Apr 1586 

U DDBM/37/3 Mortgage for £5: Ralphe Underwoode alias Cragge of 
Eccleshall son and heir of Thomas Underwood alias 
Cragge of Horsley, gent. dec'd to Robert Pershall of 
Horseley, gent.  
Messuage in place called Beonney with its 
appurtenances and pasture called le Poole croft (all in 
tenure of Nicholas Brasenell) in Eccleshall: Witn. 
Robert Bridges, John Wooddwalle, Andrew Brassenul. 
20 August 1587  Endorsed with Attornment of Nicholas 
Brasenell. Witn. Andrewe Brasenell, James Turner, 
Thomas Brasenell son of A. B. and William Brockhurst. 
26 December 1588 
1 item 
 

 20 Aug 1587 - 
26 Dec 1588 

U DDBM/37/4 Gift: Thomas Rushton jnr., yeoman to Robert Pershall 
gent. both of Eccleshall  
2 selions in Eccleshall Feilde alias Doukeforde Fielde, 
near the burgage hedge, with a parcel of meadow 
called the Halfe Dole in the same field (butting on the 
river N.) in Eccleshall: Witn. Jon. Swynnetonn, William 
Bagoll, Thomas Pennyfather 
1 item 
 

 14 May 1598 

U DDBM/37/5 Settlement: Robert Pershall of Blorepype esq. to 
Richard Daston of Middle Temple and John Chetwind 
of Grays Inn esqs.  
All his goods and chattels, real and personal; with all 
jewels. plate, ready money, household stuff, 
'counterpointes and hangings of Arras and Tapistrye' 
and all implements of household and husbandry at 
Blouerpipe and elsewhere:To use of R. P. for life and  

 10 Sep 1616 
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then to specified uses (mentions Dame Elizabeth wife 
of Sir Roberte Bosvile, their eldest son Charles B., 
second son Richard B. and daughter Rachell). Witn. 
Tho. (Ansson ?), Richard Harvey, Abraham 
Pennyfather, Ralph Bagnald alias Gardner 
1 item 
 

U DDBM/37/6 Letters of institution of Rev. Thomas Gunns as curate 
in Tipton parish church 
1 bundle 
 

 18 Jun 1633 

U DDBM/37/7 Lease for 3 years at 6/8 d. rent for £10: Richard 
Bosevile of Eccleshall and Sir William Pershall of 
Cannell to Robert Rushton of Eccleshall, yeoman 
Close called the Burgage in Eccleshall: Witn. Thomas 
Swan, William Needham, Geo. Jackman 
1 item 
 

 24 Dec 1645 

U DDBM/37/8 Receipts given to Mrs Bosville for chief rents due from 
her to Thomas Andrewes. lord of the manor of 
Eccleshall 
Composition heriots due to him on death of Richarde 
Bosvile (husband of late Mrs B.); and for money due for 
relief for lands in Eccleshall, Byondene, Bishops Offley 
and Harecourte 
1 item 
 

 31 Oct 1656 

U DDBM/37/9 Rent Roll: Pershall, Bishops Offley and Croxton 
mentioned 
1 item 
 

 1696 

U DDBM/37/10 Rent Roll. Pershall. Bishops Offley and Croxton 
mentioned 
1 item 
 

 1697 

U DDBM/37/11 Rent Roll. Pershall, Bishops Offley and Croxton 
mentioned 
1 item 
 

 1698 

U DDBM/37/12 Letters of Administration of estate of Elizabeth Bosvile 
widow granted to Robert Bosvile son of Richard Bosvile 
of Eccleshall, esq., dec'd 
1 bundle 
 

 21 Feb 1701 

U DDBM/37/13 Account of rents and improved rents: Eccleshall, 
Bishops Offely, Adberston and Aspley 
1 item 
 

early 18th cent. 

U DDBM/37/14 Inventory of goods and chattels of Robert Bosvile of 
Biana esq. 
1 item 

 26 Jul 1705 
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U DDBM/37/15 Copy of part of inventory of goods and chattels of 

Robert Bosvile of Biana esq.  
1 item 
 

 26 Jul 1705 

U DDBM/37/16 Acquittance: Frances Bosville, spinster eldest daughter 
of Robert Bosville of Biana esq. dec'd to his exor. Mrs 
Frances Bosville, widow  
£600 being a legacy under his will with £15 
interest:Witn. Tho. Pershall, Tho. Gaywood 
1 item 
 

 10 Oct 1705 

U DDBM/37/17 Memorandum 
Bishop Hough demanded 4 turkeys for 4 heriots on the 
death of Robert Bosvile (1 for messuage and yard land 
in Bishops Offley, 1 for messuage and 1/2 yard land in 
Croxton, 1 for messuage and 1/2 yard land in Pershall 
and 1 for part of 3 burgages in Sherrifs Row) but 
Robert Bosvile the son 'said he never sent a turkey 
without a chine [joint of beef] so sent 4 turkeys and 4 
chines' 
1 item 
 

 c. 1705 

U DDBM/37/18 Mortgage for £1600: Sir Thomas Pershall of Great 
Sugnall, his son and heir John Pershall and Robert 
Bosville of Biana esq. to Frances Bosville of Biana 
(widow of Robert B. of Biana esq.) and Sir Charles 
Skrymsher of Norbury Manor, exors. of Robert Bosville 
Farms (7 tenants named) and closes called 2 Smithy 
Meadows, the Rewhills and the Phinnes and Briars, 
and the Dole Meadow and Woodall in Great Sugnall 
par. Eccleshall. Witn. Tobias Pickering, Robt. Talbott, 
Tho. Gaywood 
1 item 
 

 10 Oct 1705 

U DDBM/37/19 Bond in £400: Anne Pershall of Sugnall spinster and 
Robert Bosvile of Biana esq., to William Chesterton of 
Feild House, Yeoman, all par. Eccleshall  
For payment of £200: Witn. Jeoffry Snelson, William 
Bagnold, Jeoffery Burrowes. Endorsed with receipts for 
interest. (1714 - 1731) 
1 item 
 

 26 Jun 1713 

U DDBM/37/20 Bond in £100: Anne Pershall and Robert Bosvile of 
Biana (as DDBM/37/19) to Martha Chesterton of the 
Feild House, widow  
For payment of £50: Witn. John Spender, Blest 
Colclough. Endorsed with receipts for interest (1716 - 
1731) 
1 item 
 
 

 3 May 1715 
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U DDBM/37/21 Bond in £60: Anne Pershall and Robert Bosville (as 
DDBM/37/19) to Stephen Mould of Wooton, yeoman 
For payment of £30: Witn. Francis Heath, Blest 
Colclough. Endorsed with receipt for interest. (1716 - 
1734) 
1 item 
 

 27 Jun 1715 

U DDBM/37/22 Bond in £60: Anne Pershall and Robert Bosville (as 
DDBM.37/19) to Mary Mould of Wooton spinster  
For payment of £30: Witn. Francis Heath, Blest 
Colclough (as DDBM/37/21) Endorsed with receipt for 
interest (1716 - 1734) 
1 item 
 

 27 Jun 1715 

U DDBM/37/23 Acquittance: Charles Bosville one of the 4 youngest 
sons of Robert B. of Biana esq. dec'd (Thomas, John 
and William being the other three) to his mother 
Frances B. widow 
All legacies and claims under will of his father, or as 
one of the brothers of William B. dec'd. The legacies 
being charged on 2 farms called Jackmans in Pershall 
and Smiths in Bishopps Offley: Witn. Hen. Bosvile, (Ull 
?) Browne. Endorsed with account between F. B. and 
Charles Bosvile. (1704 - 1717) 
1 item 
 

 9 Jun 1717 

U DDBM/37/24 Acquittance: Frances , Elizabeth, Henry, Charles and 
Thomas Bosvile, brothers and sister of John and 
Bridgett Bosvile of Biana both dec'd, to their eldest 
brother Robert B. of Biana esq. 
Their shares of the estate of John and Bridgett, who 
died intestate. Witn. Tho. Grand, Richard Dixie, 
Arabella Pershall, Wa. Noel. Small seals of Bosville 
Arms 
1 item 
 

 4 Dec 1724 

U DDBM/37/25 Heads of proposed Marriage Settlement  
Between  (i) Lord Grimston and his eldest son  (ii) Mrs 
Arabella Pershall and  (iii) and  (iv) unnamed trustees: 
prior to marriage between Mr Grimston and Mrs 
Pershall: all her lands in the co. Staffs. Endorsed 'This 
marriage never took place' and (in the hand of Lady 
Macdonald) a memorandum as to the later marriage of 
Arabella Pershall to Viscount Glenorchy (late 3rd Earl 
of Breadalbane) and their issue 
1 item 
 

 c. 1729 

U DDBM/37/26 Rental: Eccleshall, Pershall, Bishops Offley, Horsley, 
Wooton, Little Sugnall and Croxton co. Staffs.; 
Sevenoaks and Eynsford, co. Kent; Ulscroft alias 
Ulverscroft in Charnwood Forrest co. Leics. 
1 item 

c. 1729 



Hull History Centre: Papers of the Bosville-Macdonald Family 

page 89 of 93 

 
U DDBM/37/27 Letters to Robert Bosville at Biana deom Wa. Noel (i) ; 

Peniston Lamb, Lincoln's Inn; J. Jones; and Lord 
Glenorchy, London 
Relating to an assignment of mortgage as DDBM/37/18 
to the Duke of Kent and settlement of estate further to 
will of Sir Thomas Pershall 
4 items 
 

 10 Jun 1729 –  
19 Jan 1731 

U DDBM/37/28 Assignment of Mortgage as DDBM/37/18  
(i) Hon. John Campbell esq., called Lord Glenorchy 
and his wife Hon. Arabella, Lady Glenorchy 
(ii) Herbert Bosville of Biana esq. to 
(iii) Henry, Duke of Kent 
Witn. Rob. and Sam. Harper 
1 item 
 

 19 Mar 1731 

U DDBM/37/29 Bill of Complaint in Chancery of John, Viscount 
Gelnorchy and his wife Arabella (grand-daughter of Sir 
Thomas Parshall of Sugnall dec'd) v Robert Bosvile, 
Ann Pershall, Thomas Ireland and Henry Bosville  
Claims to estate of Sir Thomas Parshall and under 
Marriage Settlement of Viscount and Viscountess 
Gelnorchy 
1 item 
 

 14 Aug 1731 

U DDBM/37/30 Opinion of Chas. Colclough: will of Sir Thomas Pershall 
1 item 
 

 1 Sep 1736 

U DDBM/37/31 Deed of Covenants: Robert Bosvile to John, Viscount 
Glenorchy: for £310 in discharge of recited bond debts  
For production of the bonds (as DDBM/37/19 - 22). 
Witn. Blest Colclough and Wa. Noel 
1 item 
 

 21 Sep 1736 

U DDBM/37/32 'William Dudley's Bill for making the Boat at Ofley Mils 
for the Worshipful Robert Bosvile esq.' 
1 item 
 

 14 Mar 1743 

U DDBM/37/33 Aquittance: Richard, Bishop of Lichfield and Coventry 
to Charles Bosville esq. exor. of his brother Robert B. 
esq. 
£40 as a composition for 4 heriots due on death of R. 
B. from farms and closes called 2 Smithy Meadows, 
the Rewhills and the Phinnes and the Dole Meadow 
and Wood all in Great Sugnall par. Eccleshall., as 
DDBM/37/17 
1 item 
 
 
 
 

 28 Feb 1745 
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U DDBM/37/34 Acquittance to Elizabeth Bosvile of Byana  
For 4 s. as a composition for 4 heriots due to Bishop of 
Lichfield and Coventry on death of her brother Charles 
B.  
1 item 
 

 3 Feb 1765 

U DDBM/37/35 Acquittance to Godfrey Bosvile esq.: £40 as 
composition for 4 heriots due to Bishop of Durham on 
death of Elizabeth Bosville 
1 item 
 

 15 Feb 1771 

U DDBM/37/36 Pocket Book containing 'Schedule of the Deeds. 
Biana', and 'Deeds in London'  
Biana, Offley Mills, Croxton, Eccleshall, Horseley, 
Gratewood Heath, Chersey Lane, Little Sugnall, Little 
Bridgford (1556 - 1766). Also includes a Valuation of 
lands at Croxton 
1 volume 
 

 c. 1770 

U DDBM/37/37 Postcards: views of exterior and interior of Eccleshall 
church and of Biana 
14 items 
 

 early 20th cent. 
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U DDBM/x2                                  Second Deposit                          1807 - 1958 
 
Historical Background/Biographical Background:  
 
Custodial history: Deposited by Sir Ian Macdonald of Sleat, Bt. Thorpe Hall, Rudston, 
Driffield, 3 September 1985 [DDBM2/1 - 12], 18 February 1986 [DDBM2/13] and 6 January 
1987 [DDBM2/14] 
 
Description: Contents: 
 
U DDBM2/1 - 11 Letters, 1807 - 1958 
U DDBM2/12    Diary, 1914  
U DDBM/13      Commission, 1939  
U DDBM/14      Press cuttings and letters, 1923 - 1933 
 
 
U DDBM/x2/1 Letter. To Lt. Col. MacDonald from Gen. D. Baird 

Congratulating Mrs MacDonald on birth of her child and 
being now out of danger 
1 item 
 

14 Sep 1807 

U DDBM/x2/2 Letters. To Mrs MacDonald from Lt. Col. MacDonald in 
the Penninsula and France. General news of Peninsula 
War 
Including: 
Bonaparte in Artoga for two days, leaving Soult to 
persue Gen. Moore's army. The town had only recently 
been taken fron the French who had maintained a 
siege of nine of ten months against several thousand 
Spaniards. 10 October 1812 
Wellington has quitted Burgos. 26 October 1812 
Dines with Wellington.  10 November 1812 
Capture of Gen. Paget. 21 November 1812 
French have evacuated whole of Northern Spain and 
greater part of their cavalry have quitted the country 
entirely. 20 December 1812 
Lt. Col. MacDonald to be made Brigadier General. 11 
January 1813 
Reports loss of six hundred men in two battlalions 
through sickness. 8 March 1813 
Further loss of 80 - 100 men including Lt. Colonel 
MacDonald's particular friend Col. Martin. 13 Decmeber 
1813 
27 items 
 

1812 - 1813 

U DDBM/x2/3 Letter to Lt. Col. MacDonald from brother Archibald 
MacDonald 
News and views of the war, particularly the Russian 
Campaign 
1 item 
 

15 Feb 1813 
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U DDBM/x2/4 Letter. To Major Bosville from Louisa Bosville 

Birthday greetings 
1 item 
 

early 19th cent. 

U DDBM/x2/5 Letter. To Lord MacDonald (Godfrey Bosville) from his 
daughter Louisa, Lady Hopetown 
Details of domestic and social life 
9 items 
 

1821 - 1832 

U DDBM/x2/6 Letter. To Lady MacDonald from Louisa Hopetown 
Domestic details 
1 item 
 

8 Jun 1827 

U DDBM/x2/7 Letters. To Lord MacDonald ( Godfrey Bosville ) from 
John Campbell 
Arranging a proposed meeting with Lord MacDonald; 
Waggons in Bewickshire  
2 items 
 

29 Mar 1829 –  
9 Dec 1829 

U DDBM/x2/8 Letter. To Lord MacDonald from Lady MacDonald 
(Louisa Maria) 
Containing general news 
1 item 
 

post 1824 

U DDBM/x2/9 Letters. To Lord MacDonald from his son in law 
Duncan Davidson 
Health or indisposition of members of family; Some 
horses he had seen for sale at Caterick Bridge; 
Messages to be passed on to various people  
3 items 
 

1825 

U DDBM/x2/10 Letters. To Lord MacDonald from his daughter Susan 
Bosville Beaumont 
News of family, friends and acquaintances  
2 items 
 

24 Feb 1832 - 
19 Apr 1832 

U DDBM/x2/11 Letter. To Lord Linlithgow from Sir Somerled 
Macdonald 
Enclosing the above letters on loan 
1 item 
 

18 Feb 1958 

U DDBM/x2/12 Diary of Godfrey MacDonald: motor trips with Harry G. 
Farmer in and around the London area 
Covered the distance from Thorpe Hall to London in 
two days (232 miles), 31 January - 1 February 1914.  
Achieved 33 mph, 28 March 1914.  
Easter tour through Kent, Dorset, Devon, Cornwall and 
Somerset, 8 April 1914 
1 item 
 
 

31 Jan - 8 Apr 
1914 
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U DDBM/x2/13 Commission of Alexander Somerland Angus Bosville 

MacDonald of the Isles, as 2nd Lieutenant in the 
Territorial Army 
1 item 
 

22 Jul 1939 

U DDBM/x2/14 Press cuttings, letters and order of funeral service 
relating ot Sir Alexander Macdonald of the Isles 
Including two articles on Thorpe Hall 
c. 33 items 

1923 - 1933 

 


